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CORPORATE PROFILE

Select Medical Corporation is a leading operator of specialty hospitals in the United States. As of

December 31, 2003, we operated 79 long-term acute care hospitals in 24 states, and four acute medical

rehabilitation hospitals in New Jersey. Select is also a leading operator of outpatient rehabilitation
clinics in the United States and Canada. As of December 31, 2003, we operated 790 outpatient rehabili-

tation clinics in 29 states, the District of Columbia, and seven Canadian provinces. Select also provides

medical rehabilitation services on a contract basis at nursing homes, hospitals, assisted living and sen-

ior care centers, schools and worksites.

Select Medical Corporation, headquartered in Mechanicsburg, Pennsylvania, commenced opera-

tions in 1997. Since inception, Select has been led by our current management team, including our

co-founders, Rocco A. Ortenzio and Robert A. Ortenzio, both of whom have significant experience in

the healthcare industry. We operate through two business segments, our specialty hospital segment

and our outpatient rehabilitation segment.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

(In thousands, except per share data)

For the Year 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
For the Years Ended
Revenue $1,396,773 $1,126,559 $958,956 $805,897 $455,975
EBITDA* 183,593 125,257 94,304 81,279 27,545
QOperating income 150,214 101,443 79,728 61,269 20,280
Net income 74,471 44,231 29,681 5,712 (13,106)
Earnings per share—fully diluted 0.72 0.45 0.31 (0.06) (0.37)
Cash flow from operations 246,248 120,812 95,770 22,513 (25,157)
At Year End
Cash and equivalents $ 165,507 $ 56,062 $ 10,703 $ 3,151 $ 4,067
Total assets 1,078,998 739,059 650,845 586,800 620,718
Total debt 367,503 260,217 288,423 302,788 340,821
Stockholders equity 419,175 286,418 234,284 48,498 49,437
Segment Information
Revenue
Specialty hospitals $ 853,668 $ 625,238 $503,021 $378,910  $307.464
Outpatient rehabilitation 529,262 485,101 440,791 416,775 141,740
All other 13,843 16,220 15,144 10,212 6,771
Total $1,396,773  $1,126,559  $958,956  $805,897  $455,975
Adjusted EBITDA**
Specialty hospitals $ 146,367 $ 70,891 $ 57,556 § 44,550 $ 35,929
Outpatient rehabilitation 74,988 81,136 76,127 65,420 22,697
All other (36,184) (24,748) (21,665) (18,300} (16,382)

*EBITDA is defined as net income (loss) before interest, income taxes, depreciation and amortization. A reconciliation of EBITDA to net income
(loss) can be found in the attached Form 10-K under Item 6. Selected Consolidated Financial Data under footnote (f) beginning on page 27.

**Adjusted EBITDA is defined as net income (loss) before interest, income taxes, depreciation and amortization, loss on early retirement of debt,
equity in earnings from joint ventures and minority interest. A reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to net income (loss) can be found in note 13
to Select Medical Corporation’s consolidated financial statements beginning on page F-25.




OUR SHAREHOLDERS

In 1996, as the foundation of Select Medical Corporation
was being established, we created a set of principles to
define and guide the Company. This set of principles—
our Mission and Values—is at the very core of

our Company.

ST

Our mission and values include providing spe-
cialty inpatient services and outpatient reha-
bilitation services to those we serve, while
seeking to provide high-quality health care
and cost-effective outcomes for our patients,
a positive work environment for our staff and
a good return to our shareholders.

Seven years later, our Mission has helped
guide us through another successful year.

In 2003, our Company achieved several major
accomplishments. We ended the year record-
ing approximately $1.4 billion in net revenue,
which represented a 24% growth rate over
2002. Net income before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortization, or EBITDA,
grew by 46.6% over 2002 to $183.6 million,
while fully diluted earnings per share grew
60% to $0.72 on & split-adjusted basis. Our
balance sheet this year was also strength-
ened by an increase in our cash balance and
a reduction in our debt to total capitalization.
We declared and paid our first dividend and
completed a 2-for-1 split of our common
stock. OQur Company’s achievements did not
go unnoticed: in June, Select Medical was
named to Business Week magazine’s 2003
list of the 100 Hot Growth Companies.

Our Specialty Hospitals demonstrated another
strong year, as evidenced by the opening of
eight new long-term acute care hospitals and
the successful implementation of LTCH-PPS
(the Medicare prospective payment system
for long-term acute care hospitals) at all of

our eligible long-term acute care hospitals
throughout the United States. Within our
Specialty Hospital segment, revenue increased
36.5% to $853.7 million, while admissions
grew by 31% over 2002. Qur Company ended
the year with 79 long-term acute care hospitals
and four acute medical rehabilitation hospitals.

In our Outpatient Rehabilitation business, we
continued to grow our integrated network of
physical therapy dlinics to serve the needs of
our patients through a wide range of core
programs and specialized services. At the end
of 2003, our Company operated 790 clinics
throughout the United States and Canada,
up from 737 clinics at the end of 2002.
Revenue in our outpatient rehabilitation
segment increased by 9.1% over 2002 to
$529.3 million, while U.S. visits increased
4.8% to more than four million for the year.

In September 2003, we completed the acqui-
sition of Kessler Rehabilitation Corporation,
one of the nation’s leading providers of com-
prehensive rehabilitation care and physical
medicine services. The addition of Kessler
provided our Company with a platform in the
inpatient rehabilitation industry and added
depth in several of our outpatient rehabilita-
tion markets.

We are also proud of several achievements
at our corporate office in Mechanicsburg,
Pennsylvania. Our employee-run C.AR.E.S.
(Caring and Responsive Employees of Select)
Committee energized our corporate campus
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and the community through volunteer efforts
with local groups, including the American
Heart Association, Big Brothers/Big Sisters,
Habitat for Humanity and the Salvation
Army. In 2003, our corporate office was
recognized in the Central Pennsylvania
Business Journal as one of the 100 Best
Places to Work in Pennsylvania. In November,
our Company responded to the growing
shortage of health care professionals by
partnering with Harrisburg Area Community
College to build the Select Medical Health
Education Pavilion, which will house the
college’s health career programs.

We are pleased and proud of the growth
our Company achieved in 2003. We extend
our sincere thanks and deep appreciation to
our Board of Directors for their guidance and
support, to our employees for their talents
and dedication, to our patients who entrust
us with their care, and to you, our share-
holders, for your support and belief in
Select Medical Corporation.

Sincerely,

A~ & o=

Rocco A. Ortenzio
Executive Chalirman

Robert A. Ortenzio
President & Chief Executive Officer




2 Select Medical Corporation

SPECIALTY HOSPITALS

Our Specialty Hospital division is comprised of both long-term acute care hospitals and acute medical rehabilitation hospitals.
As of December 31, 2003, we operated 83 specialty hospitals, 79 of which operate as long-term acute care hospitals and four of
which operate as acute medical rehabilitation hospitals. Of our long-term acute care hospitals, 76 were certified by the federal
Medicare program as long-term acute care hospitals, and the other three, all of which opened in 2003, were awaiting certification
upon completion of their conditions for qualification. All four of our acute medical rehabilitation hospitals are certified by the
federal Medicare program as inpatient rehabilitation facilities.

Long-Term Acute Care Hospitals

Overview

Our long-term acute care hospitals pro-
vide highly speciatized care to promote
recovery from the most critical and com-
plex medical conditions. Patients typically
have multiple conditions that require
treatment and need an average iength
of stay of 25 days or greater.

Our hospitals are designed to offer our
patients a longer length of stay and a
more resource-intensive level of care.
Our long-term acute care hospitals are
staffed with experienced professionals
in nursing, pharmacy, dietary, respira-
tory therapy, case management and the
rehabilitation therapies. This team works
closely with referring physicians and
case managers to ensure that patients
receive a combined approach of intensive
nursing care, focused respiratory services
and individualized therapies to achieve
optimal outcomes.

Our long-term acute care hospitals provide
a wide range of services designed to treat
medically complex conditions, pulmonary
conditions, neurological disorders, cancers,
cardiac conditions, wound care, renal dis-
orders, infectious disease and other com-
plicated conditions. We believe that we
will continue to distinguish ourselves as
leaders within long-term acute care by
providing a broader scope of clinical pro-
grams and services.

Accomplishments

In 2003, we continued to develop new
specialty hospitals, opening eight new
long-term acute care hospitals. We were
able to accomplish this because of our
strong internal development platform.
In the past four years, we have devel-
oped and opened 36 new long-term
acute care hospitals.

2003 also marked a milestone accomplish-
ment as all of our eligible long-term acute
care hospitals successfully implemented
LTCH-PPS (the Medicare prospective pay-
ment system for long-term acute care
hospitals). This transition to LTCH-PPS
resulted in incremental revenue for

these hospitals.

In addition to positive revenue growth

and margin expansion, admissions in
our “same store” hospitals (comprised
of 63 long-term acute care hospitals that
we operated throughout all of 2002 and
2003) increased by 9.3% from 2002, while
patient days and occupancy remained
relatively constant versus last year.

WSelect
Specialty*Hospital




Select Medical Corporation 3

Rehabilitation Hospiials

Overview stroke, amputee and traumatic brain

In September of 2003, we completed the injury, Kessler Institute has been rated by
acquisition of the Kessler Rehabilitation U.5. News & World Report as one of the
Corporation, a nationally known provider nation’s best rehabilitation hospitals for
of comprehensive rehabilitation serv- the past 12 consecutive years.

ices. The acquisition included the Kessler

Institute for Rehabilitation, which oper- Accomplishments

ates four acute medical rehabilitation During the last four months of 2003, the
hospitals in New Jersey. operations teams at Select Medical and

Kessler have partnered to lay the founda-
tion for a successful integration. The
addition of the four Kessler rehabilitation
hospitals complemented our overall
strong performance within the Specialty
Hospital segment.

The addition of Kessler is particularly
significant as it marked our entry into
the inpatient rehabilitation industry. it
establishes a solid platform for our man-
agement team, which has prior inpatient
rehabilitation experience, to replicate
Kessler’s programs in other communities.

Kessler Institute for Rehabilitation has Kessler

been recognized as one of the country’s INSTITUTE FOR REHABILITATION
best rehabilitation hospitals. Renowned @ Select Medical company
for its treatment of spinal cord injury,

Specialty Hospital Data

Number of Hospitals Revenue by Payor Admissions Patient Days
2003 in thousands in thousands
90 30 800
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Managed Care
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60 Medicare 20
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4 Select Medical Corporation

OUTPATIENT REHABILITATION SERVICES

Overview
Our Qutpatient Division is comprised of
an integrated local market network of

outpatient rehabilitation clinics located
throughout the United States and Canada.
At each clinic, our clinical team offers a

wide range of rehabilitative services that
maximize functionality and well-being
for individuals suffering from muscu-
loskeletal injuries. Experienced clinicians
work with referring physicians, employers,
payors and case managers to ensure high-
quality rehabilitation for our patients.

¢ NovaCare

REHABILITATION
a Select Medical company

vy
5,

Core services focus on physical therapy,
hand/occupational therapy, lower back
rehabilitation, work injury prevention
and management, sports performance
and athletic training services. Some of
our clinics also offer specialized services—
focusing on areas as diverse as fitness,
TMJ care, women’s health and vestibular
rehabilitation—which are developed
based on the specific needs of the local
community. Our outpatient clinics oper-
ate under several strong brand names,
including NovaCare Rehabilitation,
Kentucky Orthopedic Rehab Team, CB!
Health, NovaCare-Hudson P.T., Sports &
Orthopedic Rehabilitation Services, P.T.
Services and Kessler Rehabilitation.

In addition to our outpatient clinics, the
outpatient division also provides medical
rehabhilitation services on a contract basis
at nursing homes, hospitals, assisted living
and senior care centers, schools and work-
sites. These services are performed under
many of the same brand names that we
use in operating our outpatient clinics,

as well as additional established brands,
including Select Medica!l Rehabilitation
Services, Rehab Management Services and
Metro Therapy.

Accomplishments

In 2003, we grew our outpatient business
through the addition of the Kessler
outpatient rehabilitation clinics, which
complemented our existing local market
network on the East Coast. We continued
to invest in the local markets where we
have a strong presence, and we withdrew
from some markets where we lacked sig-
nificant presence. We coupled our
emphasis on local market growth with a
continued focus on negotiating stronger
contract rates. Our WorkStrategies™
Program, which focuses on work injury
prevention and management, also con-
tinued to grow in popularity among
employers who desire to reduce workplace
injuries and workers’ compensation costs.

While our outpatient rehabilitation
business did experience margin compres-
sion in 2003, revenue for the segment
in 2003 increased by 9.1% over 2002,
U.S. visits grew by 4.8%, and net rev-
enue per visit in our U.S. clinics was $87,
up from $86 the prior year. The outpa-
tient division ended the year with 790
outpatient rehabilitation clinics through-
out the United States and Canada, an
increase from 737 at the end of 2002.

Kessler

REHABILITATION CENTER
a Select Medical company
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\_ SPORTS & ORTHOPEDIC
,\][mwj REHABILITATION SERVICES, INC.

j a Select Medical company
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The Best In Rehab,
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PART 1
Forward-Looking Statements

This discussion contains forward-looking statements relating to the financial condition, results of
operations, plans, objectives, future performance and business of Select Medical Corporation. These
statements include, without limitation, statements preceded by, followed by or that include the words
“believes,” “expects,” “anticipates,” “estimates” or similar expressions. These forward-looking statements
involve risks and uncertainties. Actual results may differ materially from those contemplated by the forward-
looking statements due to factors including the following:

G

» changes in the rates or methods of government reimbursements for our services may affect our business
strategy, operations and financial results; ‘

+ a government investigation or assertion that we have violated applicable regulations may result in
increased costs and a significant use of internal resources;

» shortages in qualified nurses could increase our operating costs significantly;
+ the effects of liability and other claims asserted against us;

+ conditions in the malpractice insurance market may further increase the cost of malpractice insurance
and/or force us to assume higher self-insured retentions;

+ private third party payors of our services may undertake cost containment initiatives that would
decrease our revenue;

» the failure of our specialty hospitals to maintain their Medicare certification status, which could
negatively impact our profitability;

» difficulties in realizing the anticipated benefits from the acquisition of all of the outstanding stock of
Kessler Rehabilitation Corporation, which we refer to as Kessler;

+ unforeseen liabilities associated with the acquisition of Kessler; and
+ future acquisitions may use significant resources and expose us to unforeseen risks.

For a discussion of these and other factors affecting our business, see the section captioned “Risk
Factors” under “Item 1. Business.”

Item 1. Business

Overview

We are a leading operator of specialty hospitals in the United States. We are also a leading operator of
outpatient rehabilitation clinics in the United States and Canada. As of December 31, 2003, we operated
79 long-term acute care hospitals in 24 states, four acute medical rehabilitation hospitals in New Jersey and
790 outpatient rehabilitation clinics in 29 states, the District of Columbia and seven Canadian provinces. We
also provide medical rehabilitation services on a contract basis at nursing homes, hospitals, assisted living and
senior care centers, schools and worksites. We began operations in 1997 under the leadership of our current
management team, including our co-founders, Rocco A. Ortenzio and Robert A. Ortenzio, both of whom have
significant experience in the healthcare industry. Under this leadership, we have grown our business through
strategic acquisitions and internal development initiatives. For the year ended December 31, 2003, we had net
operating revenues of $1,396.8 million and EBITDA (as defined in Item 6, “Selected Consolidated Financial
Data”) of $183.6 million. In 2003, approximately 61% of our net operating revenues were from our specialty
hospitals and approximately 38% were from our outpatient rehabilitation business.

The Kessler Acquisition

On September 2, 2003 we completed the acquisition of all of the outstanding stock of Kessler
Rehabilitation Corporation from the Henry H. Kessler Foundation, Inc. for $228.3 million in cash, and
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$1.7 million of assumed indebtedness. Through its acute medical rehabilitation hospitals and outpatient
clinics, Kessler is one of the nation’s leading providers of comprehensive rehabilitation care and physical
medicine services. We have included the operations of Kessler’'s four acute medical rehabilitation hospitals
and one skilled nursing facility in our specialty hospitals segment. Kessler's outpatient clinics and onsite
contract rehabilitation services are included in our outpatient rehabilitation segment. Kessler’s other services,
which include sales of home medical equipment, orthotics, prosthetics and infusion/intravenous services and
corporate support costs, have been included in our other category. The results of operations of Kessler have
been included in our consolidated financial statements since September 1, 2003.

The purchase price that we paid for Kessler may be adjusted either upward or downward pursuant to a
post-closing working capital adjustment depending upon whether Kessler's working capital is less than or
greater than a target amount on the closing balance sheet. In addition, if during the eighteen months following
the acquisition of Kessler, Kessler collects accounts receivable in excess of the net accounts receivable
reflected on the closing balance sheet, we will pay to the selling stockholder 60% of such excess, net of any
expenses of collection.

Specialty Hospitals

As of December 31, 2003, we operated 83 specialty hospitals. Of this total, 79 operate as long-term acute
care hospitals, 76 of which were certified by the federal Medicare program as long-term acute care hospitals.
We expect that the remaining three hospitals, all of which opened in 2003, will eventually be certified as long-
term acute care hospitals when conditions for qualification are met. The remaining 4 hospitals are certified by
the federal Medicare program as inpatient rehabilitation facilities. As of December 31, 2003, we operated a
total of 3,204 available licensed beds. Our hospitals employ approximately 10,100 people, with the majority
being registered or licensed nurses, respiratory therapists, physical therapists, occupational therapists and
speech therapists. In these specialty hospitals we treat patients with serious and often complex medical
conditions such as respiratory failure, neuromuscular disorders, traumatic brain and spinal cord injuries,
stroke, cardiac disorders, non-healing wounds, renal disorders and cancer.

Patients are admitted to our hospitals from general acute care hospitals in our markets. Our patients
require a different clinical focus than the typical general acute care patient. We continually seek to increase
our admissions by expanding and improving our relationships with the physicians and general acute care
hospitals in our markets that refer patients to our facilities.

Below is a table that shows the distribution by medical condition (based on primary diagnosis) of patients
in our hospitals for the year ended December 31, 2003.

Distribution

Medical Condition of Patients(a)
Neuromuscular disorder ........... .. . e 37%
Respiratory disorder. .. ...ttt e 26
Cardiac disorder . . ... ... . e e 13
Wound Care . ... .. e e 8
OtheT L 16

Total . e e 100%

(a) Includes patients in the hospitals we acquired from Kessler as if we acquired those hospitals on January 1,
2003.

When a patient is referred to one of our hospitals by a physician, case manager, health maintenance
organization or insurance company, a nurse liaison makes an assessment to determine the care required. Based
on  the determinations reached in this clinical assessment, an admission decision is made by the attending
physician.




Upon admission, an interdisciplinary team reviews a new patient’s condition. The interdisciplinary team
comprises a number of clinicians and may include any or all of the following: attending physician, a specialty
nurse, physical, occupational or speech therapist, respiratory therapist, a dietician, a pharmacist and a case
manager. Upon completion of an initial evaluation by each member of the treatment team, an individualized
treatment plan is established and implemented. The case manager coordinates all aspects of the patient’s
hospital stay and serves as a liaison with the insurance carrier’s case management staff when appropriate. The
case manager communicates progress, resource utilization, and treatment goals between the patient, the
treatment team and the payor. :

Each of our specialty hospitals has an onsite management team consisting of a chief executive officer, a
director of clinical services and a director of provider relations. These teams manage local strategy and day-to-
day operations, including oversight of clinical care and treatment. They also assume primary responsibility for
developing relationships with the general acute care providers and clinicians in our markets that refer patients
to our specialty hospitals. We provide our hospitals with centralized accounting, payroll, legal, reimbursement,
human resources, compliance, management information systems, billing and collecting services. The centrali-
zation of these services improves efficiency and permits hospital staff to spend more time on patient care.

“Hoépital within a Hospital” Model

Of the 83 specialty hospitals we operated as of December 31, 2003, eight are freestanding facilities and 75
are located in leased space within a host general acute care hospital. These leased spaces are separately
licensed hospitals and are commonly referred to as a “hospital within a hospital.” As of December 31, 2003,
we operated the largest number of long-term acute care hospitals operating with this “hospital within a
hospital” model in the United States.

We believe that the “hospital within a hospital” model provides several advantages to patients, host
hospitals and physicians. The patients benefit from being admitted to a setting specialized to meet their unique
medical needs without having the disruption of being moved to another location. Host hospitals benefit from
this model by receiving payments from us for rent and ancillary services. Physicians affiliated with the host
hospital are provided with the convenience of being able to provide continuity of care to their patients without
traveling to another location. We benefit from the ability to operate specialty hospitals without the capital
investment often associated with buying or building a freestanding facility.

In addition, our specialty hospitals serve the broader community where they operate, treating patients
from other general acute care hospitals in the local market. During the year ended December 31, 2003,
approximately 47% of the patients in our “hospital within a hospital” facilities were referred to us from general
acute care hospitals other than the host hospitals.

Specialty Hospital Strategy
Provide High Quality and Cost Effective Care

We believe that our patients benefit from our experience in addressing the complex medical and
rehabilitation needs of patients. To effectively address the nature of our patients’ medical conditions, we have
developed specialized treatment programs focused solely on their needs. We have also implemented specific
staffing models that are designed to ensure that patients have access to the necessary level of clinical attention.
These staffing models also allow us to allocate our resources efficiently, which reduces costs.

Our treatment and staffing programs benefit patients because they give our clinicians access to the
regimens that we have found to be most effective in treating various conditions such as respiratory failure, non-
healing wounds, brain and spinal cord injuries, strokes and neuromuscular disorders. In addition, we combine
or modify these programs to provide a treatment plan tailored to meet a patient’s unique needs.

We continually monitor the quality of our patient care by several measures, including patient, payor and
physician satisfaction, as well as clinical outcomes. Quality measures are collected monthly and reported
quarterly and annually. In order to benchmark ourselves against other healthcare organizations, we have
contracted with outside vendors to collect our clinical and patient satisfaction information and compare it to
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other healthcare organizations. The information collected is reported back to each hospital, to the corporate
office, and directly to the Joint Commission on Accreditation of Healthcare Organizations, commonly known
as JCAHO. As of December 31, 2003, JCAHO had accredited all but six of our hospitals that have not yet
undergone a JCAHO survey. Each of our four acute medical rehabilitation hospitals have also received
accreditation from the Commission on Accreditation of Rehabilitation Facilities. See “ — Government
Regulations — Licensure — Accreditation.”

Reduce Costs

We continually seek to improve operating efficiency and reduce costs at our hospitals by standardizing
operations and centralizing key administrative functions. These initiatives include:

« optimizing staffing based on our occupancy and the clinical needs of our patients;

e centralizing administrative functions such as accounting, payroll, legal, reimbursement, compliance,
human resources and billing and collection;

+ standardizing management information systems to aid in financial reporting as well as billing and
collecting; and

* participating in group purchasing arrangements to receive discounted prices for pharmaceuticals and
medical supplies.

Increase Higher Margin Commercial Volume

We typically receive higher reimbursement rates from commercial insurers than we do from the federal
Medicare program. As a resuit, our goal is to expand relationships with insurers to increase commercial patient
volume. We have regional employees who focus on commercial contracting initiatives within their geographi-
cal area. Our goal in commercial contracting is to give discounted rates to those commercial payors that we
expect to add significant patient volume to our hospitals. Approximately 27.1% of the net operating revenues
generated by our specialty hospitals in 2003 were received from commercial payors.

We believe that commercial payors seek to contract with our hospitals because we offer patients quality,
cost effective care. General acute care hospitals incur substantial overhead costs in order to provide a wide
array of patient services. We provide a much narrower range of patient services, and our hospitals within a
hospital lease space within a general acute care hospital. These factors permit our hospitals to operate with
lower overhead costs per patient than general acute care hospitals can. Additionally, we provide their enrollees
with focused, customized treatment programs not offered in traditional acute care facilities.

Develop New Specialty Hospitals

Our goal is to open approximately eight to ten new long-term acute care hospitals each year using
primarily our “hospital within a hospital” model. We seek to lease space from general acute care hospitals
with leadership positions in the markets in which they operate. We have successfully contracted with various
types of general hospitals, including for-profit, not-for-profit and university affiliated. We also may develop
additional acute medical rehabilitation hospitals.

We have a dedicated development team with significant market experience. When we target a host
hospital, the development team conducts an extensive review of all of its discharges to determine the number
of referrals we would have likely received from it on a historical basis. Next, we review the local market for
commercial insurance to determine the general reimbursement trends and payor mix. Ultimately, when we
sign a lease with a new host hospital, the project is transitioned to our start-up team, which is experienced in
preparing a specialty hospital for opening. The start-up team oversees facility improvements, equipment
purchases, licensure procedures, and the recruitment of a full-time management team. After the facility is
opened, responsibility for its management is transitioned to this new management team and our corporate
operations group. '



During 2001, 2002 and 2003, we completed the development and opening of the following 26 long-term
acute care hospitals:

Licensed Beds

(as of
Hospital Name _ Gty  State Opening Date 12/31/03)
SSH-Birmingham .................. Birmingham AL  February 2001 38
SSH-Jefferson Parish ........... .... NewOrleans LA  February 2001 41
SSH-Pontiac ...................... Pontiac MI  June 2001 30
SSH-Camp Hill .. .................. Camp Hill PA  June 2001 31
SSH-Wyandotte.................... Wyandotte MI  September 2001 35
SSH-Charleston.................... Charleston WV December 2001 32
SSH-Northwest Detroit ............. Detroit MI  December 2001 36
SSH-Scottsdale .................... Scottsdale AZ  December 2001 29
SSH-Bloomington .................. Bloomington IN  December 2001 30
SSH-Phoenix-Downtown ............ Phoenix AZ  December 2001 33
SSH-Central Pennsylvania ........... York PA  June 2002 23
SSH-Saginaw . ............c........ Saginaw MI  June 2002 32
SSH-South Dallas.................. DeSoto X  July 2002 48
SSH-Jackson ...................... Jackson MS  July 2002 40
SSH-Miiwaukee (St. Luke’s Campus)  Milwaukee WI  October 2002 29
SSH-Lexington .................... Lexington KY  October 2002 41
SSH-Denver (South Campus) ....... Denver CO  November 2002 28
SSH-Miami ....................... Miami FL  December 2002 40
SSH-Augusta {Central Campus) ..... Augusta GA  May 2003 35
SSH-Conroe*................ e Conroe TX  June 2003 46
SSH-Durham*....... e Durham NC  June 2003 30
SSH-Knoxville (U.T.. Campus)....... Knoxville TN  June 2003 25
SSH-Zanesville* ................... Zanesville OH  July 2003 35
SSH-Omaha (North Campus) ....... Omaha NE  August 2003 36
SSH-Northeast Ohio (Canton Canton OH  November 2003 30

Campus) .. ..oovii i

SSH-Wichita (Central Campus) ..... Wichita KS  December 2003 _30

Total ... 883

* As of December 31, 2003, certification as a long-term acute care hospital was pending, subject to successful
completion of a start-up period and/or surveys by the applicable licensure or certifying agencies. See
“— Governmental Regulations — Licensure — Certification.”

Grow Through Acquisitions

In addition to our development initiatives, we intend to grow our network of specialty hospitals through
strategic acquisitions. When we acquire a hospital or a group of hospitals, a team of our professionals is
responsible for formulating and executing an integration plan., We have generally been able to increase
margins at acquired facilities through additional clinical programs that attract commercial payors, centralizing
administrative functions, implementing our standardized staffing models and resource management programs.
Since our inception in 1997 we have acquired and integrated 41 hospitals. Except for the four hospitals we
recently acquired from Kessler, all of these hospitals now share our centralized billing and standardized
management information systems. We are currently engaged in the process of integrating the Kessler hospitals
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on to our centralized billing and management information systems. All of our acquired hospitals participate in
our centralized purchasing program.

During 2003 we acquired the following four acute medical rehabilitation hospitals:

Licensed Beds

(as of
Hospital Name City State | Acquisition Date 12/31/03)
Kessler Institute for Rehabilitation —
West ... West Orange NJ  September 2003 80
Kessler Institute for Rehabilitation —
East...... .. ... . ool East Orange NJ  September 2003 78
Kessler Institute for Rehabilitation —
North .......... ... ..o, Saddle Brook NJ  September 2003 92
Kessler Institute for Rehabilitation —
Welkind .............. ... ...... Chester NJ  September 2003 72
Total ......... ..o 322

Outpatient Rehabilitation -

We are a leading operator of outpatient rehabilitation clinics in the United States and Canada. As of
December 31, 2003, we operated 790 clinics throughout 29 states, the District of Columbia and seven
Canadian provinces. Our outpatient rehabilitation division employs approximately 10,000 people. Typically,
each of our clinics is located in a freestanding facility in a highly visible medical complex or retail location. In
addition to providing therapy in our outpatient clinics, we provide rehabilitation management services and
staffing on a contract basis to hospitals, schools, nursing facilities and home health agencies.

In our clinics and through our contractual relationships, we provide physical, occupational and speech
rehabilitation programs and services. We also provide certain specialized programs such as hand therapy or
sports performance enhancement that treat sports and work related injuries, musculoskeletal disorders, chronic
or acute pain and orthopedic conditions. Our patients are typically diagnosed with musculoskeletal impair-
ments that restrict their ability to perform normal activities of daily living. These impairments are often
associated with accidents, sports injuries, strokes, heart attacks and other medical conditions. Our rehabilita-
tion programs and services are designed to help these patients minimize physical and cognitive impairments
and maximize functional ability. We also design services to prevent short-term disabilities from becoming
chronic conditions. Our rehabilitation services are provided by our professionals including licensed physical
therapists, occupational therapists, speech-language pathologists and respiratory therapists.

Outpatient rehabilitation patients are generally referred or directed to our clinics by a physician, employer
or health insurer who believes that a patient, employee or member can benefit from the level of therapy we
provide in an outpatient setting. We believe that our services are attractive to healthcare payors who are
seeking to provide the most cost-effective level of care to their members. In our outpatient rehabilitation
division, approximately 90% of our net operating revenues come from rehabilitation management services and
commercial payors, including healthcare insurers, managed care organizations and workers’ compensation
programs. The balance of our reimbursement is derived from Medicare and other government sponsored
programs.

Outpatient Strategy

Increase Market Shavre

Our goal is to be a leading provider of outpatient rehabilitation services in our local markets. Having a
strong market share in our local markets allows us to benefit from heightened brand awareness, economies of
scale and increased leverage when negotiating payor contracts. To increase our market share, we seek to
expand the services and programs we provide and generate loyalty with patients and referral sources by
providing high quality care and strong customer service.
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Expand Rehabilitation Programs and Services

We assess the healthcare needs of our markets and implement programs and services targeted to meet the
demands of the local community. In designing these programs we benefit from the knowledge we gain through
our national network of clinics. This knowledge is used to design programs that optimize treatment methods
and measure changes in health status, clinical outcomes and patient satisfaction. Our programs and services
include, among others, back care and rehabilitation; work injury management and prevention; sports
rehabilitation and athletic training; and health, safety and prevention programs. Other services that vary by
location include aquatic therapy, speech therapy, neurological rehabilitation and post-treatment care.

Provide High Quality Care and Service

We believe that by focusing on quality care and offering a high level of customer service we develop brand
loyalty in our markets. This loyalty allows us to retain patients and strengthen our relationships with the
physicians, employers, and health insurers in our markets who refer or direct additional patients to us. We are
focused on providing a high level of service to our patients throughout their entire course of treatment. To
measure satisfaction with our service we have developed surveys for both patients and physicians. Our clinics
utilize the feedback from these surveys to continuously refine and improve service levels.

Optimize the Profitability of Our Payor Contracts

Before we enter into a new contract with a commercial payor, we evaluate it with the aid of our contract
management system. We assess potential profitability by evaluating past and projected patient volume, clinic
capacity, and expense trends. Each contract we enter into is continually re-evaluated to determine how it is
affecting our profitability. We create a retention strategy for each of the top performing contracts and a
re-negotiation strategy for contracts that do not meet our defined criteria.

Grow Through New Development and Disciplined Acquisitions

We intend to open new clinics in our current markets where we believe that we can benefit from existing
referral relationships and brand awareness to produce incremental growth. From time to time, we intend to
also evaluate acquisition opportunities that are complementary to our business and that are expected to give us
a strong return on our invested capital.

Maintain Strong Employee Relations

We believe that the relationships between our employees and the referral sources in their communities
are critical to our success. OQur referral sources, such as physicians and healthcare case managers, send their
patients to our clinics based on three factors: the quality of our care, the service we provide and their
familiarity with our therapists. We seek to retain and motivate our therapists by implementing a performance-
based bonus program, a defined career path with the ability to be promoted from within, timely communica-
tion on company developments, and internal training programs. We also focus on empowering our employees
by giving them a high degree of autonomy in determining local market strategy. This management approach
reflects the unique nature of each market in which we operate and the importance of encouraging our
employees to assume responsibility for their clinic’s performance.

Other Services

Other services (which accounted for less than 1% of our net operating revenues in 2003) include home
medical equipment, orthotics, prosthetics, oxygen and ventilator systems, infusion/intravenous and certain
non-healthcare services.



Sources of Net Operating Revenues

The following table presents the approximate percentages by source of net operating revenue received for
healthcare services we provided for the periods indicated.

Year Ended December 31,

Net Operating Revenues by Payor Source ) 2003 2002 2001
Medicare .. ... e 46.0% 40.3% 37.3%
Commercial insurance(a) .......... it 43.2 49.1 51.4
‘Private and other(b)....... e S 9.2 9.5 10.2
Medicaid . ...... .. e 1.6 1.1 1.1
Total ..o 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

(a) Includes commercial healthcare insurance carriers, health maintenance organizations, preferred provider
organizations, workers’ compensation and managed care programs.

(b) Includes self payors, Canadian revenues, contract management services and non-patient related pay-
ments. Self pay revenues represent less than 1% of total net operating revenues.

Non-Government Sources

Although in recent years an increasing percentage of our net operating revenues were generated from the
Medicare program, a majority of our net operating revenues continue to come from private payor sources.
These sources include insurance companies, workers’ compensation programs, health maintenance organiza-
tions, preferred provider organizations, other managed care companies, and employers, as well as by patients
directly. Patients are generally not responsible for any difference between customary charges for our services
and amounts paid by Medicare and Medicaid programs, insurance companies, workers’ compensation
companies, health maintenance organizations, preferred provider organizations, and other managed care
companies, but are responsible for services not covered by these programs or plans, as well as for deductibles
and co-insurance obligations of their coverage. The amount of these deductibles and co-insurance obligations
has increased in recent years. Collection of amounts due from individuals is typically more difficuit than
collection of amounts due from government or business payors. To further reduce their healthcare costs, most
insurance companies, health maintenance organizations, preferred provider organizations, and other managed
care companies have negotiated discounted fee structures or fixed amounts for hospital services performed,
rather than paying healthcare providers the amounts billed. Our results of operations may be negatively
affected if these organizations are successful in negotiating further discounts.

Government Sources

Medicare is a federal program that provides medical insurance benefits to persons age 65 and over, some
disabled persons, and persons with end-stage renal disease. Medicaid is a federal-state funded program,
administered by the states, which provides medical benefits to individuals who are unable to afford healthcare.
As of December 31, 2003, all of our hospitals were certified as Medicare providers. Qur outpatient
rehabilitation clinics regularly receive Medicare payments for their services. Additionally, our specialty
hospitals participate in eleven state Medicaid programs. Amounts received under the Medicare and Medicaid
programs are generally less than the customary charges for the services provided. In recent years, there have
been significant changes made to the Medicare and Medicaid programs. Since nearly half of our revenues
comes from patients under the Medicare program, our ability to operate our business successfully in the future
will depend in large measure on our ability to adapt to changes in the Medicare program. See “— Government
Regulations — Overview of U.S. and State Government Reimbursements.”




Government Regulations
General

The healthcare industry is required to comply with many laws and regulations at the federal, state and
local government levels. These laws and regulations require that hospitals and outpatient rehabilitation clinics
meet various requirements, including those relating to the adequacy of medical care, equipment, personnel,
operating policies and procedures, maintenance of adequate records, compliance with building codes and
environmental protection. These laws and regulations are extremely complex and, in many instances, the
industry does not have the benefit of significant regulatory or judicial interpretation. If we fail to comply with
applicable laws and regulations, we could suffer civil or criminal penalties, including the loss of our licenses to
operate and our ability to participate in the Medicare, Medicaid and other federal and state healthcare
programs.

Licensure

Facility Licensure. Our healthcare facilities are subject to state and local licensing regulations ranging
from the adequacy of medical care to compliance with building codes and environmental protection laws. In
order to assure continued compliance with these various regulations, governmental and other authorities
periodically inspect our facilities.

Some states still require us to get approval under certificate of need regulations when we create, acquire
or expand our facilities or services. If we fail to show public need and obtain approval in these states for our
facilities, we may be subject to civil or even criminal penalties, lose our facility license or become ineligible for
reimbursement if we proceed with our development or acquisition of the new facility or service.

Professional Licensure and Corporate Practice. Healthcare professionals at our hospitals and outpatient
rehabilitation clinics are required to be individually licensed or certified under applicable state law. We take
steps to ensure that our employees and agents possess all necessary licenses and certifications.

In some states, business corporations such as ours are restricted from practicing therapy through the
direct employment of therapists. In those states, in order to comply with the restrictions imposed, we either
contract to obtain therapy services from an entity permitted to employ therapists, or we manage the physical
therapy practice owned by licensed therapists through which the therapy services are provided.

Certification. In order to participate in the Medicare program and receive Medicare reimbursement,
each facility must comply with the applicable regulations of the United States Department of Health and
Human Services relating to, among other things, the type of facility, its equipment, its personnel and its
standards of medical care, as well as compliance with all applicable state and local laws and regulations. All of
our specialty hospitals participate in the Medicare program. In addition, we provide the majority of our
outpatient rehabilitation services through clinics certified by Medicare as rehabilitation agencies or “rehab
agencies.”

Accreditation. Our hospitals receive accreditation from the Joint Commission on Accreditation of
Healthcare Organizations, a nationwide commission which establishes standards relating to the physical plant,
administration, quality of patient care and operation of medical staffs of hospitals. As of December 31, 2003,
JCAHO had accredited all but six of our hospitals. These six hospitals have not yet undergone a JCAHO
survey. Generally, our hospitals have to be in operation for at least six months before they are eligible for
accreditation. Each of our four acute medical rehabilitation hospitals have also received accreditation from the
Commission on Accreditation of Rehabilitation Facilities, an independent, not-for-profit organization which
reviews and grants accreditation for rehabilitation facilities that meet established standards for service and
quality.

Overview of U.S. and State Government Reimbursements

Medicare. The Medicare program reimburses healthcare providers for services furnished to Medicare
beneficiaries, which are generally persons age 65 and older, those who are chronically disabled, and those
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suffering from end stage renal disease. The program is governed by the Social Security Act of 1965 and is
administered primarily by the Department of Health and Human Services and the Centers for Medicare &
Medicaid Services. For the year ended December 31, 2003, we received approximately 46% of our revenue
from Medicare.

The Medicare program reimburses various types of providers, including long-term acute care hospitals,
inpatient rehabilitation facilities and outpatient rehabilitation providers, using different payment methodolo-
gies. The Medicare reimbursement systems for long-term acute care hospitals, inpatient rehabilitation
facilities and outpatient rehabilitation providers, as described below, are different than the system applicable to
general acute care hospitals. For general acute carehospitals, Medicare inpatient costs are reimbursed under a
prospective payment system under which a hospital receives a fixed payment amount per discharge using
diagnosis related groups, commonly referred to as DRGs. The general acute care hospital DRG payment rate
is based upon the national average cost of treating a Medicare patient’s condition in that type of facility.
Although the average length of stay varies for each DRG, the average stay of all Medicare patients in a
general acute care hospital is approximately six days. Thus, the prospective payment system for general acute
care hospitals creates an economic incentive for those hospitals to discharge medically complex Medicare
patients as soon as clinically possible. We believe that the incentive for general acute care hospitals to
discharge medically complex patients as soon as clinically possible creates a substantial referral source for our
inpatient and outpatient providers.

Long-Term Acute Care Hospital Medicare Reimbursement. The Medicare payment system for long-
term acute care hospitals has been changed to a new prospective payment system specifically applicable to
long-term acute care hospitals, which is referred to as “LTCH-PPS”. LTCH-PPS was established by final
regulations published on August 30, 2002 by the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (“CMS”), and
applies to long-term care hospitals for their cost reporting periods beginning on or after October 1, 2002.
Ultimately, when LTCH-PPS is fully implemented, each patient discharged from a long-term acute care
hospital will be assigned to a distinct long-term care diagnosis-related group (“LTC-DRG”), and a long-term
acute care hospital will generally be paid a pre-determined fixed amount applicable to the assigned LTC-DRG
(adjusted for area wage differences). The payment amount for each LTC-DRG is intended to reflect the
average cost of treating a Medicare patient assigned to that LTC-DRG in a long-term acute care hospital.
LTCH-PPS also includes special payment policies that adjust the payments for some patients based on the
patient’s length of stay, the facility’s costs, whether the patient was discharged and readmitted and other
factors. As required by Congress, LTC-DRG payment rates have been set to maintain budget neutrality with
total expenditures that would have been made under the previous reasonable cost-based payment system.

The LTCH-PPS regulations also refined the criteria that must be met in order for a hospital to be
certified as a long-term acute care hospital. For cost reporting periods beginning on or after October 1, 2002, a
long-term acute care hospital must have an average inpatient length of stay for Medicare patients (including
both Medicare covered and non-covered days) of greater than 25 days. Previously, average lengths of stay
were measured with respect to all patients.

Prior to becoming subject to LTCH-PPS, a long-term acute care hospital is paid on the basis of Medicare
reasonable costs per case, subject to limits. Under this cost-based reimbursement system, costs accepted for
reimbursement depend on a number of factors, including necessity, reasonableness, rélated-party principles
and relatedness to patient care. Qualifying costs under Medicare’s cost-reimbursement system typically
include all operating costs and also capital costs that include interest expense, depreciation, amortization, and
rental expense. Non-qualifying costs include marketing costs. Under the cost-based reimbursement system, a
long-term acute care hospital is subject to per-discharge payment limits. During a long-term acute care
hospital’s initial operations, Medicare payment is capped at the average national target rate established by the
Tax Equity and Fiscal Responsibility Act of 1982, commonly known as TEFRA. After the second year of
operations, payment is subject to a target amount based on the lesser of the hospital’s cost-per-discharge or the
national ceiling in the applicable base year. Legislation enacted in December 2000, the “Medicare, Medicaid,
and SCHIP Benefits Improvement and Protection Act of 2000,” increased the target amount by 25 percent
and the national ceiling by 2 percent for cost reporting periods beginning after October 1, 2000.
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Prior to qualifying under the payment system applicable to long-term acute care hospitals, a new long-
term acute care hospital initially receives payments under the general acute care hospital DRG-based
reimbursement system. The long-term acute care hospital must continue to be paid under this system for a
minimum of six months while meeting certain Medicare long-term acute care hospital requirements, the most
significant requirement being an average length of stay of more than 25 days.

In addition to meeting the long-term acute care hospital requirements, “hospital within a hospital” and
“satellite” facilities must satisfy additional standards. A “hospital within a hospital” facility must establish
itself as a hospital separate from its host by, among other things, obtaining separate licensure and certification,
and limiting the services it purchases directly from its host to 15% of its total operating costs, or limiting the
number of patient admissions from its host to 25% of total admissions. In addition, there are financial penalties
associated with a hospital within a hospital’s failure to limit to five percent the number of its total Medicare
patients that are discharged to the host hospital and subsequently readmitted to the hospital within a hospital.
A “satellite” facility must not only satisfy standards that demonstrate its separateness from its host but must
also meet requirements that show its integration with the main provider hospital of which it is a part.

LTCH-PPS is being phased-in over a five-year transition period, during which a long-term care hospital’s
payment for each Medicare patient will be a blended amount consisting of set percentages of the LTC-DRG
payment rate and the hospital’s reasonable cost-based reimbursement. The LTC-DRG payment rate is 20%
for a hospital’s cost reporting period beginning on or after October 1, 2002, and will increase by 20% for each
cost reporting period thereafter until the hospital’s cost reporting period beginning on or after October 1, 2006,
when the hospital will be paid solely on the basis of LTC-DRG payment rates. A long-term acute care
hospital may elect to be paid solely on the basis of LTC-DRG payment rates (and not be subject to the
transition period) at the start of any of its cost reporting periods during the transition period.

As of December 31, 2003, all 76 of our eligible long-term acute care hospitals have implemented LTCH-
PPS. We have elected to be paid solely on the basis of LTC-DRG payments for all 76 of these hospitals. The
remaining three hospitals are currently in their qualification period and will be paid under LTCH-PPS upon
obtaining their long-term acute care hospital certification.

While the implemc.ntation' of LTCH-PPS is intended to be revenue neutral to the industry, our hospitals
experienced enhanced financial performance in 2003 due to our low cost operating model and the high acuity
of our patient population. '

Inpatient Rehabilitation Facility Medicare Reimbursement. The acute medical rehabilitation hospitals
that we acquired from Kessler are certified as inpatient rehabilitation facilities under Medicare, and are
subject to a prospective payment system for services provided to each discharged Medicare beneficiary. Prior
to January 1, 2002, inpatient rehabilitation facilities were paid on the basis of Medicare reasonable costs per
case, subject to limits under TEFRA. Beginning in January 2002, inpatient rehabilitation facilities began to be
paid under a new prospective payment system specifically applicable to this provider type, which is referred to
as “IRF-PPS.” Under the IRF-PPS, each patient discharged from an inpatient rehabilitation facility is
assigned to a case mix group or “IRF-CMG” containing patients with similar clinical problems that are
expected to require similar amounts of resources. An inpatient rehabilitation facility is generally paid a pre-
determined fixed amount applicable to the assigned IRF-CMG (subject to applicable case and facility level
adjustments). The payment amount for each IRF-CMG is intended to reflect the average cost of treating a
Medicare patient’s condition in an inpatient rehabilitation facility relative to patients with conditions described
by other IRF-CMGs. The IRF-PPS also includes special payment policies that adjust the payments for some
patients based on the patient’s length of stay, the facility’s costs, whether the patient was discharged and
readmitted and other factors. As required by Congress, IRF-CMG payments rates have been set to maintain
budget neutrality with total expenditures that would have been made under the previous reasonable cost-based
system. The IRF-PPS was phased-in over a transition period in 2002. For cost reporting periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2002 and before October 1, 2002, an inpatient rehabilitation facility’s payment for each
Medicare patient was a blended amount consisting of 66%:% of the IRF-PPS payment rate and 33'/:% of the
hospital’s reasonable cost-based reimbursement. For cost reporting periods beginning on or after October 1,
2002, inpatient rehabilitation facilities are paid solely on the basis of the IRF-PPS payment rate.
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The IRF-PPS regulations did not change the criteria that must be met in order for a hospital to be
certified as an inpatient rehabilitation facility. In addition to satisfying certain operational requirements, in
order to be certified by Medicare as an inpatient rehabilitation facility, a hospital must demonstrate that,
during its most recent 12-month cost reporting period, it served an inpatient population of whom at least
75 percent required intensive rehabilitation services for one or more of ten conditions specified in the
regulation. Medicare rules permit an inpatient rehabilitation facility to pre-certify its compliance with this
“75 percent test.”” Consequently, in contrast to long-term acute care hospitals, inpatient rehabilitation facilities
are not required to be paid under the general acute care hospital DRG-based reimbursement system during
their initial operations. Rather, after self-certifying compliance with the 75 percent test, they are entitled to be
reimbursed as inpatient rehabilitation facilities (now, under the IRF-PPS) upon the commencement of
operations.

In 2002, CMS became aware that its various contractors were using inconsistent methods to assess
compliance with the 75 percent test and that the percentage of inpatient rehabilitation facilities in compliance
with the 75 percent test might be low. In response, on June 7, 2002, CMS suspended enforcement of the
75 percent test and, on September 9, 2003, proposed certain modifications to the regulatory standards for
certification as an inpatient rehabilitation facility. First, CMS proposed to change the portion of patients who
are required to have one or more of the specified medical conditions from 75 percent to 65 percent. Second,
CMS proposed to delete “polyarthritis” from the list of qualifying conditions and to replace it with three more
clearly defined arthritis-related conditions. The agency did not include joint replacements, cancer, cardiac,
pulmonary and pain conditions within the list of qualifying conditions. Third, CMS sought input on the
possible inclusion of patients who have second diagnoses, known as comorbidities, that fall within the list of
qualifying conditions for purposes of the proposed 65 percent test. CMS proposed that the 65 percent standard
and the comorbidity compliance policy would apply only for three years following the effective date of its final
rule, which was anticipated to be January 1, 2004 in the proposed rule, while the agency studies trends in
admissions and overall utilization in inpatient rehabilitation facilities. Thus, CMS proposed to reinstitute the
75 percent test and to end use of the comorbidity compliance policy for cost reporting periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2007. CMS also proposed to adjust the time period used to determine compliance with the
75 percent test to enable CMS’s contractors to change a facility’s certification more promptly following a
determination whether it qualifies for certification as an inpatient rehabilitation facility.

Recently, several CMS contractors, including the contractor overseeing our acute medical rehabilitation
hospitals, have promulgated draft local medical review policies (“LMRPs”) that would change the guidelines
used to determine the medical necessity for inpatient rehabilitation care. Implementation of the LMRPs, as
proposed by the contractors, could result in denials of coverage for care that has historically been reimbursed
by the Medicare program and could cause us to have to reevaluate our inpatient rehabilitation admissions
policies.

The Congressional Conference Reports for the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Moderni-
zation Act, signed by President Bush on December 8, 2003 (“DIMA”), and the Consolidated Appropriations
Act of 2004, signed by President Bush on January 23, 2004 (“CAA”), include statements expressing concern
that CMS’s proposed changes to the 75 percent test would adversely impact access to inpatient rehabilitation
hospital services. Both reports direct additional study to establish clinically appropriate standards for medical
necessity and clinically appropriate qualification criteria for inpatient rehabilitation facilities, and press CMS
to delay implementation of the 75 percent test and not to accept new inpatient rehabilitation facility
enrollment applications until the study reports are finished. The CAA Conference Report also indicates the
expectation that CMS will delay implementation of the LMRPs pending the completion of the study.
Although the statements in the Conference Reports are not legally binding, CMS is likely to follow the
direction contained in the reports, including the imposition of an effective moratorium on new inpatient
rehabilitation facilities, pending completion of the study of the inpatient rehabilitation facility qualification
criteria.

Following any changes to the inpatient rehabilitation qualification requirements, it may be necessary for
us to reassess and change our inpatient admissions standards. Such changes may include more restrictive
admissions policies. Stricter admissions standards may result in reduced patient volumes at our inpatient
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rehabilitation facilities, which, in turn, may result in lower net operating revenue and net income for these
operations.

Outpatient Rehabilitation Services Medicare Reimbursement. We provide the majority of our outpatient
rehabilitation services in our rehabilitation clinics. Through our contract services agreements, we also provide
outpatient rehabilitation services in the following settings:

+ schools;

» physician-directed clinics;
+ worksites;

« assisted living centers;

* hospitals; and

« skilled nursing facilities.

Most of our outpatient rehabilitation services are provided in rehabilitation agencies and through our acute
medical rehabilitation hospitals.

Prior to January 1, 1999, outpatient therapy services, including physical therapy, occupational therapy,
and speech-language pathology, were reimbursed on the basis of the lower of 90% of reasonable costs or actual
charges. Beginning January 1, 1999, the Balanced Budget Act of 1997 (the “BBA”) required that outpatient
therapy services be reimbursed on a fee schedule, subject to annual limits. Outpatient therapy providers
receive a fixed fee for each procedure performed, which is adjusted by the geographical area in which the
facility is located.

The BBA also imposed annual per Medicare beneficiary caps beginning January 1, 1999 that limited
Medicare coverage to $1,500 for outpatient rehabilitation services (including both physical therapy and
speech-language pathology services) and $1,500 for outpatient occupational health services, including
deductible and coinsurance amounts. The caps were to be increased beginning in 2002 by application of an
inflation index. Subsequent legislation imposed a moratorium on the application of these limits for the years
2000, 2001 and 2002. With the expiration of the moratorium, CMS implemented the caps beginning on
September 1, 2003. The Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act, signed by
President Bush on December 8, 2003 (“DIMA”), re-imposed the moratorium on the application of the
therapy caps from the date of DIMA’s enactment through December 31, 2005.

Historically, outpatient rehabilitation services have been subject to scrutiny by the Medicare program for,
among other things, medical necessity for services, appropriate documentation for services, supervision of
therapy aides and students and billing for group therapy. CMS has issued guidance to clarify that services
performed by a student are not reimbursed even if provided under “line of sight” supervision of the therapist.
Likewise, CMS has reiterated that Medicare does not pay for services provided by aides regardless of the level
of supervision. CMS also has issued instructions that outpatient physical and occupational therapy services
provided simultaneously to two or more individuals by a practitioner should be billed as group therapy services.

Payment for rehabilitation services furnished to patients of skilled nursing facilities has been affected by
the establishment of a Medicare prospective payment system and consolidated billing requirement for skilled
nursing facilities. The resulting pressure on skilled nursing facilities to reduce their costs by negotiating lower
payments to therapy providers, such as our contract therapy services, and the inability of the therapy providers
to bill the Medicare program directly for their services have tended to reduce the amounts that rehabilitation
providers can receive for services furnished to many skilled nursing facility residents.

Long-Term Acute Care Hospital Medicaid Reimbursement. The Medicaid program is designed to
provide medical assistance to individuals unable to afford care. The program is governed by the Social
Security Act of 1965 and administered and funded jointly by each individual state government and the
Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services. Medicaid payments are made under a number of different
systems, which include cost-based reimbursement, prospective payment systems or programs that negotiate
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payment levels with individual hospitals. In addition, Medicaid programs are subject to statutory and
regulatory changes, administrative rulings, interpretations of policy by the state agencies and certain
government funding limitations, all of which may increase or decrease the level of program payments to our
hospitals. Medicaid payments accounted for about 1.7% of our long-term acute care net operating revenues for
the year ended December 31, 2003.

Workers’ Compensation. Workers’ compensation programs accounted for approximately 19.0% of our
revenue from outpatient rehabilitation services for the year ended December 31, 2003. Workers’ compensation
is a state-mandated, comprehensive insurance program that requires employers to fund or insure medical
expenses, lost wages and other costs resulting from work-related injuries and illnesses. Workers’ compensation
benefits and arrangements vary on a state-by-state basis and are often highly complex. In some states,
payment for services covered by workers’ compensation programs are subject to cost containment features,
such as requirements that all workers’ compensation injuries be treated through a managed care program, or
the imposition of payment caps. In addition, these workers’ compensation programs may impose requirements
that affect the operations of our outpatient rehabilitation services.

Canadian Reimbursement

The Canada Health Act governs the publicly-funded Canadian healthcare system, and provides for
federal funding to be transferred to provincial health systems. Our Canadian outpatient rehabilitation clinics
receive approximately 46% of their funding through workers’ compensation benefits, which are administered
by provincial workers’ compensation boards. The workers’ compensation boards assess employers’ fees based
on their industry and past claims history. These fees are then distributed independently by each provincial
workers’ compensation board as payments for healthcare services. Therefore, the payments each of our
rehabilitation clinics receive for similar services can vary substantially because of the different payment
regulations in each province. Additional funding sources for our Canadian clinics are commercial insurance
programs, direct payment contribution and publicly funded health care sources. For the year ended
December 31, 2003, we derived about 3.6% of our total net operating revenues from our operations in Canada.

Other Healthcare Regulations

Fraud and Abuse Enforcement. Various federal laws prohibit the submission of false or fraudulent
claims, including claims to obtain payment under Medicare, Medicaid and other government healthcare
programs. Penalties for violation of these laws include civil and criminal fines, imprisonment and exclusion
from participation in federal and state healthcare programs. In recent years, federal and state government
agencies have increased the level of enforcement resources and activities targeted at the healthcare industry.
In addition, the federal False Claims Act allows an individual to bring lawsuits on behalf of the government, in
what are known as gui tam or “whistleblower” actions, alleging false or fraudulent Medicare or Medicaid
claims or other violations of the statute. The use of these private enforcement actions against healthcare
providers has increased dramatically in the recent past, in part because the individual filing the initial
complaint is entitled to share in a portion of any settiement or judgment.

From time to time, various federal and state agencies, such as the Department of Health and Human
Services, issue a variety of pronouncements, including fraud alerts, the Office of Inspector General’s Annual
Work Plan and other reports, identifying practices that may be subject to heightened scrutiny. These
pronouncements can identify issues relating to long-term acute care hospitals, inpatient rehabilitation facilities
or outpatient rehabilitation services or providers. For example, the Office of Inspector General’s 2004 Work
Plan describes the government’s intention to study providers’ use of the “hospital within a hospital” model for
furnishing long-term acute care hospital services and whether they comply with the five percent limitation on
discharges to the host hospital that are subsequently readmitted to the hospital within a hospital. We monitor
government publications applicable to us and focus a portion of our compliance efforts towards these areas
targeted for enforcement.

14




We endeavor to conduct our operations in compliance with applicable laws, including healthcare fraud
and abuse laws. If we identify any practices as being potentially contrary to applicable law, we will take
appropriate action to address the matter, including, where appropriate, disclosure to the proper authorities.

Remuneration and Fraud Measures. The federal “anti-kickback” statute prohibits some business
practices and relationships under Medicare, Medicaid and other federal healthcare programs. These practices
include the payment, receipt, offer or solicitation of money in connection with the referral of patients covered
by a federal or state healthcare program. Violations of the anti-kickback law may be punished by a criminal
fine of up to $50,000 or imprisonment for each violation, civil monetary penalties of $50,000 and damages of
up to three times the total amount of remuneration, and exclusion from participation in federal or state health
care programs.

Section 1877 of the Social Security Act, commonly known as the “Stark Law,” prohibits referrals for
designated health services by physicians under the Medicare and Medicaid programs to other healthcare
providers in which the physicians have an ownership or compensation arrangement unless an exception
applies. Sanctions for violating the Stark Law include civil monetary penalties of up to $15,000 per prohibited
service provided, assessments equal to twice the dollar value of each such service provided and exclusion from
the Medicare and Medicaid programs. The statute also provides a penalty of up to $100,000 for a
circumvention scheme. In addition, many states have adopted or may adopt similar anti-kickback or anti-self-
referral statutes. Some of these statutes prohibit the payment or receipt of remuneration for the referral of
patients, regardless of the source of the payment for the care.

Provider-based Status. The designation “provider-based” refers to circumstances in which a
subordinate facility (e.g., a separately-certified Medicare provider, a department of a provider or a satellite
facility) is treated as part of a provider for Medicare payment purposes. In these cases, the services of the
subordinate facility are included on the “main” provider’s cost report and overhead costs of the main provider
can be allocated to the subordinate facility, to the extent that they are shared. We operate 18 specialty
hospitals that are treated as provider-based satellites of certain of our other facilities, certain of our outpatient
rehabilitation services are operated as departments of our acute medical rehabilitation hospitals, and we
provide rehabilitation management and staffing services to hospital rehabilitation departments that may be
treated as provider-based. These facilities are required to satisfy certain operational standards in order to retain
their provider-based status.

Health Information Practices. In addition to broadening the scope of the fraud and abuse laws, the
Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, commonly known as HIPAA, also mandates,
among other things, the adoption of standards for the exchange of electronic health information in an effort to
encourage overall administrative simplification and enhance the effectiveness and efficiency of the healthcare
industry. If we fail to comply with the standards, we could be subject to criminal penalties and civil sanctions.
Among the standards that the Department of Health and Human Services has adopted or will adopt pursuant
to HIPAA are standards for the following:

+ electronic transactions and code sets;

» unique identifiers for providers, employers, health plans and individuals;
+ security and electronic signatures;

» privacy; and

« enforcement.

Although HIPAA was intended ultimately to reduce administrative expenses and burdens faced within the
healthcare industry, we believe the law will initially bring about significant and, in some cases, costly changes.

The Department of Health and Human Services has adopted standards in three areas that most affect our
operations. First, standards relating to clectronic transactions and code sets require the use of uniform
standards for common healthcare transactions, including healthcare claims information, plan eligibility,
referral certification and authorization, claims status, plan enrollment and disenrollment, payment and
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remittance advice, plan premium payments and coordination of benefits. We were required to comply with
these requirements by October 16, 2003,

Second, standards relating to the privacy of individually identifiably health information govern our use
and disclosure of protected health information, and require us to impose those rules, by contract, on any
business associate to whom such information is disclosed. We were required to comply with these standards by
April 14, 2003.

Third, standards for the security of electronic health information which were issued on February 20, 2003
require us to implement various administrative, physical and technical safeguards to ensure the integrity and
confidentiality of health information. We are required to comply with the security standards by April 21, 2005.

We maintain a HIPAA implementation committee that is charged with evaluating and implementing
HIPAA. The implementation committee monitors HIPAA’s regulations as they have been adopted to date
and as additional standards and modifications are adopted. At this time, we anticipate that we will be able to
fully comply with those HIPAA requirements that have been adopted. However, we cannot at this time
estimate the cost of such compliance, nor can we estimate the cost of compliance with standards that have not
yet been issued or finalized by the Department of Health and Human Services. Although the new health
information standards are likely to have a significant effect on the manner in which we handle health data and
communicate with payors, based on our current knowledge, we believe that the cost of our compliance will not
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations.

Employees

As of December 31, 2003, we employed approximately 20,800 people throughout the United States and
Canada. A total of approximately 12,800 of our employees are full-time and the remaining approximately
8,000 are part-time employees. Outpatient, contract therapy and physical rehabilitation and occupational
health employees totaled approximately 10,000 and inpatient employees totaled approximately 10,100. The
remaining approximately 700 employees were in corporate management, administration and other services.

Competition

We compete on the basis of pricing, the quality of the patient services we provide and the results that we
achieve for our patients. The primary competitive factors in the long-term acute care and acute medical
rehabilitation business include quality of services, charges for services and responsiveness to the needs of
patients, families, payors and physicians. Other companies operate long-term acute care hospitals and acute
medical rehabilitation hospitals that compete with our hospitals, including large operators of similar facilities,
such as Kindred Healthcare Inc. and HealthSouth Corporation. The competitive position of any hospital also
is affected by the ability of its management to negotiate contracts with purchasers of group healthcare services,
including private employers, managed care companies, preferred provider organizations and health mainte-
nance organizations. Such organizations attempt to obtain discounts from established hospital charges. The
importance of obtaining contracts with preferred provider organizations, health maintenance organizations and
other organizations which finance healthcare, and its effect on a hospital’s competitive position, vary from
market to market, depending on the number and market strength of such organizations.

Our outpatient rehabilitation clinics face competition principally from locally owned and managed
outpatient rehabilitation clinics in the communities they serve. Many of these clinics have longer operating
histories and greater name recognition in these communities than our clinics, and they may have stronger
relations with physicians in these communities on whom we rely for patient referrals. In addition, HealthSouth
Corporation, which operates more outpatient rehabilitation clinics in the United States than we do, competes
with us in a number of our markets.
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Compliance Program

Our Compliance Program

In late 1998, we voluntarily adopted our code of conduct, which has recently been amended and is the
basis for our company-wide compliance program. Our written code of conduct provides guidelines for
principles and regulatory rules that are applicable to our patient care and business activities. These guidelines
are implemented by a compliance officer, a director of compliance and a director of clinical compliance who
assist the compliance officer, a compliance committee and sub-committees, and employee education and
training. We also have established a reporting system, auditing and monitoring programs, and a disciplinary
system as a means for enforcing the code’s policies. See “Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the
Registrant-Code of Ethics”.

Operating Our Compliance Program

We focus on integrating compliance responsibilities with operational functions. We recognize that our
compliance with applicable laws and regulations depends upon individual employee actions as well as
company operations. As a result, we have adopted an operations team approach to compliance. Our corporate
executives, with the assistance of corporate experts, designed the programs of the compliance committee. We
utilize facility leaders for employee-level implementation of our code of conduct. This approach is intended to
reinforce our company-wide commitment to operate in accordance with the laws and regulations that govern
our business.

Compliance Committee

Our compliance committee is made up of members of our senior management and in-house counsel. The
compliance committee meets on a quarterly basis and reviews the activities, reports and operation of our
compliance program. In addition, the HIPAA committee meets on a regular basis to review compliance with
HIPAA regulations.

Compliance Issue Reporting

In order to facilitate our employees’ ability to report known, suspected or potential violations of our code
of conduct, we have developed a system of anonymous reporting. This anonymous reporting may be
accomplished through our toll-free compliance hotline or our compliance post office box. The compliance
officer and the compliance committee are responsible for reviewing and investigating each compliance incident
in accordance with the compliance department’s investigation policy.

Compliance Monitoring and Auditing/Comprehensive Training and Education

Monitoring reports and the results of compliance for each of our business divisions are reported to the
compliance committee on a quarterly basis. We train and educate our employees regarding the code of
conduct, as well as the legal and regulatory requirements relevant to each employee’s work environment. New
and current employees are required to sign a compliance certification form certifying that the employee has
read, understood, and has agreed to abide by the code of conduct.

Policies and Procedures Reflecting Compliance Focus Areas

We review our policies and procedures for our compliance program from to time to time in order to
improve operations and to ensure compliance with requirements of standards, laws and regulations and to
reflect the on-going compliance focus areas which have been identified by the compliance committee.

Internal Audit

In addition to and in support of the efforts of our compliance department, during 2001 we established an
internal audit function. The compliance officer also manages the combined Compliance and Audit Depart-
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ment and meets with the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis to discuss audit
results.

Availability of Reports and Other Information

Our Internet website address is www.selectmedicalcorp.com. Our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly
reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form §-K and all amendments to those reports filed by us with the
Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to sections 13(a) and 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended, are accessible free of charge through our website as soon as reasonably practicable after we
electronically file those documents with, or otherwise furnish them to, the Securities and Exchange
Commission.

In addition, our corporate governance guidelines, code of conduct and the charters for our audit,
compensation and nominating & governance committees of the board of directors are available on our Internet
website. These materials may also be obtained at no cost by contacting investor relations at (717) 972-1100.

Risk Factors

Our business involves a number of risks, some of which are beyond our control. The risks and
uncertainties we describe below are not the only ones we face. Additional risks and uncertainties that we do not
currently know or that we currently believe to be immaterial may also adversely affect our business.

If there are changes in the rates or methods of government reimbursements for our services, our net
operating revenues and net income could decline.

Approximately 46.0% of our net operating revenues for the year ended December 31, 2003 came from the
highly regulated federal Medicare program. In recent years, through legislative and regulatory actions, the
federal government has made substantial changes to various payment systems under the Medicare program.
Additional changes to these payment systems, including modifications to the conditions for qualification for
payment and the imposition of enroliment limitations on new providers, have been proposed or may be
proposed, both in Congress and by the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services, which may or may not
ultimately be adopted. Because of the possibility of adoption of these kinds of proposals, the availability,
methods and rates of Medicare reimbursements for services of the type furnished at our facilities could change
at any time. Some of these changes and proposed changes could affect our business strategy, operations and
financial results.

Our long-term acute care hospitals are certified by Medicare as long-term acute care hospitals. A new
Medicare prospective payment system has been established and is being implemented for long-term care
hospitals under which our long-term acute care hospitals are paid a fixed amount for each patient based on the
patient’s diagnosis. We will refer to this prospective payment system for long-term acute care hospitals as
“LTCH-PPS”. The new payment system is being phased in over five years during which an increasing
percentage of the payment amount for each Medicare patient will be based on the fixed amount and a lesser
percentage will be based on the prior reasonable cost-based system subject to caps, although facilities may
elect earlier to be paid solely on the basis of the fixed amounts. As of December 31, 2003, all of our long-term
acute care hospitals have converted to LTCH-PPS and elected to accelerate their adoption of LTCH-PPS and
be paid solely on the basis of long-term care diagnosis-related group payment rates, which we refer to as
“LTC-DRG”. There can be no assurance that reimbursements under the LTCH-PPS will fully reflect
increases in our long-term acute care hospital costs. See “— Government Regulations — Overview of U.S.
and State Government Reimbursements — Long-Term Acute Care Hospital Medicare Reimbursement.”

Since our acquisition of Kessler, we also operate four Medicare-certified inpatient rehabilitation facilities.
A Medicare prospective payment system, distinct from the system applicable to long-term acute care
hospitals, was recently implemented for inpatient rehabilitation facilities, which is referred to as IRF-PPS.
Under IRF-PPS, inpatient rehabilitation hospitals are paid a fixed amount for each patient based upon the
condition for which the patient is being treated. Under the IRF-PPS, each patient discharged from an
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inpatient rehabilitation facility is assigned to a case mix group, or “IRF-CMG,” containing patients with
similar clinical problems that are expected to require similar amounts of resources. There can be no assurance
that reimbursements under the IRF-PPS will fully reflect increases in our inpatient rehabilitation facility
costs. Kessler’s inpatient rehabilitation facilities began to be paid under IRF-PPS on January 1, 2002. See
“— Government Regulations — Overview of U.S. and State Government Reimbursements — Inpatient
Rehabilitation Facility Medicare Reimbursement.”

Our outpatient rehabilitation clinics receive payments from the Medicare program under a fee schedule.
Congress established annual caps, which were to go into effect January 1, 1999, that limit the amounts that are
paid (including deductible and coinsurance amounts) for outpatient therapy services rendered to any
Medicare beneficiary. Thereafter, Congress imposed a moratorium on the caps through 2002, and recently re-
imposed the moratorium for 2004 and 2005. Upon the expiration of the moratorium, we believe these therapy
caps could have an adverse effect on the revenue we generate from providing outpatient rehabilitation services
to Medicare beneficiaries, to the extent that such patients receive services with a cost in excess of the annual
caps. For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003, we received 8.7% of our outpatient rehabilitation net
operating revenues from Medicare. See “— Government Regulations — Overview of U.S. and State Govern-
ment Reimbursements — Outpatient Rehabilitation Services Medicare Reimbursement.”

Implementation of medifications to the admissions policies for our inpatient rehabilitation facilities as
required in order to achieve compliance with Medicare guidelines may result in a loss of patient volume
at these hospitals and, as a result, may reduce our future net operating revenues and profitability.

As of December 31, 2003, the four acute medical rehabilitation hospitals that we acquired from Kessler
were certified by Medicare as inpatient rehabilitation facilities. In order to be certified as inpatient
rehabilitation facilities, each Medicare provider (these facilities are certified as one provider) must demon-
strate that, during its most recent 12-month cost reporting period, it has served an inpatient population of
whom at least 75 percent required intensive rehabilitation services for one or more of ten specified conditions.
Recently, the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services proposed changes to this classification standard
which requires the provider to demonstrate that, during the most recent, consecutive and appropriate
12-month period, it has served an inpatient population of whom at least 65 percent required intensive
rehabilitation services for one or more of 12 specified conditions. In the past, the classification standard has
been enforced by Medicare contractors inconsistently, if at all, and the inpatient rehabilitation facilities we
acquired from Kessler may not have been operated in full compliance with the standard. Although the
proposed rule indicated that the revised classification standard would be enforced for cost reporting periods
beginning on or after the January I, 2004, Congress subsequently has directed additional study of the
classification standard and urged the postponement of enforcement pending completion of the studies. Once
enforcement begins, in order to achieve compliance with the classification standard, as it may be amended, it
may be necessary for us to implement more restrictive admissions policies at our inpatient rehabilitation
facilities for patients not falling within the specified conditions. Such policies may result in decreased patient
volumes, which could have a negative effect on the financial performance of these facilities. See “— Govern-
ment Regulations — Overview of U.S. and State Government Reimbursements — Inpatient Rehabilitation
Facility Medicare Reimbursement.”

If our long-term acute care hospitals fail to maintain their certification as long-term acute care hospitals
or fail to gualify as hospitals separate from their host hospitals, our profitability may decline.

As of December 31, 2003, 76 of our 83 specialty hospitals were certified by Medicare as long-term acute
care hospitals, and three more were in the process of becoming certified as Medicare long-term acute care
hospitals. If our long-term acute care hospitals fail to meet or maintain the standards for certification as long-
term acute care hospitals, such as average minimum length of patient stay, they will receive payments under
the prospective payment system applicable to general acute care hospitals rather than payment under the
system applicable to long-term care hospitals. Payments at rates applicable to general acute care hospitals
would likely result in our long-term acute care hospitals receiving less Medicare reimbursement than they
currently receive for their patient services. Moreover, nearly all of our long-term acute care hospitals are
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subject to additional Medicare criteria because they operate as separate hospitals located in space leased from,
and located in, a general acute care hospital, known as a host hospital. This is known as a “hospital within a
hospital” model. These additional criteria include limitations on services purchased from the host hospital and
other requirements concerning separateness from the host hospital. If several of our long-term acute care
hospitals were to be subject to payment as general acute care hospitals or fail to comply with the separateness
requirements, our profit margins would likely decrease. See “— Government Regulations — Overview of U.S,
and State Government Reimbursements — Long-Term Acute Care Hospital Medicare Reimbursement.”

We conduct business in a heavily regulated industry, and changes in regulations or violations of
regulations may result in increased costs or sanctions that reduce our net operating revenues and
profitability.

The healthcare industry is subject to extensive federal, state and local laws and regulations relating to:
+ facility and professional licensure, including certificates of need;

« conduct of operations, including financial relationships among healthcare providers, Medicare fraud
and abuse, and physician self-referral,

+ addition of facilities and services and enrollment of newly-developed facilities in the Medicare
program; and

+ payment for services.

Recently, there have been heightened coordinated civil and criminal enforcement efforts by both federal
and state government agencies relating to the healthcare industry, including the specialty hospital and
outpatient rehabilitation clinic businesses. The ongoing investigations relate to, among other things, various
referral practices, cost reporting, billing practices, physician ownership and joint ventures involving hospitals.
In the future, different interpretations or enforcement of these laws and regulations could subject our current
practices to allegations of impropriety or illegality or could require us to make changes in our facilities,
equipment, personnel, services and capital expenditure programs, increase our operating expenses and reduce
our operating revenues. If we fail to comply with these extensive laws and government regulations, we could
become ineligible to receive government program reimbursement, suffer civil or criminal penalties or be
required to make significant changes to our operations. In addition, we could be forced to expend considerable
resources responding to an investigation or other enforcement action under these laws or regulations. See
“— Government Regulations.”

We may not realize all of the anticipated benefits of the Kessler acquisition.

We may not be able to manage the combined operations and assets as effectively as anticipated or realize
all of the anticipated benefits from our acquisition of Kessler. The expansion of our business and operations
resulting from the acquisition of Kessler may strain our administrative and operational resources. This process
could create a number of potential challenges and adverse consequences for us, including the possible
unexpected loss of customers or suppliers, a possible loss of net operating revenues or an increase in operating
or other costs. These types of challenges and uncertainties could have an adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

Future acquisitions may use significant resources, may be unsuccessful and could expose us to unforeseen
liabilities.

As part of our growth strategy, we intend to pursue acquisitions of specialty hospitals and outpatient
rehabilitation clinics. Acquisitions may involve significant cash expenditures, debt incurrence, additional
operating losses, dilutive issuances of equity securities and expenses that could have a material adverse effect
on our financial condition and results of operations. Acquisitions involve numerous risks, including;

» the difficulty and expense of integrating acquired personnel into our business;

+ diversion of management’s time from existing operations;
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' » potential loss of key employees or customers of acquired companies; and

« assumption of the liabilities and exposure to unforeseen liabilities of acquired companies, including
liabilities for failure to comply with healthcare regulations.

We cannot assure you that we will succeed in obtaining financing for acquisitions at a reasonable cost, or
that such financing will not contain restrictive covenants that limit our operating flexibility. We also may be
unable to operate acquired hospitals and outpatient rehabilitation clinics profitably or succeed in achieving
improvements in their financial performance.

Future cost containment initiatives undertaken by private third party payors may limit our future net
operating revenues and profitability.

Initiatives undertaken by major insurers and managed care companies to contain healthcare costs affect
the profitability of our specialty hospitals and outpatient rehabilitation clinics. These payors attempt to control
healthcare costs by contracting with hospitals and other healthcare providers to obtain services on a discounted
basis. We believe that this trend may continue and may limit reimbursements for healthcare services. If
insurers or managed care companies from whom we receive substantial payments were to reduce the amounts
they pay for services, our profit margins may decline, or we may lose patients if we choose not to renew our
contracts with these insurers at lower rates.

If we fail to cultivate new or maintain established relationships with the physicians in our markets, our
net operating revenues may decrease.

Our success is, in part, dependent upon the admissions and referral practices of the physicians in the
communities our hospitals and our outpatient rehabilitation clinics serve, and our ability to maintain good
relations with these physicians. Physicians referring patients to our hospitals and clinics are generally not our
employees and, in many of the markets that we serve, most physicians have admitting privileges at other
hospitals and are free to refer their patients to other providers. If we are unable to successfully cultivate and
maintain strong relationships with these physicians, our hospitals’ admissions and clinics’ businesses may
decrease, and our net operating revenues may decline.

Shortages in qualified nurses could increase our operating costs significantly.

Our specialty hospitals are highly dependent on nurses for patient care. The availability of qualified nurses
nationwide has declined in recent years, and the salaries for nurses have risen accordingly. We cannot assure
you we will be able to attract and retain qualified nurses in the future. Additionally, the cost of attracting and
retaining nurses may be higher than we anticipate, and as a result, our profitability could decline.

Significant legal actions as well as the cost and possible lack of available insurance could subject us to
substantial uninsured liabilities.

In recent years, physicians, hospitals and other healthcare providers have become subject to an increasing
number of legal actions alleging malpractice, product liability or related legal theories. Many of these actions
involve large claims and significant defense costs. We are also subject to lawsuits under a federal whistleblower
statute designed to combat fraud and abuse in the healthcare industry. These lawsuits can involve significant
monetary damages and award bounties to private plaintiffs who successfully bring the suits.

We maintain professional malpractice liability insurance and general liability insurance coverage. As a
result of unfavorable pricing and availability trends in the professional liability insurance market and the
insurance market in general, the cost and risk sharing components of professional liability coverage have
changed dramatically. Many insurance underwriters have become more selective in the insurance limits and
types of coverage they will provide as a result of rising settlement costs and the significant failures of some
nationally known insurance underwriters. In some instances, insurance underwriters will no longer issue new
policies in certain states that have a history of high medical malpractice awards. As a result, we experienced
substantial changes in our medical and professional malpractice insurance program. Among other things, in
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order to cbtain malpractice insurance at a reasonable cost, we were required to assume substantial self-insured
retentions for our professional liability claims. A self-insured retention is a minimum amount of liability and
legal fees that we must pay for each claim. We use actuarial methods to determine the value of the losses that
may occur within this self-insured retention level. Pursuant to the requirements under our insurance
agreements, we are required to post letters of credit or set aside cash in a trust arrangement in an amount
equal to the estimated losses that we assumed for the 2003 and 2004 policy years. Because of the high
retention levels, we cannot predict with certainty the actual amount of the losses we will assume and pay. To
the extent that subsequent claims information varies from loss estimates, the liabilities will be adjusted to
reflect current loss data. There can be no assurance that in the future malpractice insurance will be available at
a reasonable price or that we will not have to further increase our levels of self-insurance. In addition, our
insurance coverage does not cover punitive damages and may not cover all claims against us. See “Item 3.
Legal Proceedings” and “— Government Regulations — Other Healthcare Regulations, and “Item 7.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Capital Re-
sources and Liquidity — Commitments and Contingencies.”

Restrictions imposed by our senior credit facility, the indentures governing our 9'2% senior subordinated
notes and our 7/:% senior subordinated notes limit our ability to engage in or enter into business,
operating and financing arrangements, which could prevent us from taking advantage of potentially
profitable business opportunities.

The operating and financial restrictions and covenants in our debt instruments, including our senior credit
facility, our 9Y:% senior subordinated notes and our 7'/2% senior subordinated notes, may affect adversely our
ability to finance our future operations or capital needs or engage in other business activities that may be in our
interest. For example, our senior credit facility restricts our ability to, among other things:

* incur additional debt;

* pay dividends in excess of certain amounts;

» make certain investments;

* incur or permit to exist certain liens;

 enter into transactions with affiliates;

» merge, consolidate or amalgamate with another company;
» transfer or otherwise dispose of assets;

+ redeem subordinated debt;

* incur capital expenditures; and

« incur contingent obligations.

The indentures governing our 9':% senior subordinated notes and our 7'2% senior subordinated notes
include similar restrictions. See “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations — Capital Resources and Liquidity.” While in the past we may have received waivers
from the lenders under our senior credit facility from compliance with certain of these restrictions and
covenants, there can be no assurance that we will receive any similar waivers in the future. The restrictions
under the indentures governing our 9!~:% senior subordinated notes and our 7'.% senior subordinated notes
may not be waived without the consent of the holders of those respective series of notes.

Competition may limit our ability to acquire hospitals and clinics and adversely affect our growth.

We have historically faced competition in acquiring specialty hospitals and outpatient rehabilitation
clinics, and we may face heightened competition in the future. Our competitors may acquire or seek to acquire
many of the hospitals and clinics that would be suitable candidates for us. This could limit our ability to grow
by acquisitions or make our cost of acquisitions higher and less profitable.
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If we fail to compete effectively with other hospitals, clinics and healthcare providers, our net operating
revenues and profitability may decline.

The healthcare business is highly competitive, and we compete with other hospitals, rehabilitation clinics
and other healthcare providers for patients. If we are unable to compete effectively in the specialty hospital
and outpatient rehabilitation businesses, our net operating revenues and profitability may decline. Many of our
specialty hospitals operate in geographic areas where we compete with at least one other hospital that provides
similar services. Our outpatient rehabilitation clinics face competition from a variety of local and national
outpatient rehabilitation providers. Other outpatient rehabilitation clinics in markets we serve may have
greater name recognition and longer operating histories than our clinics. The managers of these clinics may
also have stronger relationships with physicians in their communities, which could give them a competitive
advantage for patient referrals.

Item 2. Properties

We currently lease most of our facilities, including clinics, offices, specialty hospitals and the corporate
headquarters. We own each of our acute medical rehabilitation hospitals, our skilled nursing facility and our
176,000 square foot long-term acute care hospital located in Houston, Texas.

We lease all of our clinics and related offices, which, as of December 31, 2003, included 790 outpatient
rehabilitation clinics throughout the United States and Canada. The outpatient rehabilitation clinics generally
have a five-year lease term and include options to renew. We also lease all of our long-term acute care hospital
facilities except for the facility located in Houston, Texas that is described above. As of December 31, 2003,
we had 75 hospital within a hospital leases and three freestanding building leases.

We generally seek a five-year lease for our long-term acute care hospitals, with an additional five-year
renewal at our option. We lease our corporate headquarters from companies owned by a related party affiliated
with us through common ownership or management. Our corporate headquarters is approximately
79,000 square feet and is located in Mechanicsburg, Pennsylvania. On February 10, 2004, our board of
directors approved our leasing of an additional 5,015 square feet of office space in the same office complex.
This approval is subject to our receipt of satisfactory independent appraisals regarding the market value of the
leased space. We lease several other administrative spaces related to administrative and operational support
functions. As of December 31, 2003, this comprised 23 locations throughout the U.S. with approximately
169,000 square feet in total.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

In February 2002, PHICO, at the request of the Pennsylvania Insurance Department, was placed in
liquidation by an order of the Commonwealth Court of Pennsylvania. The Company had placed its primary
malpractice insurance coverage through PHICO from June 1998 through December 2000. In January 2001,
these policies were replaced by policies issued with other insurers. As of December 31, 2003, the Company
had approximately ten unsettled cases in eight states from the policy years covered by PHICO issued policies.
The liquidation order referred these claims to the various state guaranty associations. These state guaranty
association statutes generally provide for coverage between $100,000-$300,000 per insured claim, depending
upon the state. Some states also have catastrophic loss funds to cover losses in excess of the available state
guaranty funds. Most state insurance guaranty statutes provide for net worth and residency limitations that, if
applicable, may limit or prevent the Company from recovering from these state guaranty association funds. At
this time, the Company believes that it will meet the requirements for coverage under most of the applicable
state guarantee association statutes, and that the resolution of these claims will not have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s financial position, cash flow or results of operations. However, because the rules
related to state guaranty association funds are subject to interpretation, and because these claims are still in
the process of resolution, the Company’s conclusions may change as this process progresses.

In addition, as part of our business, we are subject to legal actions alleging liability on our part. To cover
claims arising out of the operations of our hospitals and outpatient rehabilitation facilities, we maintain
professional malpractice liability insurance (subject to the above description regarding PHICQ) and general
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liability insurance. We also maintain umbrella liability coverage covering claims which, due to their nature or
amount, are not covered by our insurance policies. These insurance policies also do not cover punitive
damages. See “Item 1. Business — Risk Factors — Significant legal actions as well as the cost and possible
lack of available insurance could subject us to substantial uninsured liabilities.”

In recent years, physicians, hospitals and other healthcare providers have become subject to an increasing
number of legal actions alleging malpractice, product liability or related legal theories. Many of these actions
involve large claims and significant defense costs. We are also subject to lawsuits under a federal whistleblower
statute designed to combat fraud and abuse in the healthcare industry. These lawsuits can involve significant
monetary damages and award bounties to private plaintiffs who successfully bring the suits.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

There were no matters submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter ended
December 31, 2003, or through the date of this filing.

PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

Since August 28, 2002, our common stock has been listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the
symbol “SEM.” Prior to that time, our common stock was quoted on The Nasdaq National Market under the
symbol “SLMC.” Prior to our initial public offering on April 5, 2001, there was no public market for our
common stock. As of February 27, 2004, there were approximately 126 record holders and 12,845 beneficial
holders of our common stock.

The following table sets forth, on a quarterly basis, the highest and lowest sale price for our common
stock for the years ended December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2003 as reported by The Nasdaq National
Market or the New York Stock Exchange, respectively. The information provided in the table has been
restated to reflect a 2-for-1 stock split, in the form of a 100% stock dividend, to each of our stockholders of
record as of the close of business on December 5, 2003.

High Low

2002

Quarter:

FarSt . $ 8.050 $ 5.900
SECOMA. . oo $ 8.600 8 6.565
Third .. e e $ 8.075 § 5.800
Fourth ... o $ 7700 § 5.920
2003

Quarter

Farst oo e $ 7.620 § 6.265
SECONd. .. $12.415 $ 6.735
Third .. oo $15.875  $12.350
Fourth ... . e $18.375  $14.360

On November 25, 2003, our board of directors declared an initial cash dividend of $0.06 per share
payable on December 29, 2003 to our stockholders of record at the close of business on December 5, 2003. On
a split-adjusted basis, the cash dividend amounted to $0.03 per share. On February 11, 2004, our board of
directors also declared a cash dividend of $0.03 per share payable on or about March 19, 2004 to our
stockholders of record at the close of business on February 27, 2004. Prior to our initial cash dividend declared
in November 2003, we did not pay dividends on our common stock.
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The board of directors will periodically reconsider the declaration of dividends, and dividends will only be
paid when and if declared by the board of directors. The continuation and the amount of such dividends will
depend upon our results of operations, our financial condition and other factors which the board of directors
deems relevant. Our current debt instruments contain certain restrictive covenants, including limitations on
the amount of dividends we may declare and pay on our common stock. See the applicable discussion under
“Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations —
Liquidity and Capital Resources” and Note 6 to Select Medical Corporation’s consolidated financial
statements.

On February 23, 2004, our Board of Directors authorized a program to repurchase up to $30.0 million of
our common stock. The program will remain in effect until August 31, 2005, unless extended by our Board of
Directors. The extent to which we repurchase our shares and the timing of any purchases will depend on
prevailing market conditions and other corporate considerations. We anticipate funding this program with
available corporate funds, including cash on hand and future cash flow.

Item 6. Selected Consolidated Financial Data

You should read the following selected consolidated historical financial data in conjunction with our
consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes. You should also read “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” All of these materials are
contained in this report. The data as of December 31, 1999, 2000, 2001, 2002 and 2003 and for the years ended
December 31, 1999, 2000, 2001, 2002 and 2003 have been derived from our audited consolidated financial
statements.

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
(In thousands, except per share data)

Consolidated Statement of
Operations Data

Net operating revenues. ............... $1,396,773  $1,126,559 $958,956  $805,897 § 455,975
Operating expenses(a) ................ 1,211,602 999,280 846,938 714,227 413,731
Depreciation and amortization. ......... 34,957 25,836 32,290 30,401 16,741
Special charge(b) .................... — — — — 5,223
Income from operations . .............. 150,214 101,443 79,728 61,269 20,280
Loss on early retirement of debt(c) ..... — — (14,223) (6,247) (5,814)
Equity in earnings from joint ventures . .. 824 — — — —
Interest expense, net.................. (25,404) (26,614)  (29,209)  (35,187) (21,099)
Income (loss) before minority interests

and income taxes. .................. 125,634 74,829 36,296 19,835 (6,633)
Minority interests(d) ................. 2,402 2,022 3,491 4,144 3,662
Income (loss) before income taxes. .. ... 123,232 72,807 32,805 15,691 (10,295)
Income tax provision ................. 48,761 28,576 3,124 9,979 2,811
Net income (loss) ................... 74,471 44,231 29,681 5,712 (13,106)
Less: Preferred dividends .............. — — 2,513 8,780 5,175
Net income (loss) available to common

stockholders . ...................... $ 74471 § 44231 $ 27,168 § (3,068) $ (18,281)
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Net income (loss) per common share:
Basic:
Net income (loss) per common
share
Diluted:

Net income (loss) per common
share

Weighted average common shares
outstanding(e):

Diluted
Cash dividends paid
Cash dividends per share
Other Data
EBITDA(f)
EBITDA as a % of net revenue

Cash flow data

Cash flow provided by (used in)
operating activities

Cash flow provided by (used in)
investing activities

Cash flow provided by (used in)
financing activities. ...............

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data
Cash and cash equivalents

Working capital ................
~ Total assets
Total debt
Preferred stock

Total stockholders’ equity

(a)
(b)
(c)

Year Ended December 31,

Reflects asset impairments of $5.2 million in 1999.

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
(In thousands, except per share data)
$ 076 $ 048 S 034 $ (0.06) $ (0.37)
$ 072 $ 045 $ 031 $ (0.06) $ (0.37)
97,452 92,928 79,915 50,914 49,114
103,991 98,256 90,929 50,914 49,114
$ 3,066 — — — —
0.03 — — — —
$ 183,593 $ 125257 $ 94,304 $ 81,279 $ 27,545
13.1% 11.1% 9.8% 10.1% 6.0%
$ 246,248 $§ 120,812 $ 95770 § 22,513 $ (25,157)
(261,452)  (54,048)  (61,947) 14,197  (181,262)
124,318 (21,423)  (26,164)  (37,616) 197,480
As of December 31,
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
(In thousands)
$ 165,507 §$ 56,062 §$ 10,703 $ 3,151 $§ 4,067
188,380 130,621 126,749 105,567 132,598
1,078,998 739,059 650,845 586,800 620,718
367,503 260,217 288,423 302,788 340,821
_ - — 129,573 120,804
419,175 286,418 234,284 48,498 49,437

Operating expenses include cost of services, general and administrative expenses, and bad debt expenses.

Reflects the write-off of deferred financing costs that resulted from the refinancing of our senior credit

facilities in November 1999 and September 2000. Also reflects the write-off of deferred financing costs
and discounts resulting from the repayment of indebtedness with the proceeds from our initial public
offering in April 2001 and the 9%2% senior subordinated notes offering in June 2001.

(d)

owned and controlled by us.

(e)

Medical Corporation’s consolidated financial statements.
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(f) We define EBITDA as net income (loss) before interest, income taxes, depreciation and amortization.
We believe that the presentation of EBITDA is important to investors because EBITDA is commonly
used as an analytical indicator of performance by investors within the healthcare industry. EBITDA is not
a measure of financial performance under generally accepted accounting principles. Items excluded from
EBITDA are significant components in understanding and assessing financial performance. EBITDA
should not be considered in isolation or as an alternative to, or substitute for, net income, cash flows
generated by operations, investing or financing activities, or other financial statement data presented in
the consolidated financial statements as indicators of financial performance or liquidity. Because
EBITDA is not a measurement determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
and is susceptible to varying calculations, EBITDA as presented may not be comparable to other
similarly titled measures of other companies.

The following table reconciles EBITDA to net income {loss) for the periods indicated:
Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
(In thousands)
EBITDA ... ... ... ... ... ..., $183,593  $125,257 $ 94,304 $ 81,279 § 27,545
Depreciation and amortization. . . ... (34,957)  (25,836)  (32,290) (30,401) (1s6,741)
Interest income .................. 936 596 507 939 362
Interest expense. . ................ (26,340)  (27,210)  (29,716)  (36,126)  (21,461)
Income tax expense .............. (48,761)  (28,576) (3,124) (9,979) (2,811)
Net income (loss) ............... $ 74471 $ 44231 $ 29,681 § 5712  $(13,106)

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Overview

We are a leading operator of specialty hospitals in the United States. We are also a leading operator of
outpatient rehabilitation clinics in the United States and Canada. As of December 31, 2003, we operated 79
long-term acute care hospitals in 24 states, four acute medical rehabilitation hospitals in New Jersey and 790
outpatient rehabilitation clinics in 29 states, the District of Columbia and seven Canadian provinces. We also
provide medical rehabilitation services on a contract basis at nursing homes, assisted living and senior care
centers, schools and worksites. We began operations in 1997 under the leadership of our current management
team.

We manage the company through two business segments, our specialty hospital segment and our
outpatient rehabilitation segment. For the year ended December 31, 2003, we had net operating revenues of
$1,396.8 million. Of this total, we earned approximately 61% of our net operating revenues from our specialty
hospitals and approximately 38% from our outpatient rehabilitation businesses.

Our specialty hospital segment consists of hospitals designed to serve the needs of long-term stay acute
patients and hospitals designed to serve patients that require intensive medical rehabilitation care. Patients in
our long-term acute care hospitals typically suffer from serious and often complex medical conditions that
require a high degree of care. Patients in our acute medical rehabilitation hospitals typically suffer from
debilitating injuries, including traumatic brain and spinal cord injuries, and require rehabilitation care in the
form of physical, psychological, social and vocational rehabilitation services. Our outpatient rehabilitation
business consists of clinics and contract services that provide physical, occupational and speech rehabilitation
services. Our outpatient rehabilitation patients are typically diagnosed with musculoskeletal impairments that
restrict their ability to perform normal activities of daily living,

In 2003 our net operating revenues increased 24.0%, income from operations increased 48.1%, net income
increased 68.4% and diluted earnings per share increased 60.0% over 2002. Our specialty hospital segment was
the primary source of this growth. In our specialty hospital segment we experienced growth resulting from the
expansion of the number of hospitals we operate, the addition of the Kessler acquired hospitals and an increase
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in our revenue per patient day. Our outpatient segment experienced growth in net operating revenues but
experienced a decline in income from operations that resulted primarily from the acquisition of the Kessler
clinics, which have historically experienced lower income from operations, and changes in the economic
environment that are reducing the number of therapy visits. These macro-economic trends affecting therapy
visit volumes include increasing patient co-pays and a decline in the number of approved visits for a patient.

We also experienced significant cash flow from operations resulting from our growth in net income and a
significant reduction in accounts receivable days outstanding. During 2003 we completed the acquisition of
Kessler, transitioned our long-term acute care hospitals to a new Medicare payment system, implemented a
2-for-1 stock split and commenced a cash dividend program. Additional explanation and analysis of these
topics are found in the following discussion.

The following table sets forth operating statistics for our specialty hospitals and our outpatient
rehabilitation clinics for each of the periods presented. The data in the table reflect the changes in the number
of specialty hospitals and outpatient rehabilitation clinics we operate that resulted from acquisitions, start-up
activities and closures. The operating statistics reflect data for the period of time these operations were
managed by us.

2003 2002 2001
Specialty Hospital Data
# of Hospitals — Start of Period . ................. 72 64 54
# of Hospitals Acquired . ...................... 4 — —
# of Hospital Start-ups . . ...................... 8 8 10
# of Hospitals Closed ......................... (1) — —
# of Hospitals — End of Period. .................. 83 72 64
#of Licensed Beds .............. ... ... ....... 3,204 2,594 2,307
# of Admissions. . ... ot 27,620 21,065 17,416
# of Patient Days ....... ..o, 722,231 619,322 519,297
Net Revenue Per Patient Day(a) ................. $ 1,173 8 1,009 968
Occupancy Rate . ............ ... ... ... ........ 70% 71% 68%
% Patient Days — Medicare .. .................... 76% 76% 75%
Outpatient Rehabilitation Data
# of Clinics Owned — Start of Period ........... .. 679 664 636
# of Clinics Acquired ............. .. ... ...... 125 14 32
# of Clinic Start-ups............. .. ..., 30 49 4]
# of Clinics Closed/Sold/Consolidated .......... (76) (48) (45)
# of Clinics Owned — End of Period .............. 758 679 664
# of Clinics Managed — End of Period ............ 32 58 53
Total # of Clinics (All) — End of Period .......... 790 737 717
#of Visits (US.) ... .o o 4,027,768 3,841,841 3,774,042
Net Revenue Per Visit (U.S)(b) ................. $ 87 $ 86 % 82

(a) Net revenue per patient day is calculated by dividing specialty hospital patient service revenues by the
total number of patient days.

{(b) Net revenue per visit is calculated by dividing outpatient rehabilitation clinic revenue by the total number
of visits, For purposes of this computation, outpatient rehabilitation clinic revenue does not include our
Canadian subsidiary and contract services revenue.
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Development of New Specialty Hospitals and Clinics

Our goal-is to open approximately eight to ten new long-term acute care hospitals each year, utilizing
primarily our “hospital within a hospital” model. We also may open new specialty hospitals in freestanding
buildings. We internally developed ten hospitals in 2001 and eight hospitals in each of 2002 and 2003. All of
the eight hospitals we opened in 2003 utilized our “hospital within a hospital” model. Each internally
developed hospital has typically required approximately $3.5 million over the initial year of operations to fund
leasehold improvements, equipment, start-up losses and working capital. We also intend to open new
outpatient rehabilitation clinics in our current markets where we can benefit from existing referral relation-
ships and brand awareness to produce incremental growth. With the acquisition of the four acute medical
rehabilitation hospitals through the Kessler transaction, we are also evaluating the opportunities to develop
additional freestanding acute medical rehabilitation hospitals.

The Kessler Acquisition

On September 2, 2003, we completed the acquisition of all the outstanding stock of Kessler Rehabilita-
tion Corporation from the Henry H. Kessler Foundation, Inc. for $228.3 million in cash, and $1.7 million of
assumed indebtedness. Through its acute medical rehabilitation hospitals and network of outpatient clinics,
Kessler is one of the nation’s leading providers of comprehensive rehabilitation care and physical medicine
services. We have included the operations of Kessler’s four acute medical rehabilitation hospitals and one
skilled nursing facility in our specialty hospitals segment. Kessler’s outpatient clinics and onsite contract
rehabilitation services have been included in our outpatient rehabilitation segment. Kessler’s other services,
which include sales of home medical equipment, orthotics, prosthetics and infusion/intravenous services and
corporate support costs, have been included under the other category. The results of operations of Kessler have
been included in our consolidated financial statements since September 1, 2003.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

The SEC recently adopted rules regarding the use of non-GAAP financial measures, such as EBITDA
and Adjusted EBITDA, which we use in this report. Prior to the quarter ended June 30, 2003, we had defined
EBITDA as net income (loss) before interest, income taxes, depreciation and amortization, special charges,
loss on early retirement of debt and minority interest, and used this measure to report our consolidated
operating results as well as our segment results. We are now referring to this financial measure as Adjusted
EBITDA. In order to comply with the new rules, we are now using EBITDA, defined as net income (loss)
before interest, income taxes, depreciation and amortization, to report our consolidated operating results.
However, SFAS 131 requires us to report our segment results in a manner consistent with management’s
internal reporting of operating results to our chief operating decision maker (as defined under SFAS 131) for
purposes of evaluating segment performance. Thercfore, since we use Adjusted EBITDA to measure
performance of our segments for internal reporting purposes, we have used Adjusted EBITDA to report our
segment results. The difference between EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA for the periods presented in this
report result from loss on early retirement of debt, equity in earnings from joint ventures and minority
interests, which are added back to EBITDA in the computation of Adjusted EBITDA.

Critical Accounting Matters
Sources of Revenue

Our net operating revenues are derived from a number of sources, including commercial, managed care,
private and governmental payors. Our net operating revenues include amounts estimated by management to be
reimbursable from each of the applicable payors and the federal Medicare program. Amounts we receive for
treatment of patients are generally less than the standard billing rates. We account for the differences between
the estimated reimbursement rates and the standard billing rates as contractual adjustments, which we deduct
from gross revenues to arrive at net operating revenues.

Net operating revenues generated directly from the Medicare program represented approximately 46%,
40% and 37% of net operating revenues for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
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The gradual increase in the percentage of our revenues generated from the Medicare program is due to the
growth in the number of specialty hospitals and their higher respective share of Medicare revenues generated
in this segment of our business compared to our outpatient rehabilitation segment.

Approximately 69%, 63% and 61% of our specialty hospital revenues for the years ended December 31,
2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, were received in respect of services provided to Medicare patients. Of this
amount, approximately 23%, 92% and 98%, respectively were paid by Medicare under a full cost-based
reimbursement methodology. These payments are subject to final cost report settlements based on administra-
tive review and audit by third parties. An annual cost report is filed for each provider to report the cost of
providing services and to settle the difference between the interim payments we receive and final costs. We
record adjustments to the original estimates in the periods that such adjustments become known. Historically
these adjustments have not been significant. Substantially all of our Medicare cost reports are settled through
2000. Because our routine payments from Medicare are different than the final reimbursement due to us under
the cost based reimbursement system, we record a receivable or payable from third party payors on our
balance sheet for the difference.

On August 30, 2002, the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (“CMS”) published final
regulations establishing a prospective payment system for Medicare payment of long-term acute care hospitals
(“LTCH-PPS”), which replaces the reasonable cost-based payment system previously in effect. Under
LTCH-PPS, each discharged patient will be assigned to a distinct long-term care diagnosis-related group
(“LTC-DRG”), and a long-term acute care hospital will generally be paid a pre-determined fixed amount
applicable to the assigned LTC-DRG (adjusted for area wage differences). As required by Congress, LTC-
DRG payment rates have been set to maintain budget neutrality with total expenditures that would have been
made under the previous reasonable cost-based payment system.

LTCH-PPS is being phased in over a five-year transition period, during which a long-term acute care
hospital’s payment for each Medicare patient will be a blended amount consisting of set percentages of the
LTC-DRG payment rate and the hospital’s reasonable cost-based reimbursement. The LTC-DRG payment
rate is 20% for a hospital’s cost reporting period beginning on or after October 1, 2002, and will increase by
20% for each cost reporting period thereafter until the hospital’s cost reporting period beginning on or after
October 1, 2006, when the hospital will be paid solely on the basis of LTC-DRG payment rates. A long-term
acute care hospital may elect to be paid solely on the basis of LTC-DRG payment rates (and not be subject to
the transition period) at the start of any of its cost reporting periods during the transition period.

At December 31, 2002, 13 of our long-term acute care hospitals had implemented LTCH-PPS pursuant
to the new regulations. As of December 31, 2003, all 76 of our eligible hospitals have implemented LTCH-
PPS. We have elected to be paid solely on the basis of LTC-DRG payments for all 76 of those hospitals. The
remaining three hospitals are currently in their qualification period and will be paid under LTCH-PPS upon
obtaining their long-term acute care hospital certification.

The LTCH-PPS regulations also refined the criteria that must be met in order for a hospital to be
certified as a long-term acute care hospital. For cost reporting periods beginning on or after October 1, 2002, a
long-term acute care hospital must have an average inpatient length of stay for Medicare patients (including
both Medicare covered and non-covered days) of greater than 25 days. Previously, average lengths of stay
were measured with respect to all patients.

While the implementation of LTCH-PPS is intended to be revenue neutral to the industry, our long-term
acute care hospitals experienced enhanced financial performance in 2003 due to our low cost operating model
and the high acuity of our patient population.

Most of our specialty hospitals receive bi-weekly periodic interim payments (“PIP”) from Medicare
instead of on an individual claim basis. Under a PIP payment methodology, Medicare estimates a hospital’s
claim volume based on historical trends and periodically reconciles the differences between the actual claim
data and the estimated payments. At each balance sheet date, we record the difference between our actual
claims and the PIP payments as a receivable or payable from third party payors on our balance sheet.
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As of December 31, 2003 and 2002 we had a net amount due to Medicare of $33.9 million and
$7.3 million, related to our specialty hospitals. We recorded this amount as due to third party payors on our
balance sheet.

In 2001 and 2002, “other revenue” primarily represented amounts the Medicare program reimbursed us
for a portion of our corporate expenses that are related to our long-term acute care hospital operations. Under
the LTCH-PPS, we will no longer be specifically reimbursed for the portion of our corporate costs related to
the provision of Medicare services in our long-term acute care hospitals. Instead, we will receive from
Medicare a pre-determined fixed amount assigned to the applicable LTC-DRG, which is intended to reflect
the average cost of treating such a patient, including corporate costs. As a result of this change in our revenue
stream, in 2003 we began allocating corporate departmental costs that are directly related to our long-term
acute care hospital operations to our specialty hospital segment to better match the cost with the revenues for
this segment. This allocation has not had any adverse impact on the profitability or margins of this segment,
due to the expected increase in net revenue this segment has experienced under LTCH-PPS. In addition to
the Medicare revenue we recorded in 2003, we also reported as “other revenue” amounts we received for other
services, which include sales of home medical equipment, orthotics, prosthetics and infusion/intravenous
services. These other services were acquired as part of our acquisition of Kessler.

Insurance

Under a number of our insurance programs, which include our employee health insurance program and
certain components under our property and casualty insurance program, we are liable for a portion of our
losses. In these cases we accrue for our losses under an occurrence based principal whereby we estimate the
losses that will be incurred by us in a respective accounting period and accrue that estimated liability. Where
we have substantial exposure, we utilize actuarial methods in estimating the losses. In cases where we have
minimal exposure, we will estimate our losses by analyzing historical trends. We monitor these programs
quarterly and revise our estimates as necessary to take into account additional information. At December 31,
2003 and 2002, we have recorded a liability of $29.8 million and $19.2 miliion, respectively, for our estimated
losses under these insurance programs.

Bad Debts

We estimate our bad debts based upon the age of our accounts receivable and our historical collection
percentages. These estimates are sensitive to changes in the economy that affect our customers.

Related Party

We are party to various rental and other agreements with companies affiliated with us through common
ownership. Our payments to these related parties amounted to $1.5 million, $1.4 million and $1.2 million in
2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Our future commitments are related to commercial office space that we
lease for our corporate headquarters in Mechanicsburg, Pennsylvania. These future commitments amount to
approximately $19.4 million through 2014. These transactions and commitments are described more fully in
Note 16 to Select Medical Corporation’s consolidated financial statements.
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Results of Operations

The following table outlines, for the periods indicated, selected operating data as a percentage of net
operating revenues.

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001

Net operating TeVENUES . . .. ..o i ittt e e e 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Costof services(a) . ...t e e 79.9 81.9 81.0
General and administrative ........ ... ... i 3.2 35 3.7
Bad debt expense ... 0. . . 3.7 33 3.6
Depreciation and amortization. . ........ ... ... . o i i 2.5 2.3 3.4
Income from Operations .. ...........covuiiiininin e 10.7 9.0 8.3
Loss on early retirement of debt .. ........... ... ... .. oL — — (1.5)
Equity in earnings from joint ventures . ...............ccvviinien.... 0.1 — —
Interest eXpense, Met. .. ... ..ottt (L.8) (24) (3.0)
Income before minority interests and income taxes .................. 9.0 6.6 3.8
Minority interests .................. P 0.2 0.2 0.4
Income before income taxes ............. ... i .. 8.8 6.4 34
Income tax. . ... . o 3.5 2.5 0.3
Net INCOME . ..o e e e e e e 5.3%  35% 3.1%

The following table summarizes selected financial data by business segment, for the periods indicated.
Year Ended December 31,

Increase Increase
(Decrease) (Decrease)
2003 : 2002 2001 2002-2003 2001-2002

(Dollars in thousands)

Net operating revenues:

Specialty hospitals .......... $ 853,668 $§ 625,238 $503,021 36.5% 24.3%
Outpatient rehabilitation . . ... 529,262 485,101 440,791 9.1 10.1
Other..................... 13,843 16,220 15,144 (14.7) 7.1
Total company ............. $1,396,773  $1,126,559  $958,956 24.0% 17.5%
Income (loss) from operations:
Specialty hospitals .......... $ 130,276 $ 57,975 § 46,472 124.7% 24.8%
Outpatient rehabilitation .. ... 60,778 70,342 60,790 (13.6) 15.7
Other..................... (40,840) (26,874)  (27,534) (52.0) 2.4
Total company ............. $ 150,214 $ 101,443 $ 79,728 48.1% 27.2%
Adjusted EBITDA:(b)
Specialty hospitals .......... $ 146,367 $ 70,891 $ 57,556 106.5% 23.2%
Outpatient rehabilitation . . . . . 74,988 81,136 76,127 (7.6) 6.6
Other..................... (36,184) (24,748)  (21,665) (46.2) (14.2)
Adjusted EBITDA margins:(b)
Specialty hospitals .......... 171% 11.3% 11.4% 51.3% 0.9)%
Outpatient rehabilitation . .. .. 14.2 16.7 17.3 (15.0) (3.5)
Other ..................... NM NM NM NM NM
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Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
(Dollars in thousands)

Total assets:

Specialty hospitals. .. ............ ... .o il $ 512,956 $§ 332,737 $303,910
Outpatient rehabilitation .......................... 365,534 326,763 318,224
Other ... 200,508 79,559 28,711
Total cComMPany. ...ttty $1,078,998 § 739,059  $650,845
Capital expenditures: v
Specialty hospitals. . .......... .. ... . $ 22,559 § 28,791 § 13,452
Outpatient rehabilitation .......................... 8,514 12,637 8,800
Other ... 4,779 1,755 1,759
Total COmPANY. .. ..ottt $ 35852 § 43,183 § 24,011

The following tables reconcile net income to EBITDA for the Company, and provides the calculation of
our EBITDA margin for each of the periods presented.

Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
(Dollars in thousands)
NEtINCOMIE .ot i et e e $ 74471 $§ 44231 § 29,681
Income tax €Xpense ..........coeuiiiiiiiiii 48,761 28,576 3,124
Interest expense, net...........ccuiiiieninnenenn... 25,404 26,614 29,209
Depreciation and amortization........................ 34,957 25,836 32,290
EBITDA(b) ... $ 183,593 § 125257 $ 94,304
Net TeVeNUE . . ... i e e it $1,396,773  $1,126,559  $958,956
EBITDA margin(b) ..., 13.1% 11.1% 9.8%

The following table reconciles same hospitals information.

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002
(Dollars in thousands)

Net Operating Revenue

Specialty hospitals net operating revenue ..................... e $853,668  $625,238
Less: Specialty hospitals opened and acquired after 1/1/02............. 125,332 6,480
Closed specialty hospital ......... ... ... i i, 1,537 4,636
Specialty hospitals same store net operating revenue .................. $726,799  $614,122
Adjusted EBITDA Specialty hospitals Adjusted EBITDA ............. $146,367 $ 70,891
Less: Specialty hospitals opened and acquired after 1/1/02............. 22,134 (5,829)
Closed specialty hospital ............. ..o i i, 206 143
Specialty hospitals same store Adjusted EBITDA..................... $124,027 § 76,577
All specialty hospitals Adjusted EBITDA margin ..................... 17.1% 11.3%
Specialty hospitals same store Adjusted EBITDA margin .............. 17.1% 12.5%

33



Year Ended December 31,
2002 2001
(Dollars in thousands)

Net Operating Revenue

Specialty hospitals net operating revenue ............... ...t $625,238  $503,021
Less: Specialty hospitals opened and acquired after 1/1/01............. 76,080 11,380
Specialty hospitals same store net operating revenue .................. $549,158  $491,641
Adjusted EBITDA

Specialty hospitals Adjusted EBITDA ......... .. ... ... . ... .... $ 70,891 § 57,556
Less: Specialty hospitals opened and acquired after 1/1/01............. (2,823) {(5,181)
Specialty hospitals same store Adjusted EBITDA..................... $ 73,714  § 62,737
All specialty hospitals Adjusted EBITDA margin ..................... 11.3% 11.4%
Specialty hospitals same store Adjusted EBITDA margin .............. 13.4% 12.8%

NM — Not Meaningful.

{a) Cost of services include salaries, wages and benefits, operating supplies, lease and rent expense and other
operating costs.

(b) We define Adjusted EBITDA as net income before interest, income taxes, depreciation and amortization,
loss on early retirement of debt, equity in income from joint ventures and minority interest. Loss on early
retirement of debt, equity in income from joint ventures and minority interest is then deducted from
Adjusted EBITDA to derive EBITDA. We believe that the presentation of EBITDA is important to
investors because EBITDA is commonly used as an analytical indicator of performance by investors
within the healthcare industry. Adjusted EBITDA is used by management to evaluate financial
performance and determine resource allocation for each of our operating units. EBITDA and Adjusted
EBITDA are not measures of financial performance under generally accepted accounting principles.
Items excluded from EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA are significant components in understanding and
assessing financial performance. EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA should not be considered in isolation
or as an alternative to, or substitute for, net income, cash flows generated by operations, investing or
financing activities, or other financial statement data presented in the consolidated financial statements as
indicators of financial performance or liquidity. Because EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA are not
measurements determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and are thus
susceptible to varying calculations, EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA as presented may not be compara-
ble to other similarly titled measures of other companies. See footnote 13 to our audited consolidated
financial statements for a reconciliation of net income to Adjusted EBITDA as utilized by us in reporting
our segment performance in accordance with SFAS No. 131.

Year Ended December 31, 2003 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2002
Net Operating Revenues

Our net operating revenues increased by 24.0% to $1,396.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2003
compared to $1,126.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2002.

Specialty Hospitals. Qur specialty hospital net operating revenues increased 36.5% to $853.7 million for
the year ended December 31, 2003 compared to $625.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2002. Net
operating revenues for the specialty hospitals opened before January 1, 2002 and operated throughout both
periods increased 18.3% to $726.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 from $614.1 million for the
year ended December 31, 2002. This increase resulted primarily from higher net revenue per patient day,
which is primarily attributable to the improved reimbursement we are receiving from Medicare under the
LTCH-PPS. Our patient days and occupancy rates for these hospitals were consistent in both periods. The
remaining increase of $115.8 million resulted from the acquisition of the Kessler facilities, which contributed
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$48.3 million of net revenue, and the internal development of new specialty hospitals that commenced
operations in 2002 and 2003.

Outpatient Rehabilitation. Our outpatient rehabilitation net operating revenues increased 9.1% to
$529.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 compared to $485.1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2002. The number of patient visits in our U.S. based outpatient rehabilitation clinics increased
4.8% for the year ended December 31, 2003 to 4,027,768 visits compared to 3,841,841 visits for the year ended
December 31, 2002. Net revenue per visit in these clinics was $87 in 2003 compared to $86 in 2002. The
increase in net operating revenues was related to the acquisition of the Kessler operations, which contributed
$23.0 million of net operating revenue, the consolidation of clinics that we previously managed and clinics that
we acquired during 2002 and 2003, and changes in the economic environment that are reducing the number of
therapy visits. These macro-economic trends affecting therapy visit volumes include increasing patient co-pays
and a decline in the number of approved visits for a patient. Excluding the effects of the previously managed
clinics and the recently acquired clinics (including the Kessler clinics), net operating revenues for the year
ended December 31, 2003 would have been $493.2 million, and the number of U.S. based visits would have
been 3,741,717.

Other. Our other revenues declined to $13.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 compared to
$16.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2002. The principal reason for the decline is the conversion of
our long-term acute care hospitals to LTCH-PPS and the associated changes in how we get reimbursed for
the services we provide. The decline was offset by revenues related to the other businesses we acquired from
Kessler that are now being reported under this category. These businesses generated approximately $3.6 mil-
lion of revenues in 2003. We expect this revenue item to continue declining throughout 2004. See “Critical
Accounting Matters — Sources of Revenue” for a further discussion of this change.

Operating Expenses

Our operating expenses increased by 21.2% to $1,211.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2003
compared to $999.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2002. Our operating expenses include our cost of
services, general and administrative expense and bad debt expense. The increase in operating expenses was
principally related to the acquisition of Kessler, the internal development of new specialty hospitals that
commenced operations in 2002 and 2003, costs associated with increased patient volumes and the consolida-
tion of previously managed clinics. As a percentage of our net operating revenues, our operating expenses were
86.8% for the year ended December 31, 2003 compared to 88.7% for the year ended December 31, 2002. Cost
of services as a percentage of operating revenues decreased to 79.9% for the year ended December 31, 2003
from 81.9% for the year ended December 31, 2002. These costs primarily reflect our labor expenses. This
decrease resulted because we experienced a larger rate of growth in our specialty hospital revenues compared
to the growth in our specialty hospital cost of services. Another component of cost of services is rent expense,
which was $95.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 compared to $85.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2002. This increase is principally related to our new hospitals that opened during 2002 and 2003
and the rent expense for the acquired Kessler clinics. During the same time period, general and administrative
expense as a percentage of net operating revenues declined to 3.2% for the year ended December 31, 2003
from 3.5% for the year ended December 31, 2002. This decrease in general and administrative expenses as a
percentage of net operating revenue is the result of a growth in net operating revenues that exceeded the
growth in our general and administrative costs. Qur bad debt expense as a percentage of net operating
revenues was 3.7% for the year ended December 31, 2003 compared to 3.3% for the year ended December 31,
2002. This increase in bad debt expense resulted primarily from two factors. First, we experienced a migration
of some of our accounts receivable to older aging categories where we significantly reduce our estimates of net
realizable value. Second, the transition to the new LTCH-PPS payment mechanism in our long-term acute
care hospitals has caused uncertainty associated with collections from payors that insure patient’s co-payments
and Medicare supplemental coverage.
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EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA

Our total EBITDA increased 46.6% to $183.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 compared to
$125.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2002. Our EBITDA margins increased to 13.1% for the year
ended December 31, 2003 compared to 11.1% for the year ended December 31, 2002. For cash flow
information, see “— Capital Resources and Liquidity.”

Specialty Hospitals. Specialty hospital Adjusted EBITDA increased by 106.5% to $146.4 million for the
year ended December 31, 2003 compared to $70.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2002. Our
specialty hospital Adjusted EBITDA margins increased to 17.1% for the year ended December 31, 2003 from
11.3% for the year ended December 31, 2002. The hospitals opened before January 1, 2002 and operated
throughout both periods had Adjusted EBITDA of $124.0 million, an increase of 62.0% over the Adjusted
EBITDA of these hospitals in 2002. This increase in same hospital Adjusted EBITDA resulted from an
increase in revenue per patient day, which is primarily attributable to the improved reimbursement we are
receiving from Medicare under LTCH-PPS. Our Adjusted EBITDA margin in these same store hospitals
increased to 17.1% for the year ended December 31, 2003 from 12.5% for the year ended December 31, 2002.

Outpatient Rehabilitation. Outpatient rehabilitation Adjusted EBITDA decreased by 7.6% to
$75.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 compared to $81.1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2002. Our outpatient rehabilitation Adjusted EBITDA margins decreased to 14.2% for the year
ended December 31, 2003 from 16.7% for the year ended December 31, 2002. This Adjusted EBITDA margin
decline was primarily the result of two factors. First, the acquired Kessler outpatient operations, which have
historically had lower income from operations than our outpatient rehabilitation clinics, experienced negative
margins for the year. The negative margins were primarily due to severance expense from staff reductions
related to our consolidation and integration plan. Second, in January 2003 we began consolidating a group of
clinics that we previously managed, which had the effect of further compressing margins.

Other. The Adjusted EBITDA loss was $36.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 compared
to a loss of $24.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2002. This decrease in Adjusted EBITDA was
primarily the result of the decline in Medicare reimbursements for corporate support costs of $6.2 million
resulting from the implementation of LTCH-PPS (“See “Critical Accounting Matters — Sources of
Revenue”) and an increase in our general and administrative expenses of $5.0 million.

Income from Operations

Income from operations increased 48.1% to $150.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2003
compared to $101.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2002. The increase in income from operations
resulted from the Adjusted EBITDA increases described above, and was offset by an increase in depreciation
and amortization expense of $9.1 million. The increase in depreciation and amortization expense resulted
primarily from the additional depreciation associated with the acquired Kessler assets, the amortization of the
value of the seven year non-compete agreement that we received from Kessler’s selling stockholder, and
increases in depreciation on fixed asset additions that are principally related to new hospital and clinic
development.

Interest Expense

Interest expense decreased by $0.9 million to $26.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 from
$27.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2002. The decline in interest expense is due to the lower debt
levels outstanding in 2003 compared to 2002 on our credit facility and a lower effective interest rate in 2003.
The lower debt levels resulted from scheduled term amortization payments and principal pre-payments that
we have made under our credit facility. All repayments have been made with cash flows generated through
operations. These reductions were offset by the incremental interest that resulted from the issuance of
$175 million of 7'/% senior subordinated notes in August 2003.
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Minority Interests

Minority interests in consolidated earnings increased to $2.4 million for the year ended December 31,
2003 compared to $2.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2002. This increase resulted from the
improved profitability of our outpatient rehabilitation subsidiaries with minority interests.

Income Taxes

We recorded income tax expense of $48.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. The expense
represented an effective tax rate of 39.6%. We recorded income tax expense of $28.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2002, representing an effective tax rate of 39.3%. The effective tax rates in both 2003 and 2002
approximate the federal and state statutory tax rates. The increase in the tax rate is the result of a larger
portion of our net income being earned in states with higher tax rates.

Year Ended December 31, 2002 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2001
Net Operating Revenues

Our net operating revenues increased by 17.5% to $1,126.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2002
compared to $959.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2001.

Specialty Hospitals. Our specialty hospital net operating revenues increased 24.3% to $625.2 million for
the year ended December 31, 2002 compared to $503.0 million for the vear ended December 31, 2001. Net
operating revenues for the specialty hospitals opened before January 1, 2001 and operated throughout both
periods increased 11.7% to $549.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 from $491.6 million for the
year ended December 31, 2001. This resulted from a higher occupancy rate and higher net revenue per patient
day. The remaining increase of $64.6 million resulted from the internal development of new specialty hospitals
that commenced operations in 2001 and 2002.

Outpatient Rehabilitation. Our outpatient rehabilitation net operating revenues increased 10.1% to
$485.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 compared to $440.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2001. The increase was related to an increase in the number of visits and the net revenue per
visit experienced at our outpatient rehabilitation locations and the additional revenues associated with
acquisitions that occurred in 2001 and 2002. These acquisitions accounted for $28.6 million of the increase.

Other. Our other revenues increased to $16.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 compared
to $15.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. The increase in other revenue reflects higher corporate
general and administrative costs in 2002, which resulted in higher Medicare reimbursements for those costs.

Operating Expenses

Our operating expenses increased by 18.0% to $999.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2002
compared to $846.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. Our operating expenses include our cost of
services, general and administrative expense and bad debt expense. The largest contributor to the increase in
operating expenses was the internally developed specialty hospitals that commenced operations in 2001 and
2002. Costs also increased as a result of the addition of acquired businesses and increased volumes at our
hospitals opened before January 1, 2001. As a percent of our net operating revenues, our operating expenses
increased to 88.7% for the year ended December 31, 2002 from 88.3% for the year ended December 31, 2001.
Cost of services as a percentage of operating revenues increased to 81.9% for the year ended December 31,
2002 compared to 81.0% for the year ended December 31, 2001. These costs primarily reflect our labor
expenses. This increase reflects the higher costs of services as a percentage of revenue in our newly developed
specialty hospitals and an increase in relative salary and benefit costs experienced in our NovaCare outpatient
operations. These higher relative costs were the result of higher staffing levels based on anticipated visit
volume and an increase in our health care costs for this division. During the same time period, general and
administrative expense as a percentage of net operating revenues declined to 3.5% for the year ended
December 31, 2002 compared to 3.7% for the year ended December 31, 2001. The 2002 costs were lower
because our 2001 costs contained expenses not contained in 2002 related to litigation associated with disputes
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that we assumed through our NovaCare acquisition and the costs associated with a secondary offering that was
terminated in November 2001. Our bad debt expense as a percentage of net operating revenues was 3.3% for
the year ended December 31, 2002 compared to 3.6% for the year ended December 31, 2001, This decline in
our relative bad debt percentage resulted from improvement in the composition and age of our accounts
receivable.

EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA

Our total EBITDA increased 32.8% to $125.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 compared to
$94.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. Our EBITDA margins increased to 11.1% for the year
ended December 31, 2002 compared to 9.8% for the year ended December 31, 2001. In 2001 we incurred a
loss on the early extinguishment of debt of $14.2 million, which had the effect of lowering our EBITDA
margins for 2001 when compared to 2002. For cash flow information, see “— Capital Resources and
Liquidity.”

Specialty Hospitals. Our specialty hospital Adjusted EBITDA increased by 23.2% to $70.9 million for
the year ended December 31, 2002 compared to $57.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. Our
Adjusted EBITDA margins were 11.3% for the year ended December 31, 2002 compared to 11.4% for the year
ended December 31, 2001. The decline in margins is caused by the start-up losses and lower margins incurred
in our hospitals that were opened or developed in 2001 and 2002. The hospitals opened before January 1, 2001
and operated throughout both periods had Adjusted EBITDA of $73.7 million, an increase of 17.5% over the
Adjusted EBITDA for these hospitals in the same period in 2001 of $62.7 million. This increase in same
hospital Adjusted EBITDA resulted from an increase in non-Medicare revenue per patient day, offset by cost
increases. Our Adjusted EBITDA margin in these same store hospitals increased to 13.4% in 2002 from 12.8%
in 2001.

Qutpatient Rehabilitation. Our outpatient rehabilitation Adjusted EBITDA increased by 6.6% to
$81.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 compared to $76.1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2001. Approximately $3.9 million of this increase related to incremental Adjusted EBITDA
provided by the acquisitions that occurred in 2001 and 2002. Our Adjusted EBITDA margins declined to
16.7% for the year ended December 31, 2002 from 17.3% for the year ended December 31, 2001. The
reduction in Adjusted EBITDA margins was related to higher relative salary and benefit costs experienced in
our NovaCare outpatient operations. These higher relative costs were the result of higher staffing levels based
on our anticipated visit volume and an increase in our health care costs for this division.

Other. The Adjusted EBITDA loss increased to $24.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2002
compared to a loss of $21.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. This increase resulted from the
higher general and administrative costs needed to support the growth of the organization, principally our new
hospital development. Under the LTCH-PPS, we will no longer be specifically reimbursed for the portion of
our corporate costs related to the provision of Medicare services in our specialty hospitals. Instead, we will
receive from Medicare a pre-determined fixed amount assigned to the applicable LTC-DRG, which is
intended to reflect the average cost of treating such a patient, including corporate costs. As a result of this
change in our revenue stream, we will begin allocating corporate departmental costs that are directly related to
our specialty hospital operations to our specialty hospital segment in 2003 to better match the cost with the
revenues for this segment. We do not believe that this allocation of costs will have any adverse impact on the
profitability or margins of this segment, due to the increase in net revenue this segment will experience under
LTCH-PPS.

Income from Operations

Income from operations increased 27.2% to $101.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2002
compared to $79.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. The increase in income from operations
resulted from the Adjusted EBITDA increases described above, a reduction in amortization expense of
$8.8 million resulting from the adoption of SFAS 142, partially offset by an increase in depreciation expense.
Depreciation expense increased by [1.0% to $23.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 from
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$21.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. The increase resulted primarily from increases in
depreciation on fixed asset additions that are principally related to new hospital development.

Loss on Early Retirement of Debt

As a result of our initial public offering of stock in April 2001 and the issuance of $175 million of
9% senior subordinated notes in June 2001, we repaid $75 million of our U.S. term loan and all $90 million of
our 10% senior subordinated notes. The loss consists of $1.3 million of unamortized deferred financing costs
related to the repayment of our U.S. term loan and $12.9 million of unamortized deferred financing costs and
unamortized discount related to the repayment of our 10% Senior Subordinated Notes.

Interest Expense

Interest expense decreased by $2.5 million to $27.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 from
$29.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. The decline in interest expense is due to the lower debt
levels outstanding in 2002 compared to 2001 and a lower effective interest rate in 2002.

Minority Interests

Minority interests in consolidated earnings decreased to $2.0 million for the year ended December 31,
2002 compared to $3.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. This decrease resulted from a smaller
percentage of ownership held by minority interests. See “— Capital Resources and Liquidity” for a discussion
of our repurchase of minority interests.

Income Taxes ‘

We recorded income tax expense of $28.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2002. The expense
represented an effective tax rate of 39.3% and approximates the federal and state statutory tax rates. We
recorded income tax expense of $3.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2001, This expense represented
an effective tax rate of 9.5%. Our lower effective tax rate in 2001 resulted from the reversal of our tax valuation
allowance and the usage of prior net operating loses.

Capital Resources and Liquidity
Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001

Operating activities generated $246.2 million, $120.8 million, and $95.8 million in cash during the years
ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The trend of increases in cash flow experienced over
this time frame is attributable to improved operating income, continued management of payables and
significant reductions in our accounts receivable days outstanding. Our accounts receivable days outstanding
were 52 days at December 31, 2003 compared to 73 days at December 31, 2002 and 77 days at December 31,
2001. In 2003, a one day change in our accounts receivable days outstanding had a $4.4 million effect on
operating cash flows. We believe that our current level of accounts receivable days outstanding is reasonable
for our business. We do not anticipate significant reductions from our current levels of accounts receivable
days outstanding because we believe that we have achieved the most improvement that can reasonably be
expected in this area.

Investing activities used $261.5 million, $54.0 million and $61.9 million of cash flow for the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Of this amount, we incurred earnout and acquisition related
payments of $228.2 million, $10.9 million and $38.7 million, respectively in 2003, 2002 and 2001. The Kessler
acquisition costs, net of cash acquired, of $223.9 million comprise most of the 2003 expenditures. This usage
also resulted from purchases of property and equipment of $35.9 million, $43.2 million and $24.0 million in
2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, that was related principally to new hospital development. The earnout
payments related principally to obligations we assumed as part of the NovaCare acquisition. Acquisition
payments related to amounts we paid for new business acquisitions, although in 2001, a portion of the
acquisition payments related to our purchases of minority interests. The terms of our agreements with these
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minority owners allowed some of them to sell their minority interests to us upon the completion of our initial
public offering in 2001. In total, we paid these minority owners $15.9 million for their ownership interests. Of
this amount, $10.9 million was paid in cash and $5.0 million was paid in our stock.

Financing activities provided $124.3 million of cash for the year ended December 31, 2003. During 2003,
we sold $175.0 million of 7'~% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2013. The net proceeds from the sale were
approximately $169.4 million after deducting discounts, commissions and expenses of the offering, and were
used to finance a portion of the Kessler acquisition. Deferred financing costs associated with the offering were
$5.9 million. During 2003, we repaid $65.6 million of credit facility debt and $3.7 million of seller and other
debt. In December 2003, we declared and paid the Company’s first ever common stock cash dividend of
$0.03 per share, which resulted in an aggregate payment to our stockholders of $3.1 million. In 2003 we
received $28.6 million of proceeds from the issuance of stock related to the exercise of employee stock options
and stock warrants.

Financing activities used $21.4 million and $26.2 million of cash for the years ended December 31, 2002
and 2001, respectively. This was due principally to the repayment of our credit facility and seller debt. In 2001,
we had two significant financing transactions that refinanced existing capital. In April of 2001 we completed
an initial public offering of 20.7 million shares of our common stock. Qur net proceeds after deducting
expenses and underwriting discounts and commissions from the offering were approximately $89.2 million.
The proceeds from the stock offering were used to repay $24.0 million of our senior debt under the term loan
portion of our bank credit facility and to redeem $52.8 million of our Class A Preferred Stock; the remainder
was used for general corporate purposes, including the purchases of minority interests. On June 11, 2001, we
issued and sold $175.0 million of 9'/2% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2009. The, net proceeds from the sale
were approximately $169.5 million, after deducting discounts, commissions and expenses of the offering. We
used $90.0 million of the net proceeds to retire our 10% Senior Subordinated Notes which were issued in
December 1998, February 1999 and November 1999. We used an additional $79.0 million of the net proceeds
to repay part of our senior indebtedness under both the term loan and revolving portions of our senior credit
facility. The remainder of the net proceeds were used to pay accrued interest.

Capital Resources

Net working capital increased to $188.4 million at December 31, 2003 compared to $130.6 million at
December 31, 2002. The increase in working capital is principally related to the cash and cash equivalents that
we are now holding. Our cash and cash equivalents balance was $165.5 million at December 31, 2003
compared to $56.1 million at December 31, 2002.

On September 22, 2000 we entered into a new credit agreement that refinanced our existing bank debt. In
March 2003, in anticipation of a required prepayment of our term loan from excess cash flow and an increasing
cash balance, we received a waiver to our credit agreement, which permitted us to pre-pay $25 million on our
U.S. term loans, without making a pro rata prepayment on the Canadian term loans. The waiver was effective
in March 2003, and the prepayment was made March 31, 2003. In August 2003, after the issuance of our
$175 million 7'/:% senior subordinated notes, due to our increasing cash balance we received another waiver to
our credit agreement, which permitted us to pre-pay of all our outstanding U.S. term loans, without making a
pro-rata prepayment on our Canadian term loans. The waiver was effective in August, and a $29.3 million
prepayment, which was the entire remaining balance, was made on our U.S. term loans on August 29, 2003.

Our credit facility now consists of a Canadian term facility of approximately $8.5 million (USD), and a
revolving credit facility of approximately $152.4 million. The Canadian term debt began quarterly amortiza-
tion in September 2001, with a final maturity date of September 2005. As of December 31, 2003, we had the
ability to borrow an additional $141.8 million under our revolving credit facility. The revolving credit facility
terminates in September 2005.

Borrowings under the credit agreement bear interest at a fluctuating rate of interest based upon financial
covenant ratio tests. As of December 31, 2003, our weighted average interest rate under our credit agreement
was approximately 5.6%. See “Item 7A-Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures on Market Risk” for a
discussion of our floating interest rates on borrowings under our credit facility.
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We are required to pay a quarterly commitment fee at a rate that ranges from .375% to .500%, based upon
financial covenant ratio tests. This fee applies to unused commitments under the revolving credit facility.

The terms of the credit agreement include various restrictive covenants. These covenants include:
« restrictions against incurring additional indebtedness,

« disposing of assets,

+ incurring capital expenditures,

« making investments,

« restrictions against paying certain dividends,

« engaging in transactions with affiliates,

« incurring contingent obligations, and

« allowing or causing fundamental changes.

The covenants also require us to maintain various financial ratios regarding total indebtedness, interest,
fixed charges and net worth. The borrowings are collateralized by substantially all of the tangible and
intangible assets of us and our subsidiaries, including all of the capital stock of our domestic subsidiaries and
65% of the capital stock of our direct foreign subsidiaries. In addition, the loans have been guaranteed by our
domestic subsidiaries.

On June 11, 2001, we issued and sold $175.0 million aggregate principal amount of 9% senior
subordinated notes due June 15, 2009. The notes were issued under an indenture dated as of June 11, 2001
between us and State Street Bank and Trust Company, N.A., as Trustee. Interest on the notes is payable
semiannually in arrears on June 15 and December 15 of each year, commencing December 15, 2001. On
August 12, 2003, we issued and sold $175.0 million aggregate principal amount of 7/:% senior subordinated
notes due August 1, 2013. The notes were issued under an indenture dated as of August 12, 2003 between us
and U.S. Bank and Trust National Association, as Trustee. Interest on the notes is payable semiannually in
arrears on August 1, and February 1 of each year, commencing February 1, 2004.

The 9'2% senior subordinated notes and the 7'4% senior subordinated notes are each unsecured senior
subordinated obligations of Select Medical, are subordinated in right of payment to all of our existing and
future senior indebtedness, rank equally in right of payment to all of our other senior subordinated
indebtedness, and rank senior in right of payment to all of our future subordinated indebtedness. The senior
subordinated notes are guaranteed on a senior subordinated basis by all of our wholly-owned domestic
subsidiaries, subject to certain exceptions. On or after June 15, 2005, the 9% senior subordinated notes may
be redeemed at our option, in whole or in part, at redemption prices that begin at 104.75% and decline
annually to 100% on and after June 15, 2008, plus accrued and unpaid interest. On or after August 1, 2008, the
7'2% senior subordinated notes may be redeemed at our option, in whole or in part, at redemption prices that
begin at 103.75% and decline annually to 100% on and after August 1, 2011, plus accrued and unpaid interest.

Upen a change of control of Select Medical, each holder of both the 9'4% senior subordinated notes and
the 7':% senior subordinated notes may require us to repurchase all or any portion of the holder’s notes at a
purchase price equal to 101% of the principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest to the date of purchase.
The indentures governing the notes contain certain covenants that, among other things, limit the incurrence of
additional debt by Select Medical and certain of our subsidiaries; the payment of dividends on capital stock of
Select Medical and the purchase, redemption or retirement of capital stock or subordinated indebtedness;
investments; certain transactions with affiliates; sales of assets, including capital stock of subsidiaries; and
certain consolidations, mergers and transfers of assets. The indentures also prohibit certain restrictions on
distributions from certain subsidiaries. All of these limitations and prohibitions, however, are subject to a
number of qualifications.

We believe existing cash balances, internally generated cash flows and borrowings under our revolving
credit facility will be sufficient to finance operations for at least the next twelve months. We expect to generate
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positive cash flow from operations in 2004, although not to the extent we experienced in 2003 because we
believe that we have achieved the most improvement that can reasonably be expected in our accounts
receivable days outstanding.

In the year ended December 31, 2003, we opened eight long-term acute care hospitals. A new hospital
has typically required approximately $3.5 million per hospital over the initial year of operations to fund
leasehold improvements, equipment, start-up losses and working capital. From time to time, we may complete
acquisitions of specialty hospitals and outpatient rehabilitation businesses. As of December 31, 2003, we had
approximately $141.8 million of unused capacity under our revolving credit facility which can be used for
acquisitions. Based on the size of the acquisition, approval of any acquisition by our lenders may be required.
If funds required for future acquisitions exceed existing sources of capital, we will need to increase our credit
facilities or obtain additional capital by other means. '

On February 23, 2004, our Board of Directors authorized a program to repurchase up to $80.0 million of
our common stock. The program will remain in effect until August 31, 2005, unless extended by our Board of
Directors. The extent to which we repurchase our shares and the timing of any purchases will depend on
prevailing market conditions and other corporate considerations. We anticipate funding this program with
available corporate funds, including cash on hand and future cash flow.

On February 11, 2004, our Board of Directors declared a cash dividend of $0.03 per share. The dividend
will be payable on or about March 19, 2004 to stockholders of record as of the close of business on
February 27, 2004. ’

Commitments and Contingencies

The following table summarizes our contractual obligations at December 31, 2003, and the effect such
obligations are expected to have on our liquidity and cash flow in future periods.

Payments Due by Year

Contractual Obligations Total 2004 2005-2007 2008-2009 After 2009
(In thousands)

9'/,% Senior Subordinated Notes .... $175,000 — —  $175,000 —
7'/2% Senior Subordinated Notes . ... 175,000 —  $175,000
Credit Facility .................... 8,483 $ 4847 § 3,636 — —
Seller Notes...................... 7,174 4,343 2,831 — —
Capital Lease Obligations . ... .. . 711 344 367 — —
Other Debt Obligations ............ 1,135 733 402 — —
Total Debt ....................... 367,503 10,267 7,236 175,000 175,000
Letters of Credit Outstanding . ... ... 10,597 50 10,547 — —
Purchase Obligations .............. 8,322 4,809 2,715 798 —
Patient Care Obligation(a) ......... 3,563 246 739 493 2,085
Naming, Promotional and

Sponsorship Agreement .......... 36,619 1,400 4,494 2,996 27,729
Operating Leases. . ................ 233,428 71,842 124,503 20,350 16,733
Related Party Operating Leases ... .. 19,439 1,584 5,120 3,439 9,296

Total Contractual Cash Obligations .. $679,471  $90,198  $155,354  $203,076  $230,843

(a) For a description of this obligation, see Note 17 to Select Medical Corporation’s consolidated financial
statements.
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Medical and Professional Malpractice Insurance

In recent years, physicians, hospitals and other healthcare providers have become subject to an increasing
number of legal actions alleging malpractice, product liability or related legal theories. Many of these actions
involve large claims and significant defense costs. To protect ourselves from the cost of these claims, we
maintain professional malpractice liability insurance and general liability insurance in amounts and with
deductibles that we believe to be sufficient for our operations. Unfavorable pricing and availability trends have
emerged in the professional liability insurance market and the insurance market in general that have caused
the cost of professional liability coverage to increase dramatically. Many insurance underwriters have become
more selective in the insurance limits and types of coverage they will provide as a result of rising settlement
costs and the significant failures of some nationally known insurance underwriters, such as PHICO Insurance
Company, which provided us medical malpractice coverage from June 1998 to December 2000. In some
instances, insurance underwriters will no longer issue new policies in certain states that have a history of high
medical malpractice awards. Physicians who refer patients to our facilities are facing similar difficulties
obtaining malpractice insurance at a reasonable cost, which could adversely impact the number of our
referrals. As a result, we experienced substantial changes in our medical and professional malpractice
insurance program beginning in 2003. Specifically, we have been required to assume substantial self-insured
retentions for our professional liability claims. A self-insured retention is a minimum amount of liability and
legal fees that we must pay for each claim. We use actuarial methods to estimate the value of the losses that
may occur within this self-insured retention level and we are required under our insurance agreements to post
a letter of credit or set aside cash in trust funds to securitize the estimated losses that we will assume. Because
of the high retention levels, we cannot predict with absolute certainty the actual amount of the losses we will
assume and pay. To the extent that subsequent claims information varies from loss estimates, the liabilities
will be adjusted to reflect current loss data. There can be no assurance that in the future malpractice insurance
will be available at a reasonable price or that we will not have to further increase our levels of self-insurance.

Inflation

The healthcare industry is labor intensive. Wages and other expenses increase during periods of inflation
and when labor shortages occur in the marketplace. In addition, suppliers pass along rising costs to us in the
form of higher prices. We have implemented cost control measures, including our case and resource
management program, to curtail increases in operating costs and expenses. We have, to date, offset increases
in operating costs by increasing reimbursement for services and expanding services. However, we cannot
predict our ability to cover or offset future cost increases.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 150 “Accounting for
Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity.” SFAS No. 150 establishes
standards for how an issuer classifies and measures in its statement of financial position certain financial
instruments with characteristics of both liabilities and equity. It requires that an issuer classify a financial
instrument that is within its scope as a liability (or an asset in some circumstances) because that financial
instrument embodies an obligation of the issuer. This Statement is generally effective for financial instruments
entered into or modified after May 31, 2003, and for the first interim period beginning after June 15, 2003. Our
adoption of the initial recognition and initial measurement provisions of SFAS No. 150, effective July 1, 2003,
did not have a material impact on our results of operations of financial position.

In April 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 149, “Amendment
of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” which amends and clarifies financial
accounting and reporting for derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in
other contracts, and for hedging activities under SFAS No. 133. SFAS No. 149 is effective for contracts
entered into or modified and for hedging relationships designated after June 30, 2003. The adoption of
SFAS No. 149 did not have a material impact on our financial condition or operating results.
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In December 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Interpretation No. 46R
(FIN 46R) which replaced Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities”, an
interpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51, “Consolidated Financial Statements,” to improve
financial reporting of special purpose and other entities. In accordance with the interpretation, business
enterprises that represent the primary beneficiary of another entity by retaining a controlling financial interest
in that entity’s assets, liabilities, and results of operations must consolidate the entity in their financial
statements. Prior to the issuance of FIN 46R, consolidation generally occurred when an enterprise controlled
another entity through voting interests. The disclosure requirements of FIN 46R are effective for financial
statements issued after December 31, 2003. The initial recognition provisions of FIN 46R are to be
implemented no later than the end of the first reporting period that ends after March 15, 2004, We do not
expect FIN 46R to have a material impact on our financial statements.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We are exposed to interest rate changes, primarily as a result of floating interest rates on borrowings
under our credit facility. A change in interest rates by one percentage point on variable rate debt would have
resulted in interest expense fluctuating approximately $0.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2003.

All of our term-loan borrowings under our credit agreement are denominated in Canadian dollars.
Although we are not required by our credit agreement to maintain a hedge on our foreign currency risk, we
have entered into a five year agreement that allows us to limit the cost of Canadian dollars to a range of
U.S.$0.6631 to U.S.$0.6711 per Canadian dollar to limit our risk on the potential fluctuation in the exchange
rate of the Canadian dollar to the U.S. dollar.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

See Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto commencing at Page F-1.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

We carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our principal executive
officer and principal financial officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls
and procedures as of the end of the period covered in this report. Based on this evaluation, our principal
executive officer and principal financial officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures provide
reasonable assurance that material information required to be included in our periodic SEC reports can be
recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the relevant SEC rules and
forms.

In addition, we reviewed our internal controls, and there have been no significant changes in our internal
controls or in other factors that could significantly affect those controls subsequent to the date of their last
evaluation.

PART III

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

The information required under this item with respect to the Directors of the Registrant will appear under
the caption “Election of Directors (Item 1 on Proxy Card)” in the definitive Proxy Statement relating to the
Registrant’s 2004 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, to be filed by the Registrant with the Commission
pursuant to Section 14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”) and is hereby
specifically incorporated herein by reference thereto.
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The information required under this item with respect to the Executive Officers of the Registrant will
appear under the caption “Executive Officers” in the definitive Proxy Statement relating to the Registrant’s
2004 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, to be filed by the Registrant with the Commission pursuant to
Section 14(a) of the Exchange Act, and is hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference thereto.

Code of Ethics

We have adopted a written code of business conduct and ethics, known as our code of conduct, which
applies to all of our directors, officers, and employees, including our president and chief executive officer, our
chief financial officer and our chief accounting officer. Qur code of conduct is available on our Internet
website, www.selectmedicalcorp.com. Our code of conduct may also be obtained by contacting investor
relations at (717) 972-1100. Any amendments to our code of conduct or waivers from the provisions of the
code for our president and chief executive officer, our chief financial officer and our chief accounting officer
will be disclosed on our Internet website promptly following the date of such amendment or waiver.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required under this item will appear under the caption “Executive Compensation” in the
definitive Proxy Statement relating to the Registrant’s 2004 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, to be filed by
the Registrant with the Commission pursuant to Section 14(a) of the Exchange Act, and is hereby specifically
incorporated herein by reference thereto, except for the “Report of the Compensation Committee of the Board
of Directors on Executive Compensation” contained therein, which is not so incorporated by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

The information required under this item will appear under the caption “Security Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners and Directors and Officers” in the definitive Proxy Statement relating to the Registrant’s
2004 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, to be filed by the Registrant with the Commission pursuant to
Section 14(a) of the Exchange Act, and is hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference thereto.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required under this item will appear under the caption “Certain Relationships and
Related Transactions” in the definitive Proxy Statement relating to the Registrants 2004 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders, to be filed by the Registrant with the Commission pursuant to Section 14(a) of the Exchange
Act, and is hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference hereto.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required under this item will appear under the caption “Ratification of Appointment of
Independent Auditors (Item 2 on Proxy Card)” in the definitive Proxy Statement relating to the Registrants
2004 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, to be filed by the Registrant with the Commission pursuant to
Section 14(a) of the Exchange Act, and is hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference hereto.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
of Select Medical Corporation:

In our opinion, the accompanying balance sheets and the related consolidated statement of operations,
changes in stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income (loss) and cash flows present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Select Medical Corporation and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2003 and
December 31, 2002, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2003 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s manage-
ment; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 1, the Company changed its method of accounting for goodwill and intangible assets
in 2002. As discussed in Note 11, the Company changed its presentation of loss on early retirement of debt
during 2003.

/s/{ PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP

Harrisburg, Pennsylvania
March 2, 2004
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SELECT MEDICAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,
2003 2002

(In thousands, except share
and per share amounts)

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents .......... ... .. ... i .. $ 165,507 § 56,062
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $111,517 and
$79,815 in 2003 and 2002, respectively ........ ... i 230,171 233,105
Current deferred tax asset .. ...ttt 61,699 40,125
Other current assets . . ...t 27,689 17,601
Total Current ASSetS. . . .ottt e e 485,066 346,893
Property and equipment, net . ... . ... e 174,902 114,707
GoodWill. ..o 306,251 196,887
Trademarks ... ..o 58,875 37,875
Imtangible @sSets ... ... . .. 22,876 8,969
Non-current deferred tax asset .......... ... .. ... e 6,603 7,995
Other a8SetS . ..ot 24,425 25,733
Total ASSES. . ... i $1,078,998  $739,059

Current Liabilities:

Bank overdrafts .. ... .. ... e $ 11,427 $ 11,121
Current portion of long-term debt and notes payable ....................... 10,267 29,470
Accounts payable . ... ... e 59,569 38,590
Accrued payroll . . ... 53,260 34,891
AcCrued VaCatION. . ..o e 21,529 15,195
ACCTUED TESIIUCTUTING . . . o o vttt et e et ettt e e et 10,375 800
Accrued Other ... o 78,308 36,306
Income taxes payable .. ... ... .. . — 23,722
Due to third party payors. ..o 51,951 26,177
Total Current Liabilities. .. ... . e 296,686 216,272
Long-term debt, net of current portion .......... .. ... .. i ' 357,236 230,747
Total Liabilities . . . .o 653,922 447,019
Commitments and Contingencies (Note 17)
Minority interest in consolidated subsidiary companies ..................... 5,901 5,622

Stockholders’ Equity:

Common stock — $.01 per value: Authorized shares — 200,000,000 in 2003
and 2002, Issued shares — 102,219,000 and 93,352,000 in 2003 and 2002,

TeSPECHIVELY . . 1,022 934
Capital inexcessof par ............. ..., e 291,519 235,716
Retained earmings .. ...t e 121,560 50,155
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) ........... ... ... ...... 5,074 (387)

Total Stockholders’ Equity.......... ..o i 419,175 286,418
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity .. ..... ... ...... ... ............ $1,078,998  $739,059

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

F-3



SELECT MEDICAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Net Operating revVeNUES . . ..o v v vt et ettt ctnereieeneennns $1,396,773  $1,126,559  $958,956
Costs and expenses:

Cost of services . ...t 1,115,757 922,553 776,295

General and administrative ......... ...t 44,417 39,409 35,630

Bad debt expense ......... ..ottt e 51,428 37,318 35,013

Depreciation and amortization..................oieennn... 34,957 25,836 32,290
Total costs and expenses ..........c..coviiiiii i 1,246,559 1,025,116 879,228
Income from operations . ............cviiiineen i 150,214 101,443 79,728
Other income and expense:

Loss on early retirement of debt .. .......................... — — (14,223)

Equity in earnings from joint ventures ....................... 824 — —

Interest iNCOME ... ... it i ne 936 596 507

Interest expense. . ...t (26,340) (27,210)  (29,716)
Income before minority interests and income taxes .............. 125,634 74,829 36,296
Minority interest in consolidated subsidiary companies ........... 2,402 2,022 3,491
Income before income taxes ...........cv it 123,232 72,807 32,805
Income tax eXpense . ........... i e 48,761 28,576 3,124
Nt INCOIMIE oottt e e e e e 74,471 44,231 29,681
Less: Preferred dividends ... ....... ... ... .. i — — 2,513
Net income available to common stockholders . ................. $ 74471 $ 44231 $ 27,168
Net income per common share:

Basic income per common share........... .. ... .. ... $ 076 $ 048 § 034

Diluted income per common share .......................... $ 072 § 045 $§ 031
Weighted average shares outstanding:

Basic . .. e 97,452 92,928 79,915

Diluted .. o e i e 103,991 98,256 90,929

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Balance at December 31, 2000 ...
Netincome .................
Other comprehensive loss . . . ...

Total comprehensive income . ..

Issuance of common stock in
connection with initial public
offering, net of issuance costs
of $2262..................

Conversion of Class B Preferred
Stock........ ... ... .. ...

Stock issued to acquire minority
interest ...................

Purchase of treasury stock ... ..
Issuance of common stock ... ..

Tax benefit of stock option
EXEICISeS ... vviitii e,

Preferred stock dividends ... ...

Balance at December 31, 2001 ...
Netincome .................
Other comprehensive income . . .

Total comprehensive income . ..

Issuance of common stock .. ...
Retirement of treasury stock ...

Valuation of non-employee
options. . ..........oouunn..

Tax benefit of stock option
EXercises ..................
Balance at December 31, 2002 ...
Netincome .................
Other comprehensive income . . .

Total comprehensive income . ..

Issuance of common stock ... ..
Cash dividends ...............

Valuation of non-employee
options. . .......... ..o

Tax benefit of stock option
EXETCISES ..o ..

Balance at December 31, 2003 ...

SELECT MEDICAL CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’
EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Accumulated

Common Retained
Stock Capital in Earnings/ Other
Common Par Excess of (Accumulated Treasury Comprehensive Comprehensive
Stock Value Par Deficit) Stock Income (Loss) Income
(In thousands)
51,394 $§ 514§ 72,812 $(23,757) $(1,039) $ (32)
29,681 $29,681
(1,862) (1,862)
$27,819
20,700 208 88,973
18,432 184 59,816
1,046 10 4,963
(521)
1,404 14 4,320
2,513
(2,513)
92,976 930 230,884 5,924 (1,560) (1,894)
44231 $44,231
1,507 1,507
$45,738
1,298 12 4,089
(922) (8)  (1,552) 1,560
56
2,239
93,352 934 235,716 50,155 — (387)
74,471 $74,471
5,461 5,461
$79,932
8,867 88 28,525
(3,066)
2,219
25,059
102,219 $1,022 $291,519  $121,560 § — $ 5,074

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,
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SELECT MEDICAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
(In thousands)
Operating activities
NEUINCOME .« .o ettt ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e $ 74471 $ 44231 $ 29,681
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization .. ........ oot tuini ittt e e 34,957 25,836 32,290
Provision for bad debts . ... .. . i e e 51,428 37,318 35,013
Deferred iNCOME 1aXes . ..ottt et e e e et e e e e 6,837 8,878 (5,903)
Loss on early retirement of debt. ... ... ... i —_ — 14,223
MINOMLY INEETESIS . oo\ vttt ettt e et et e e e et e e et e ettt e e e 2,402 2,022 3,491
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effects from acquisition of businesses: '
Accounts receivable .. .. e 8,838 (53,893) (49,432)
Other CUTTENt ASSELS . . ...\ttt i et et it et et e e e e et e e e e et e e ia e (5,047) (387) (456)
Other 886 . . . ottt 4,898 2,671 1,053
Accounts payable . ... ... e 17,499 3,887 4,715
Due to third-party Payors . ... ...ttt e 21,228 12,979 14,746
ACCTUET EXPEISES .+ o o o vt ettt s et ettt s e e et e e e e e e 19,337 22,456 14,023
I COmIE B . . oottt e e e e e e 9,400 14,814 2,326
Net cash provided by operating activities .. ....... ... ittt 246,248 120,812 95,770
Investing activities
Purchases of property and equipment, net. . ........... . .. i (35,852)  (43,183) (24,011)
Proceeds from disposal of assets .. ... ... .. . e 2,595 —_ 808
Earnout payments . .. ... ... e (464) (928) (5,660)
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired.......... ... ... ... i (227,731) (9,937)  (33,084)
Net cash used in investing activities ... ........ ... i i (261,452)  (54,048)  (61,947)
Financing activities
Issuance of 7.5% Senior Subordinated Notes . ........ ... . ittt 175,000 — —
Issuance of 9.5% Senior Subordinated Notes . ........... i, — —_ 175,000
Net repayments on credit facility debt........ ... .. i e (65,627)  (22,672)  (98,320)
Repayment of 10% Senior Subordinated Notes ......... ... ... . .. . i, — — (90,000)
Principal payments on seller and otherdebt ......... ... ... .. .. . . . i (3,721) (6,173)  (19,030)
Proceeds from initial public offering, net of fees ........ ... . .. i — — 89,181
Proceeds from issuance of common stock ... ... ... i e 28,613 4,101 4,334
Redemption of Class A Preferred Stock ......... i i — — (52,838)
Payment of Class A and Class B Preferred Stock Dividends ............... ... .. ....... — — (19,248)
Payment of common stock dividends . ........ ... i e (3,066) — —
Proceeds from (payments of) bank overdrafts ....... ... ... .. ... ... ... L .. 307 5,038 (8,135)
Payment of deferred financing costs. . ... e (5,922) (67)  (4,681)
Distributions t0 MINOMtY INtEIESIS. . . v\ttt ettt et e r e e (1,266) (1,650) (2,427)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities .. ......... ... .. ... ... ... . .. 124,318 (21,423)  (26,164)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents............................. 331 18 (107)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents. ........... ... .. ittt 109,445 45,359 7,552
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period ........... .. ... .. 56,062 10,703 3,151
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period ....... ... ... .. i $165,507 § 56,062 § 10,703
Supplemental Cash Flow Information
Cash paid for IMterest . .. ... i et e e e $ 20,229 $ 24,858 $ 30,547
Cash paid for IMCOME TaXES . . .\ttt et e et e et e e et $ 33344 § 5352 § 6,017

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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SELECT MEDICAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization and Significant Accounting Policies

Business Description

Select Medical Corporation and its subsidiaries (the “Company”) was formed in December 1996 and
commenced operations during February 1997 upon the completion of its first acquisition. The Company
provides long-term acute care hospital services and inpatient acute rehabilitative hospital care through its
Select Specialty Hospital division and provides physical, occupational, and speech rehabilitation services
through its outpatient divisions. The Company’s specialty hospital segment consists of hospitals designed to
serve .the needs of acute patients and hospitals designed to serve patients that require intensive medical
rehabilitation care. Patients in the Company’s long-term acute care hospitals typically suffer from serious and
often complex medical conditions that require a high degree of care. Patients in the Company’s acute medical
rehabilitation hospitals typically suffer from debilitating injuries including traumatic brain and spinal cord
injuries, and require rehabilitation care in the form of physical, psychological, social and vocational
rehabilitation services. The Company’s outpatient rehabilitation business consists of clinics and contract
services that provide physical, occupational and speech rehabilitation services. The Company’s outpatient
rehabilitation patients are typically diagnosed with musculoskeletal impairments that restrict their ability to
perform normal activities of daily living. The Company operated 83, 72 and 64 specialty hospitals at
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. At December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001, the Company
operated 790, 737,and 717 outpatient clinics, respectively. At December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, the
Company had operations in Canada, District of Columbia and 37, 37 and 36 states, respectively.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company, its majority owned
subsidiaries, limited liability companies and limited partnerships the Company and its subsidiaries control
through ownership of general and limited partnership interests. All significant intercompany balances and
transactions are eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when
purchased to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are stated at cost which approximates market.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation. Depreciation and amortiza-
tion are computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets or the term of
the lease, as appropriate. The general range of useful lives is as follows:

Leasehold improvements .. ........itnntettii it 5 years
Furniture and eqUipment ........... . ottt e 2 - 10 years
Buildings. .. ..o 40 years



SELECT MEDICAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, “Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (SFAS No 144), the Company reviews the realizability of
long-lived assets whenever events or circumstances occur which indicate recorded costs may not be
recoverable.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentration of credit risk consist
primarily of cash balances and trade receivables. The Company invests its excess cash with large banks. The
Company grants unsecured credit to its patients, most of whom reside in the service area of the Company’s
facilities and are insured under third-party payor agreements. Because of the geographic diversity of the
Company’s facilities and non-governmental third-party payors, Medicare represents the Company’s only
concentration of credit risk.

Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes.
Management provides a valuation allowance for net deferred tax assets when it is more likely than not that a
portion of such net deferred tax assets will not be recovered.

Intangible Assets

Effective January 1, 2002, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(SFAS) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” Under SFAS No. 142, goodwill and other
intangible assets with indefinite lives are no longer subject to periodic amortization but are instead reviewed
annually, or more frequently if impairment indicators arise. These reviews require the Company to estimate
the fair value of its identified reporting units and compare those estimates against the related carrying values.
For each of the reporting units, the estimated fair value is determined utilizing the expected present value of
the future cash flows of the units.

Identifiable assets and liabilities acquired in connection with business combinations accounted for under
the purchase method are recorded at their respective fair values. Deferred income taxes have been recorded to
the extent of differences between the fair value and the tax basis of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
Company management has allocated the intangible assets between identifiable intangibles and goodwill.
Intangible assets other than goodwill primarily consist of the values assigned to trademarks and non-compete
agreements. Management Service Agreements (“MSA’s™) represent consideration paid to therapists’ groups
for entering into MSA’s with the Company. The Company has terminated all MSA’s during 2003.
Management believes that the estimated useful lives established at the dates of each transaction were
reasonable based on the economic factors applicable to each of the businesses.

The useful life of each class of intangible asset is as follows:

GoodWIll . . e Indefinite
Trademarks . . . ..o Indefinite
NON-COMPELE ABTEEIMENTS . . o\ v vt ettt e ettt et ettt 7 years

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, “Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (SFAS No 144), the Company reviews the realizability of
long-lived assets and certain intangible assets whenever events or circumstances occur which indicate recorded
costs may not be recoverable. In addition, the Company also analyzes the recovery of long-lived assets on an
enterprise basis.
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If the expected future cash flows (undiscounted) are less than the carrying amount of such assets, the
Company recognizes an impairment loss for the difference between the carrying amount of the assets and their
estimated fair value.

Due to Third-Party Payors

Due to third-party payors represents the difference between amounts received under interim payment
plans from third-party payors for services rendered and amounts estimated to be reimbursed by those third-
party payors upon settlement of cost reports.

Insurance Risk Programs

Under a number of the Company’s insurance programs, which include the Company’s employee health
insurance program and certain components under its property and casualty insurance program, the Company
is liable for a portion of its losses. In these cases the Company accrues for its losses under an occurrence based
principal whereby the Company estimates the losses that will be incurred in a respective accounting period
and accrues that estimated liability. Where the Company has substantial exposure, actuarial methods are
utilized in estimating the losses. In cases where the Company has minimal exposure, losses are estimated by
analyzing historical trends. These programs are monitored quarterly and estimates are revised as necessary to
take into account additional information. At December 31, 2003 and 2002 respectively, the Company had
included in other current liabilities $29.8 million and $19.2 million related to these programs.

Minority Interests

The interests held by other parties in subsidiaries, limited liability companies and limited partnerships
owned and controlled by the Company are reported on the consolidated balance sheets as minority interests.
Minority interests reported in the consolidated statements of operations reflect the respective interests in the
income or loss of the subsidiaries, limited liability companies and limited partnerships attributable to the other
parties, the effect of which is removed from the Company’s consolidated results of operations.

Treasury Stock

Treasury stock is carried at cost, determined by the first-in, first-out method. During 2002, the Company
retired 922,000 shares of treasury stock.

Stock Options

As permitted by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, “Accounting for Stock Based
Compensation” (SFAS No. 123), the Company has chosen to apply APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for
Stock Issued to Employees” (APB 25) and related interpretations in accounting for its Plans. Accordingly, no
compensation cost has been recognized for options granted under the Plans.

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of the grant using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model assuming no dividend yield, volatility of 45% in 2003 and 39% in 2002 and 2001, an expected life
of four years from the date of vesting and a risk free interest rate of 3.1%, 3.4% and 4.4% in 2003, 2002 and
2001, respectively.
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For purposes of pro forma disclosures, the estimated fair value of the options is amortized to expense over
the options’ vesting period. The Company’s pro forma net earnings and earnings per share were as follows:

For the Year Ended
December 31,
2003 2002 2001
(In thousands, except
per share amounts)
Net income available to common stockholders — as reported.... $74,471 $44,231  $27,168

Deduct: Total stock based employee compensation expense
determined under fair value based method for all awards, net

of related tax effects .. ... i 19,376 10,326 4,454
Net income available to common stockholders — pro forma. . ... $55,095 $33905 $22,714
Weighted average grant-date fairvalue ................... ... 6.64 3.54 227
Basic earnings per share — as reported ...................... 0.76 0.48 0.34
Basic earnings per share — pro forma ....................... 0.57 0.36 0.28
Diluted earnings per share —as reported..................... 0.72 0.45 0.31
Diluted earnings per share —pro forma...................... 0.53 0.35 0.25

Revenue Recognition

Net operating revenues consists primarily of patient and contract therapy revenues and are recognized as
services are rendered.

Patient service revenue is reported net of provisions for contractual allowances from third-party payors
and patients. The Company has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments to the Company
at amounts different from its established rates. The differences between the estimated program reimbursement
rates and the standard billing rates are accounted for as contractual adjustments, which are deducted from
gross revenues to arrive at net operating revenues. Payment arrangements include prospectively determined
rates per discharge, reimbursed costs, discounted charges, per diem and per visit payments. Retroactive
adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and adjusted in
future periods as final settlements are determined. Accounts receivable resulting from such payment
arrangements are recorded net of contractual allowances.

A significant portion of the Company’s net operating revenues are generated directly from the Medicare
program. Net operating revenues generated directly from the Medicare program represented approximately
46%, 40% and 37% of the Company’s consolidated net operating revenues for the years ended December 31,
2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Approximately 35% and 30% of the Company’s gross accounts receivable at
December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively are from this payor source. As a provider of services to the
Medicare program, the Company is subject to extensive regulations. The inability of a company’s specialty
hospital or clinic to comply with regulations can result in changes in that specialty hospital’s or clinic’s net
operating revenues generated from the Medicare program.

Contract therapy revenues are comprised primarily of billings for services rendered to nursing homes,
hospitals, schools and other third parties under the terms of contractual arrangements with these entities.
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

The Company uses the local currency as the functional currency for its Canadian operations. All assets
and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into U.S. dollars at year-end exchange rates. Income
statement items are translated at average exchange rates prevailing during the year. The resulting translation
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adjustments impacting comprehensive income (loss) are recorded as a separate component of stockholders’
equity. The cumulative translation adjustment is included in other comprehensive income (loss) and was a
gain of $5,123,000 at December 31, 2003 and a loss of $74,000 and $317,000 at December 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. Also, included in other comprehensive income (loss) at December 31, 2003 was unrealized losses
on available-for-sales securities of $49,000, net of tax.

Financial Instruments and Hedging

Effective January 1, 2001, the Company adopted SFAS No. 133. Since the Company had no derivative
financial instruments at January 1, 2001, there was no cumulative effect upon adoption. The Company enters
into various instruments, including derivatives, to manage interest rate and foreign exchange risks. Derivatives
are limited in use and not entered into for speculative purposes. The Company enters into interest rate swaps
to manage interest rate risk on a portion of its long-term borrowings. Interest rate swaps are reflected at fair
value in the consolidated balance sheet and the related gains or losses are deferred in stockholders’ equity as a
component of other comprehensive income. These deferred gains or losses are then amortized as an
adjustment to interest expense over the same period in which the related interest payments being hedged are
recognized in income. The Company did not have any interest rate swap arrangements at December 31, 2003.
At December 31, 2002 the fair value of the interest rate swap arrangement was $313,000. To the extent that
any derivative instrument is not designated as a hedge under SFAS No. 133, the gains and losses are
recognized in income based on fair market value and is included in other comprehensive income (loss).

Basic and Diluted Net Income Per Share

Basic net income per common share is based on the weighted average number of shares of common stock
outstanding during each year. Diluted net income per common share is based on the weighted average number
of shares of common stock outstanding during each year, adjusted for the effect of common stock equivalents
arising from the assumed exercise of stock options, warrants and convertible preferred stock, if dilutive.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 150 “Accounting for
Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity.” SFAS No. 150 establishes
standards for how an issuer classifies and measures in its statement of financial position certain financial
instruments with characteristics of both liabilities and equity. [t requires that an issuer classify a financial
instrument that is within its scope as a liability (or an asset in some circumstances) because that financial
instrument embodies an obligation of the issuer. This Statement is generally effective for financial instruments
entered into or modified after May 31, 2003, and for the first interim period beginning after June 15, 2003. The
Company’s adoption of the initial recognition and initial measurement provisions of SFAS No. 150, effective
July 1, 2003, did not have a material impact on the Company’s results of ‘operations of financial position.

In April 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 149, “Amendment
of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” which amends and clarifies financial
accounting and reporting for derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in
other contracts, and for hedging activities under SFAS No. 133. SFAS No. 149 is effective for contracts
entered into or modified and for hedging relationships designated after June 30, 2003. The adoption of SFAS
No. 149 did not have a material impact on the financial condition or operating results of the Company.

In December 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Interpretation No. 46R
(FIN 46R) which replaced Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities”, an
interpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51, “Consolidated Financial Statements,” to improve
financial reporting of special purpose and other entities. In accordance with the interpretation, business
enterprises that represent the primary beneficiary of another entity by retaining a controlling financial interest
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in that entity’s assets, liabilities, and results of operations must consolidate the entity in their financial
statements. Prior to the issuance of FIN 46R, consolidation generally occurred when an enterprise controlled
another entity through voting interests. The disclosure requirements of FIN 46R are effective for financial
statements issued after December 31, 2003. The initial recognition provisions of FIN 46R are to be
implemented no later than the end of the first reporting period that ends after March 15, 2004. The Company
does not expect FIN 46R to have a material impact on its financial statements.

2. Acquisitions, Disposal and Management Services Agreements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

On September 2, 2003, the Company completed the acquisition of all of the outstanding stock of Kessler
Rehabilitation Corporation from the Henry H. Kessler Foundation, Inc. for $223.9 million in cash, net of cash
acquired and $1.7 million of assumed indebtedness and $16.2 million in liabilities related to the planned
restructuring. The purchase price may be adjusted either upward or downward pursuant to a post-closing
working capital adjustment depending upon whether Kessler’s working capital is less than or greater than a
target amount on the closing balance sheet. The purchase was funded through a combination of the proceeds
from the issuance of 7'2% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2013 and existing cash. The purchase price has
been allocated to net assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on valuation studies subject to resolution of
purchase price adjustments. The excess of the amount of the purchase price over the net asset value, including
identifiable intangible assets, was allocated to goodwill. The results of operations of Kessler Rehabilitation
Corporation have been included in the Company’s consolidated financial statements since September 1, 2003.
Kessler Rehabilitation Corporation operates rchabilitation hospital facilities and outpatient clinics. The
Company has included the operations of Kessler’s four acute medical rehabilitation hospitals and one skilled
nursing facility in its specialty hospital segment. Kessler’s outpatient clinics and onsite contract rehabilitation
services have been included in the Company’s outpatient rehabilitation segment. Kessler’s other services,
which include sales of home medical equipment, orthotics, prosthetics, and infusion/intravenous services and
corporate support costs, have been included in the all other category.

In addition during 2003, the Company acquired controlling interests in two outpatient therapy businesses.
Outpatient therapy acquisitions consisted of Excel Rehabilitation Services, LLP on March 1, 2003 and
Vanguard Health Services, P.C. on January 31, 2003. Total consideration for these acquisitions totaled
$0.9 million including $0.6 million in cash and $0.3 million in notes issued.

During 2003, the Company completed the repurchase of all or part of the minority interests of Rehab
Advantage Therapy Services, LLC, Select Management Services, LLC and Select Specialty Hospital —
Mississippi Gulf Coast, Inc for $3.2 million in cash.

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

During 2002, the Company acquired controlling interests in seven outpatient therapy businesses.
Outpatient therapy acquisitions consisted of Healthcare Motivations, Inc. on April 8, 2002, Pacific Coast
Rehabilitation Physiotherapist Corporation on May 22, 2002, Physiotherapy Moncton Inc. and Canadian Back
Rehabilitation Centre Limited on July 31, 2002, Halifax Physiotherapy and Sports Injuries Clinic Limited on
September 30, 2002 and 1217406 Ontario Limited and Workplace Wellness on October 31, 2002. Total
consideration for these acquisitions was $11.8 million including $9.9 million in cash and $1.9 million in notes
issued.

For thé Year Ended December 31, 2001

Certain outpatient rehabilitation subsidiaries had minority equity owners whose purchase agreements
allowed them to sell all or part of their interest to the Company in the event of an initial public offering.
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During 2001, the Company completed the repurchase of all or part of the minority interests of NW Rehabili-
tation Associates, LP, P.T. Services, Inc., Avalon Rehabilitation and Healthcare, LLC, Kentucky Orthopedic
Rehabilitation, LLC and Canadian Back Institute Limited. Total consideration for these acquisitions totaled
$15.9 million, including $10.9 million cash and $5.0 million of common stock.

During 2001, the Company acquired controlling interests in two outpatient therapy businesses. Outpatient

therapy acquisitions consisted of Metro Therapy, Inc. on September 5, 2001 and Healthcare Innovations, Inc.
on November 15, 2001. Total consideration for these acquisitions was $26.2 million consisting of $22.2 million
in cash and $4.1 million in notes issued.

Information with respect to businesses acquired in purchase transactions is as follows:
For the Year Ended December 31,

2002 2001

(In thousands)
$ 9937 $33,084
1,864 4,100

— 4,973

11,801 42,157
345 2,357

12,146 44,514

4,191 9,048

70 8,268

2003

Cash paid (net of cash acquired) .......................... $227,731
Notesissued ... e 316
Common stock issued. ... .. ..., —
228,047
Liabilities assumed .. ... ... i 36,513
Estimated restructuring reserve (note S) .................... 16,213
280,773

Fair value of assets acquired, principally accounts receivable
and property and equipment ........... ... ... . ... 126,406
Trademark ... .. .o 21,000
Non-compete agreement ..............coviiiiinnenenn ... 24,000
Minority interest liabilities relieved......................... 1,405
Cost in excess of fair value of net assets acquired (goodwill) ... $107,962

$ 7,885 $27,198

The following pro forma unaudited results of operations have been prepared assuming the acquisition of

Kessler Rehabilitation Corporation occurred at the beginning of the periods presented. The acquisitions of the
other businesses acquired are not reflected in this pro forma as their impact is not material. These results are
not necessarily indicative of results of future operations nor of the results that would have actually occurred
had the acquisition been consummated as of the beginning of the period presented.

Pro Forma Unaudited Results of Operations

For the Year Ended December 30,

2003 2002 2001
(In thousands, except per share data)
Net FeVENUE .. ..ttt e e $1,553,080 $1,354,194 $1,157,456
Net income before cumulative effect of accounting
change . ... ... i e 62,834 47,521 15,384
Net IMCOME . .ottt et 62,834 22,207 15,384
Basic income per common share before cumulative
effect of accounting change ...................... $ 064 § 051 § 0.19
Basic income per common share .................... $ 064 $ 024 § 0.19
Diluted income per common share before cumulative
effect of accounting change ...................... $ 060 § 048 % 0.18
Diluted income per common share .................. $ 060 § 023 % 0.18
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3. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of the following:

December 31,

2003 2002
(In thousands)

Land ..o e $ 9,780 § 501
Leasehold improvements . . ... ..o vt e 81,319 64,317
Buildings .. ..o e 76,631 17,970
Furniture and equipment. . ... . i 117,233 112,942
COnStruction-in=Progress . . . ..ottt iinee e 4,431 4,085

289,403 199,815
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization ..................... 114,501 85,108
Total property and equipment .......... ...t $174,902  $114,707

4. Intangible Assets

Effective January 1, 2002, the Company adopted SFAS No. 142. Under SFAS No. 142, goodwill and
other intangible assets with indefinite lives are no longer subject to periodic amortization but are instead
reviewed annually as of October 1st, or more frequently if impairment indicators arise. These reviews require
the Company to estimate the fair value of its identified reporting units and compare those estimates against
the related carrying values. For each of the reporting units, the estimated fair value is determined utilizing the
expected present value of the future cash flows of the units.

Amortization expense for intangible assets with finite lives was $948,000 and $665,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Estimated amortization expense for intangible assets for each of
the five years commencing January 1, 2004 will be approximately $3,429,000 per year and primarily relates to
the amortization of the non-compete agreement associated with the Kessler acquisition.

Intangible assets consist of the following:

As of December 31, 2003

Gross Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization

(In thousands)

Amortized intangible assets

Non-compete agreement .............oiiiniininniniinnen.. $ 24,000 $(1,124)
Management SErvices agreements .. ........oreeeirnee .. 1,081 (1,081)
Total . $ 25,081 $(2,205)
Unamortized intangible assets

Goodwill . ... $306,251

Trademarks .. ... 58,875

Total . e $365,126

F-14



SELECT MEDICAL CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Amortized intangible assets

Management services agreements .......................

Unamortized intangible assets

Goodwill . ...

As of December 31, 2002

Gross Carrying

Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

(In thousands)

$ 11,404

$196,887
37,875

$234,762

$(2,435)

The following table reflects unaudited pro forma results of operations, net of related tax effect, of the
Company, giving effect to SFAS No. 142 as if it were adopted on January 1, 2001:

For the Year Ended December 31, 2001

Reported net income available to common stock holders . .
Add back: Goodwill amortization ......................
Add back: Trademark amortization ....................

Adjusted net income available to common stockholders ...

Basic

Earnings Per

Share

Diluted

Earnings Per

Share

(In thousands, except per share data)

$27,168
4,740
610

$32,518

$0.34
0.06
0.01

9
=
~
—_

$0.31
0.05
0.01

$0.37

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the Company’s reportable segments for the years

ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 are as follows:

Specialty Qutpatient
Hospitals Rehabilitation All Other Total
(In thousands)

Balance as of January 1,2002 ............... $ 84,391 $114,875 $584 $199,850
Goodwill acquired during year............... —_ 7,885 — 7,885
Income tax benefits recognized .............. — (11,938) — (11,938)
Earn-out payments ........................ — 928 — 928
Translation adjustment .. ................... — 192 — 192
Other. ... ... — (30) — (30)
Balance as of December 31,2002 ............ 84,391 111,912 584 196,887
Goodwill acquired during year . .............. 95,620 12,342 — 107,962
Income tax benefits recognized .............. — (3,745) — (3,745)
Earn-out payments ........................ — 464 — 464
Translation adjustment ..................... — 4,706 — 4,706
Other....... ... o — (23) — (23)
Balance as of December 31, 2003 ............ $180,011 $125,656 $584 $306,251

5. Restructuring Reserves

During December 1998, the Company recorded a $7,648,000 restructuring reserve in connection with the
acquisition of Intensiva Healthcare Corporation. The Company also recorded a restructuring reserve of
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$5,743,000 in 1999 related to the NovaCare acquisition. The reserves primarily included costs associated with
workforce reductions of 25 and 162 employees in 1998 and 1999, respectively, and lease buyouts in accordance
with the Company’s qualified restructuring plan. During 2000, the Company revised its estimates for the
NovaCare termination costs, severance liabilities and the anticipated closure of two central billing offices
related to the NovaCare acquisition. The reserves for the billing office closures primarily included costs
associated with lease buyouts and workforce reductions of 67 employees. These changes in estimates have
been reflected as an adjustment to the purchase price of NovaCare.

In 2003, the Company recorded a $16,213,000 restructuring reserve in connection with the acquisition of
Kessler Rehabilitation Corporation which was accounted for as additional purchase price. The reserves
primarily included costs associated with workforce reductions of 36 employees and lease buyouts in
accordance with the Company’s restructuring plan,

The following summarizes the Company’s restructuring activity:

Lease
Termination
Costs Severance Other Total
(In thousands)

January 1, 2001 . ... ... .. . $ 3,685 $ 940 $76 § 4,701
Revision of estimate . ............. .. ... . .. ...... 55 106 — 161
Amounts paid in 2001 . ....... .. ... ... L (2,053) (914) (76) (3,043)
December 31,2001 ........... ... o, 1,687 132 — 1,819
Amounts paid in 2002 ... ... .. . L (899) (120) — (1,019)
December 31,2002.. ... .. ... i 788 12 — 800
2003 acquisition restructuring costs ................ 5,886 10,327 — 16,213
Amounts paid in 2003 ........ ... .. ... . ... ... (869) (5,769) — (6,638)
December 31, 2003 .. ... ... ... . $ 5,805 $ 4570 $ — $10,375

The Company expects to pay out the remaining lease termination costs through 2007 and severance
through 2005.

6. Long-Term Debt and Notes Payable

The components of long-term debt and notes payable are shown in the following table:

December 31,

2003 2002
(In thousands)
9':2% Senior Subordinated Notes . ... i $175,000 $175,000
7'4:.% Senior Subordinated Notes .. ........... ... .. iiieiiii.t. 175,000 —
Senior Credit facility .. ... ... . e 8,483 74,110
Sl NMOtES . ..ot e e 7,174 8,869
Ot . L 1,846 2,238
Total debt ... .. 367,503 260,217
Less: current maturities . .. .o vttt e e 10,267 29,470
Total long-term debt .. ... ... ... 0.t $357,236  $230,747
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On August 12, 2003, the Company issued and sold $175.0 million of 7'4% Senior Subordinated Notes
due 2013. The net proceeds of the 7'/2% Senior Subordinated Notes offering together with existing cash were
used to complete the acquisition of Kessler Rehabilitation Corporation. The 7'/2% Senior Subordinated Notes
are fully and unconditionally guaranteed on a senior subordinated basis by all of the Company’s wholly owned
domestic subsidiaries (the “Subsidiary Guarantors”). Certain of the Company’s subsidiaries did not guarantee
the 7':% Senior Subordinated Notes (the “Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries”). The guarantees of the 7'2% Senior
Subordinated Notes are subordinated in right of payment to all existing and future senior indebtedness of the
Subsidiary Guarantors, including any borrowings or guarantees by those subsidiaries under the senior credit
facility. The 7'2% Senior Subordinated Notes rank equally in right of payment with all of the Company’s
existing and future sentor subordinated indebtedness, including the existing 9'2% senior subordinated notes,
and senior to all of the Company’s existing and future subordinated indebtedness. The Subsidiary Guarantors
are the same for both the 7'2% and the 9% Senior Subordinated Notes.

On June 11, 2001, the Company issued and sold $175.0 million aggregate principle amount of
9% Senior Subordinated Notes due June 15, 2009. The net proceeds relating to the 9':% Senior
Subordinated Notes were used to repay debt under the Company’s senior credit facility and to repay
10% Senior Subordinated Notes. Deferred financing costs and discounts of $14,223,000 related to the
repayments were reflected as a loss on early retirement of debt in 2001. The 9'2% Senior Subordinated Notes
are fully and unconditionally guaranteed, jointly and severally, by the Subsidiary Guarantors. The Non-
Guarantor Subsidiaries did not guarantee the notes.

The senior credit facility consists of a term portion of approximately $8.5 million and a revolving credit
portion of approximately $152.4 million. The term debt began quarterly amortization in September 2001, with
a final maturity date of September 2005. The revolving commitment also matures in September 2005.
Borrowings under the facility bear interest at either LIBOR or Prime rate, plus applicable margins based on
financial covenant ratio tests. Borrowings bore interest at approximately 5.6% and 7.4% at December 31, 2003
and 2002, respectively. A commitment fee of .375% to .5% per annum is charged on the unused portion of the
credit facility. Availability under the revolving credit facility at December 31, 2003 was approximately
$141.8 million. The credit facility is collateralized by substantially all of the tangible and intangible assets of
the Company and its domestic subsidiaries, including all of the capital stock of its domestic subsidiaries and
65% of the capital stock of its direct foreign subsidiaries and includes restrictions on certain payments by the
Company, including dividend payments, minimum net worth requirements and other covenants. The
Company is authorized to issue up to $15.0 million in letters of credit. Letters of credit reduce the capacity
under the revolving credit facility and bear interest at applicable margins based on financial covenant ratio
tests. Approximately $10.6 million and $4.6 million in letters of credit were issued at December 31, 2003 and
2002, respectively.

In 1999 and 1998, the Company issued 10% Senior Subordinated Notes to a principal stockholder of the
Company and had common shares attached which were recorded at the estimated fair market value on the
date of issuance. The common shares issued were recorded as a discount to the Senior Subordinated Notes
and were amortized using the interest method. In connection with the repayment of the 10% Senior
Subordinated Notes in full during 2001, 480,096 shares of common stock were returned to the Company.

The Company’s obligations under its previous credit agreements, which were refinanced in 1999, were
collateralized by guarantees from certain of the Company’s principal stockholders. In connection with the debt
guarantees, the Company and these shareholders entered into a warrant agreement. The Company issued
1,098,000, 920,000 and 1,728,000 warrants to purchase common stock to these shareholders in 2000, 1999 and
1998, respectively, that entitled the holder of each warrant to purchase one share of common stock at an
exercise price of $3.04 per share or at a price equal to the lowest selling price of common shares sold by the
Company after June 30, 1998. The value of the warrants was accounted for as a financing cost and amortized
over the term of the guarantees. The warrants were exercised in February and June of 2003.
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The Seller Notes relate to the acquisition of related businesses and require periodic payments of principal

and interest that mature on various dates through 2007. Also, certain of the notes contain minimum net worth
requirements.

Maturities of long-term debt for the years after 2004 are approximately as follows (in thousands):

200 e $ 7,076
2006 . e 116
2007 e 44
2008 e —
2009 and after .. .. 350,000

7. Stockholders’ Equity
Shareholder Rights Plan

On September 17, 2001, the Company’s Board of Directors adopted a Sharcholder Rights Plan (the
Rights Plan). Under the Rights Plan, rights were distributed as a dividend at the rate of one right for each
share of common stock of the Company held by the shareholders of record as of the close of business on
October 2, 2001. Until the occurrence of certain events, the rights are represented by and traded in tandem
with the common stock. As a result of the 2-for-1 split of the Company’s common stock that was effected on
December 23, 2003, under the terms of the Rights Plan, each share of common stock now represents and
trades in tandem with '/ of a right. Each right will separate and entitle the shareholders to buy stock upon an
occurrence of certain takeover or stock accumulation events. Should any person or group (Acquiring Person)
acquire beneficial ownership of 15% or more of the Company’s common stock, each whole right not held by
the Acquiring Person becomes the right to purchase, at an exercise price of $104, that number of shares of the
Company’s common stock that at the time of the transaction, have a market value of twice the exercise price.
In addition, if after a person or group becomes an Acquiring Person the Company merges, consolidates or
engages in a similar transaction in which it does not survive, each holder has a “flip-over” right to buy
discounted stock in the acquiring company. Certain of our stockholders will not be and cannot become an
Acquiring Person and will not be counted as affiliates or associates of any other person in determining whether
such person is an Acquiring Person under the Rights Plan.

Under certain circumstances, the rights are redeemable by the Company at a price of $0.0005 per right.
Further, if any person or group becomes an Acquiring Person, the Board of Directors has the option to
exchange one share of common stock for each right held by any Person other than the Acquiring Person. The
rights expire on September 17, 2011.

Class A Preferred Stock

The Company was authorized to issue 55,000 shares of cumulative, non-voting Class A Preferred Stock.
The Company sold 48,000 shares of Class A Preferred Stock during 1998. The Class A Preferred Stock had an
annual cash dividend rate of 8% per share, which accrued on a daily basis.

In connection with the Company’s initial public offering in April 2001, all outstanding Class A Preferred
Stock was redeemed. The accrued dividends on the Class A Preferred Stock totaling $14.1 million were
subsequently paid on May 2, 2001.

Class B Preferred Stock

In connection with the NovaCare acquisition in 1999, the Company sold 16,000,000 shares of Class B
Preferred Stock at a price of $3.75 per share for net proceeds of $59,361,000. Each share of Class B preferred
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stock was convertible at any time, at the option of the stockholder, into 1.152 shares of common stock. The
Class B Preferred Stock had an annual cash dividend rate of 6% per share, which accrued on a daily basis.

In connection with the Company’s initial public offering in April 10, 2001, all 16,000,000 outstanding
Class B Preferred Stock automatically converted into 18,432,000 shares of common stock. The accrued
dividends on the Class B Preferred Stock totaling $5.2 million were paid on May 2, 2001.

Common Stock

On November 11, 2003, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a 2-for-1 split of its common stock.
The stock split was effected in the form of a 100% stock dividend that was paid on December 23, 2003 to
shareholders of record on December 5, 2003. All common issued and outstanding share and per share
information has been retroactively restated to reflect the effects of this 2-for-1 stock split.

On November 25, 2003, the Company’s Board of Directors declared a cash dividend of $0.03 per share.
The dividend was paid on December 29, 2003 to the Company’s stockholders of record as of the close of
business on December 5, 2003.

In connection with the debt offering as described in Note 6, the Company repaid its 10% Senior
Subordinated Notes which resulted in the return to the Company of 480,096 shares of common stock that
were issued to WCAS Capital Partners III, L.P. in conjunction with the November 19, 1999 10% Senior
Subordinated Notes.

8. Initial Public Offering

In April of 2001, the Company completed an initial public offering of 20,700,000 shares of its common
stock at an offering price of $4.75 per share before an underwriters discount of $.3325 per share. The net
proceeds of the offering, after deducting expenses and underwriting discounts and commissions, of $89.2 mil-
lion were used to repay senior debt under the term and revolving loan portions of the Company’s credit facility
and to redeem Class A Preferred Stock. All 52,838 shares of the Class A Preferred Stock were redeemed on
April 10, 2001 for $52,838,000. In addition, the Company’s Class B Preferred Stock automatically converted
into 18,432,000 shares of common stock upon completion of the offering.

In January 2001, in anticipation of the initial public offering, the Company entered into an amendment to
its credit agreement that became effective in April 2001. The amendment allowed for the use of the net
proceeds of the offering to repay $24.0 million of our senior debt under the U.S. term loan portion of the bank
credit facility and to redeem $52.8 million of Class A Preferred Stock.

In conjunction with the Company’s initial public offering, the Company purchased outstanding minority
interests of certain of its subsidiaries for $10.9 million in cash and $5.0 million in common stock. The
acquisitions were accounted for using the purchase method of accounting.

9. Stock Option Plans

The Company’s 1997 Stock Option Plan (the Plan) provides for the granting of options to purchase
shares of Company stock to certain executives, employees and directors.

Options under the Plan carry various restrictions. Under the Plan, certain options granted to employees
will be qualified incentive stock options within the meaning of Section 422A of the Internal Revenue Code
and other options will be considered nonqualified stock options. Both incentive stock options and nonqualified
stock options may be granted for no less than market value at the day of the grant and expire no later than ten
years after the date of the grant.
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Originally under the Plan, options to acquire up to 11,520,000 shares of the stock could be granted. On
February 22, 2001, the Plan was amended and restated to provide for the issuance of up to 11,520,000 shares
of common stock plus any additional amount necessary to make the total shares available for issuance under
the Plan equal to the sum of 11,520,000 plus 14% of the total issued and outstanding common stock in excess
of 69,120,000 shares, subject to adjustment for stock splits, stock dividends and similar changes in
capitalization.

On April 11, 2002, the Company’s Board of Directors adopted the Select Medical Corporation Second
Amended and Restated 1997 Stock Option Plan, which was approved by the stockholders on May 13, 2002.
The amended plan provides for the grant of non-qualified stock options to key employees to purchase an
additional 6,000,000 shares of common stock. A substantial portion of these options are Performance
Accelerated Vesting Options. The Performance Accelerated Vesting Options will vest and become exercisable
on the seventh anniversary of the grant of such options, but the vesting schedule for these options will be
accelerated if the Company meets or exceeds its performance-based targets of earnings per share (EPS) and
return on equity (ROE). The EPS target for 2002 was $0.42 and for each subsequent year, the EPS target will
be calculated by increasing the immediately preceding year’s EPS target by fifteen percent. The ROE target
for 2002 was 13.5%, and for each subsequent year the ROE target shall be determined by increasing the target
percentage for the immediately preceding year by .5%. Twenty percent (20%) of a grant of Performance
Accelerated Vesting Options shall vest and become exercisable after the completion of each fiscal year in
which the Company meets or exceeds both its earnings per share and return on equity targets. No accelerated
vesting shall occur in years in which the Company fails to meet either of its targets. In addition, if the
Company meets both of these targets in 2002, 2003 and 2004, and the Company’s earnings per share for fiscal
year 2004 is greater than or equal to $0.61, then all Performance Accelerated Vesting Options will become
fully vested and immediately exercisable. Due to the Company meeting its performance-based targets of EPS
and ROE in 2002 and 2003, 20% of the Performance Accelerated Vesting Options vested subsequent to
December 31, 2002 and 20% vested subsequent to December 31, 2003. Total options available for grant under
the Second Amended and Restated 1997 Stock Option Plan were 22,154,000 and 20,912,000 at December 31,
2003 and 2002, respectively.

Transactions and other information related to the Second Amended and Restated 1997 Stock Option
Plan are as follows: '

Price Weighted Average
Per Share Shares Exercise Price
(In thousands, except per share amounts)
Balance, December 31,2000 ................... $ 0.87to 5.21 9,002 $ 3.40
Granted . ...... ... ... . . ... 4.75 to 8.53 5,110 5.67
Exercised........... ... ... .. il 3.04 to 5.21  (1,404) 3.09
Forfeited ....... ... ... oo i 3.04 to 5.64 (192) __4.65
Balance, December 31, 2001 ................... $ 087to 853 12,516 $ 4.40
Granted ....... ... .. .. . 6.33 to 7.63 8,954 7.44
Exercised........... .. i i 3.04 to 5.88  (1,298) 3.16
Forfeited ........ ... .. . . i i 3.04 to 8.53 (470) _6.07
Balance, December 31,2002 ................... $ 0.87 to 8.53 19,702 $ 5.82
Granted . ... 16.50 to 6.68 7,899 15.12°
Exercised........... .. ... i i i 0.87 to 8.53  (6,313) 4.35
Forfeited .............. e 3.04 to0 16.50 (333) _5.46
Balance, December 31,2003 ................... $ 3.04 to 16.50 20,955 $9.78




SELECT MEDICAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Additional information with respect to the outstanding options as of December 31, 2003, 2002, 2001 and
2000 for the Second Amended and Restated 1997 Stock Option Plan is as follows:
Range of Exercise Prices
$0.87-$5.88 $6.33-$7.53 $7.63-510.25 $14.53-$16.50
(In thousands except per share amounts)

Number outstanding at December 31, 2000 9,002 — — —
Options outstanding weighted average :

remaining contractual life .............. 8.71 — — —
Number of exercisable . .................. 5,016 — — —
Number outstanding at December 31, 2001 12,306 96 114 —
Options outstanding weighted average

remaining contractual life .............. 8.39 9.85 9.66 —
Number of exercisable . .................. 6,222 —_— — —
Number outstanding at December 31, 2002 10,777 2,016 6,909 —
Options outstanding weighted average

remaining contractual life .............. 7.53 9.19 9.36 —
Number of exercisable .. ................. 6,538 1,034 2,119 —
Number outstanding at December 31, 2003 4,817 2,033 6,334 7,771
Options outstanding weighted average

remaining contractual life .............. 6.88 8.22 8.36 9.70
Number of exercisable ................... 2,297 1,253 2,597 3,550

On February 12, 2002, the Company’s Board of Directors adopted the 2002 Non-Employee Directors’
Plan, which was amended on April 11, 2002, and approved by the stockholders on May 13, 2002. Under the
terms of the Non-Employee Directors’ Plan, directors who are not employees of the Company may be granted
non-qualified stock options to purchase up to 500,000 shares of the Company’s common stock (such number
being subject to adjustment under the terms of the plan), at a price of not less than 100% of the market price
on the date the option is granted. Options expire no later than ten years after the date of grant.

Transactions and other information related to the 2002 Non-Employee Directors’ Plan are as follows:
Weighted Average

Price Per Share Shares Exercise Price

(In thousands except per share amounts)

Balance, December 31,2001 ..................... $ — — $ —
Granted . . ... .. e 10 56 _1.02
Balance, December 31,2002 ..................... 7.02 56 7.02
Granted ......................... e 6.68 to 14.53 78 8.69
Exercised......... ... ... i 7.02 _3 7.02
Balance, December 31,2003 ... ... ... ... ......... $6.68 to 14.53 131 $8.01
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Additional information with respect to the outstanding options as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 for the
2002 Non-employee Directors’ Plan is as follows:

$6.68  $7.02  $14.53

(In thousands except per
share amounts)

Number outstanding at December 31,2002 .......................... — 56 —
Options outstanding weighted average remaining contractual life......... — 912 —
Number of exercisable .. ... ... i — — —
Number outstanding at December 31,2003 .......................... 58 53 20
Options outstanding weighted average remaining contractual life......... 9.14 812 9.6l
Number of exercisable .. ...... .. ... . i i — 8 —

10. Income Taxes

Significant components of the Company’s tax provision for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and
2001 are as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
(In thousands)

Current:
Federal ... ... . e $33,307 $14,345 $ 5,885
State and local. ... ... . 6,258 3,599 2,203
Foreign . ..o 2,359 1,754 939
Total CUITEnt .. ...t e 41,924 19,698 9,027
Deferred .. ... o i e 6,837 8,878 (5,903)
Total income tax Provision. ... ...........cooeoririninenn... $48,761  $28,576 $ 3,124

The difference between the expected income tax provision at the federal statutory rate of 35% and the
income tax expense (benefit) recognized in the financial statements is as follows:

For the Year Ended
December 31,

2003 2002 2001

Expected federal tax rate ... ... ... .ot 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State taxes, net of federal benefit ........... ... .. ... ... .. . 3.0 2.9 44
Non-deductible goodwill ........ ... . ... . . . — — 4.6
Other permanent differences ........ ... ... . ... . . L, 1.2 0.5 0.8
Foreign taxes . .. oo v it 0.4 0.3 0.8
Valuation allowance ........... ..o i — —  (29.5)
Net operating 10Ss USAZE . ... ..ottt e — —  (10.3)
O her .. e — 04 37
Total . oo 39.6% 39.3% _ 9.5%

Undistributed earnings of the Company’s foreign subsidiary are permanently reinvested. Accordingly, no
deferred taxes have been provided on these earnings.
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A summary of deferred tax assets and liabilities is as follows:
For the Year Ended
December 31,
2003 2002
(In thousands)

Deferred tax assets (liabilities) — current

Allowance for doubtful accounts ......... ... .ottt $42,991  $31,327

Compensation and benefit related accruals . ............................ 10,897 9,100

Malpractice iNSUIance . ... ......courinineuieeniiiien e .. 1,246 —

ReStrUCIUNING TESEIVE . . .. oottt et e it i e 3,319 —

Other accruals, net. . ... .. i R 3,246 (268)
Net deferred tax asset — CUITENT . ..ottt ittt e e e e 61,699 40,159

Deferred tax assets (liabilities) — non-current

Expenses not currently deductible fortax ................ . ... . ... .. 1,079 —

Net operating loss carry forwards. ......... ... .. ... ... 9,624 7,086

Depreciation and amortization . .............. oot 420 3,737

Net deferred tax asset — NON-CUTTENT . .. ...\ttt 11,123 10,823

Net deferred tax asset before valuation allowance ....................... 72,822 50,982

Valuation allowance . . ...ttt i i i s ~(4,520)  (2,862)

$68,302  $48,120

Prior to 2001, the Company had historically provided a valuation allowance for substantially all of its
deferred tax assets as a result of the Company’s limited operating history and the cumulative losses incurred in
prior years. In 2001, management concluded that it was more likely than not that those deferred tax items
would be realized, due to the cumulative profitable operations over the past three years. The reversal of those
valuation allowances in the fourth quarter of 2001 resulted in a reduction in the tax provision of $9.7 million
and a reduction in goodwill of $18.5 million. The reduction in goodwill relates to those deferred tax assets
originating through acquisitions.

Net operating loss carry forwards expire as follows (in thousands):

2004 ... e $ 97
200 L e 97
2006 . e —
2007 e e —
Thereafter through 2019, . ... . $4,400

As a result of the acquisition of American Transitional Hospitals, Inc. and Kessler Rehabilitation
Corporation, the Company is subject to the provisions of Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code which
provide for annual limitations on the deductibility of acquired net operating losses and certain tax deductions.
. These limitations apply until the earlier of utilization or expiration of the net operating losses. Additionally, if
certain substantial changes in the Company’s ownership should occur, there would be an annual limitation on
the amount of the carryforwards that can be utilized.
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11. Loss on early retirement of debt

- As a result of the initial public offering of stock in April 2001 and the issuance of $175 million of
9% Senior Subordinated Notes in June 2001, the Company repaid $75 million of the U.S. term loan and all
$90 million of the 10% Senior Subordinated Notes. The loss on early retirement of debt item consists of
$1.3 million of unamortized deferred financing costs related to the repayment of the U.S. term loan and
$12.9 million of deferred financing costs and unamortized discount related to the repayment of our 10% Senior
Subordinated Notes.

In 2003, the Company adopted SFAS 145 and reclassified the 2001 loss on early retirement of debt,
which was previously recorded as an extraordinary item, net of tax, to the other income and expense category
in the consolidated statement of operations. The tax benefit of $5.5 million recorded in 2001 was reclassified to
income tax expense.

12. Retirement Savings Plan

The Company sponsors a defined contribution retirement savings plan for substantially all of its
employees. Employees may elect to defer up to 15% of their salary. The Company matches 50% of the first 6%
of compensation employees contribute to the plan. The employees vest in the employer contributions over a
three-year period beginning on the employee’s hire date. The expense incurred by the Company related to this
plan was $4,893,000, $4,922,000 and $4,617,000 during the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively.

A subsidiary of the Company sponsored a defined contribution savings plan for substantially all eligible
employees who have reached 21 years of age and have completed one year of service. Employees may elect to
defer up to 15% of their salary. The subsidiary matches 50% of the first 4% of compensation employees
contribute to the plan. The employees vest in the employer contributions over a five-year period beginning on
the employee’s hire date. The expense incurred by the subsidiary related to this plan was $118,000 for the four
months ended December 31, 2003.

13. Segment Information

SFAS No. 131, “Disclosure about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information”, establishes
standards for reporting information about operating segments and related disclosures about products and
services, geographic areas and major customers. The adoption of SFAS No. 131 did not affect the Company’s
results of operations or financial position.

The Company’s segments consist of (i) specialty hospitals and (ii) outpatient rehabilitation. The
accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting
policies. The Company evaluates performance of the segments based on Adjusted EBITDA. Adjusted
EBITDA is defined as net income (loss) before interest, income taxes, depreciation and amortization, loss on
early retirement of debt, equity in earnings from joint ventures and minority interest.
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The following table summarizes selected financial data for the Company’s reportable segments:

Netrevenue. . ...,
Adjusted EBITDA ......................
Total assets

Capital expenditures. ....................

Netrevenue.............ovvvriiiinnnn..
Adjusted EBITDA
Total assets
Capital expenditures.....................

Netrevenue. . ... oot
Adjusted EBITDA ......................
Total assets

Capital expenditures.....................

Year Ended December 31, 2003
Outpatient

Specialty

Hospitals Rehabilitation All Other Total
(In thousands)
$833,668 $529,262 $ 13,843 $1,396,773
146,367 74,988 (36,184) 185,171
512,956 365,534 200,508 1,078,998
22,559 8,514 4,779 35,852
Year Ended December 31, 2002
Specialty Outpatient
Hospitals Rehabilitation All Other Total
(In thousands)
$625,238 $485,101 $ 16,220 $1,126,559
70,891 81,136 (24,748) 127,279
332,737 326,763 79,559 739,059
28,791 12,637 1,755 43,183
Year Ended December 31, 2001
Specialty Outpatient
Hospitals Rehabilitation All Other Total
(In thousands)
$503,021 $440,791 $ 15,144 $ 958,956
57,556 76,127 (21,665) 112,018
303,910 318,224 28,711 650,845
13,452 8,800 1,759 24,011

A reconciliation of net income to Adjusted EBITDA is as follows:

Net income
Income tax expense
Minority interest

Interest expense........ .. ... .. ... ...

Interest income
Equity in earnings from joint ventures
Loss on early retirement of debt

Depreciation and amortization.............

Adjusted EBITDA

For the Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
(In thousands)
.............. $ 74471 $ 44231 $ 29,681
.............. 48,761 28,576 3,124
.............. 2,402 2,022 3,491
.............. 26,340 27,210 29,716
.............. (936) (596) (507)
.............. (824) — —
.............. — — 14,223
.............. 34,957 25,836 32,290
.............. $185,171  $127,279  §$112,018
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14. Net Income per Share

Under SFAS No. 128, “Earnings per Share” (EPS), the Company’s granting of certain stock options,
warrants and convertible preferred stock resulted in potential dilution of basic EPS. The following table sets
forth for the periods indicated the calculation of net income per share in the Company’s consolidated
Statement of Operations and the differences between basic weighted average shares outstanding and diluted
weighted average shares outstanding used to compute diluted EPS:

December 31,
2003 2002 2001

(In thousands except
per share amounts)

Numerator:
Nt NCOIIE ottt e e e e $74,471  $44231  $29,681
Less; Preferred stock dividends .. ....... ... ... ... . ... ... —_ — 2,513
Numerator for basic earnings per share — income available to
common stockholders ......... ... .. .. ... .. 74,471 44,231 27,168
Effect of dilutive securities:
Class B Preferred stock dividends . ........................ — — 1,067
Numerator for diluted earnings per share — income available
to common stockholders after assumed conversions ........ $74,471  $44,231  $28,235
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per share — weighted average
SHATES . . i e 97,452 92,928 79,915
Effect of dilutive securities:
a) Stock options .......... i i e 5,853 3,178 3,818
by Warrants . . ... ... e 686 2,150 2,146
¢) Convertible preferred stock.......................... — — 5,050
Denominator for diluted earnings per share — adjusted weighted
average shares and assumed conversions ................... 103,991 98,256 90,929
Basic earnings per common share.................oooiinn... $ 076 § 048 $§ 0.34
Diluted earnings per common share ......................... $§ 072 § 045 § 0.3t

The following amounts are shown here for informational and comparative purposes only since their
inclusion would be anti-dilutive (in thousands):

2003 2002 2001

a) StoCK OPtIONS . ..ottt e e 2,336 7,398 200

15. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents, notes payable and long-term debt. The carrying
amount of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair value because of the short-term maturity of these
instruments.
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The Company is exposed to the impact of interest rate changes. The Company’s objective is to manage
the impact of the interest rate changes on earnings and cash flows and on the market value of its borrowings.
The Company entered into an interest rate swap in March 2001 which became effective in April 2001. The
swap originally matured in March 2005. In January 2002, the swap maturity date was amended to March
2003. Approximately $56 million and $69 million (notional amount) of the variable credit facility debt at
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, was converted to fixed rate. The variable interest rate of the debt
was 4.4% and 5.3% and the fixed rate of the swap was 8.1% and 8.4% at December 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. The differential to be paid or received from the counterparty in the agreement is recorded as
interest expense as rates reset. The net settlement resulted in a $2.1 million and $0.8 million increase in
interest expense in 2002 and 2001, respectively.

The fair market value of this swap recorded was a liability of $0.3 million as of December 31, 2002. The
interest rate swap has been designated as a hedge and qualified under the provision of SFAS No. 133 as an
effective hedge under the short-cut method. Accordingly, the change in the fair value for the year ended
December 31, 2002 was recorded in other comprehensive income.

Borrowings under the credit facility which are not subject to the swap have variable rates that reflect
currently available terms and conditions for similar debt. The carrying amount of this debt is a reasonable
estimate of fair value.

The 9'-% Senior Subordinated Notes and the 7'/2% Senior Subordinated Notes, which were issued and
sold on June 11, 2001 and August 12, 2003, respectively, are traded in public markets. The carrying value for
both the 9'2% Senior Subordinated Notes and the 7'2% Senior Subordinated Notes was $175.0 million at
December 2003 and 2002. The estimated fair value of the 9'2% Senior Subordinated Notes was $192.1 million
and $181.1 million at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The estimated fair value of the 7'.2% Senior
Subordinated Notes was $185.5 million at December 31, 2003,

16. Related Party Transactions

The Company is party to various rental and other agreements with companies owned by a related party
affiliated through common ownership or management. The Company made rental and other payments
aggregating $1,525,000, $1,434,000, and $1,186,000 during the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and
2001, respectively, to the affiliated companies.

As of December 31, 2003, future rental commitments under outstanding agreements with the affiliated
companies are approximately as follows (in thousands):

2004 . e e $ 1,584
2005 1,644
2006 .. 1,706
2007 L 1,770
2008 . 1,780
Thereafter ... 10,955

$19,439

In September 2002, the Company acquired Select Air I1 Corporation for consideration of $2,456,000 and
in November 2002, the Company acquired Select Transport, Inc. for consideration of $1,007,850, in each case
from a related party.

As further discussed in Note 6, the Company issued 3,746,000 warrants to purchase common stock to
certain of its principal stockholders in connection with guarantees of previous credit agreements. These
warrants were exercised in February and June of 2003.
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17. Commitments and Contingencies
Leases

The Company leases facilities and equipment from unrelated parties under operating leases. Minimum
future lease obligations on long-term non-cancelable operating leases in effect at December 31, 2003 are
approximately as follows (in thousands):

2004 L $ 71,842
20005 L e 57,183
2006 . 41,383
2007 o 25,937
2008 . 14,835
Thereafter ..o 22,248

$233,428

Total rent expense for operating leases for the years ended December 31 2003, 2002 and 2001 was
approximately $95,188,000, $85,215,000 and $75,621,000 respectively.

Patient Care Obligation

The Company acquired a long-term obligation to care for an indigent, ventilator dependent, quadriplegic
individual through its acquisition of Kessler Rehabilitation Corporation. The Company has utilized actuarial
methods in estimating and recording its liability for the care of this individual. Changes in variables utilized in
estimating this liability such as life expectancy, level of medical care and medical care costs can have a
significant effect on the estimated liability. The Company monitors these variables and makes periodic
adjustments to the estimated liability as appropriate. The estimated cost for this individual’s care at
December 31, 2003 is $3.6 million.

Other

In March 2000, the Company entered into three-year employment agreements with three of its executive
officers. Under these agreements, the three executive officers will receive a combined total annual salary of
$2,100,000 subject to adjustment by the Company’s Board of Directors. At the end of each 12-month period
beginning March 1, 2000, the term of each employment agreement automatically extends for an additional
year unless one of the executives or the Company gives written notice to the other not less than three months
prior to the end of that 12-month period that they do not want the term of the employment agreement to
continue.

A subsidiary of the Company has entered into a naming, promotional and sponsorship agreement for a
sports complex. The naming, promotional and sponsorship agreement is in effect until 2026. The subsidiary is
required to make payments in accordance with the contract terms over 25 years ranging from $1,400,000 to
$1,963,000 per year and provide physical therapy and training services.

Litigation

In February 2002, PHICO Insurance Company (“PHICO”), at the request of the Pennsylvania
Insurance Department, was placed in liquidation by an order of the Commonwealth Court of Pennsylvania
(“Liquidation Order”). The Company had placed its primary malpractice insurance coverage through
PHICO from June 1998 through December 2000. In January 2001, these policies were replaced by policies
issued with other insurers. Currently, the Company has approximately ten unsettled cases in eight states from

F-28



SELECT MEDICAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

the policy years covered by PHICO issued policies. The Liquidation Order referred these claims to the various
state guaranty associations. These state guaranty association statutes generally provide for coverage between
$100,000-$300,000 per insured claim, depending upon the state. Some states also have catastrophic loss funds
to cover losses in excess of the available state guaranty funds. Most state insurance guaranty statutes provide
for net worth and residency limitations that, if applicable, may limit or prevent the Company from recovering
from these state guaranty association funds. At this time, the Company believes that it will meet the
requirements for coverage under most of the applicable state guarantee association statutes, and that the
resolution of these claims will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position, cash
flow or results of operations. However, because the rules related to state guaranty association funds are subject
to interpretation, and because these claims are still in the process of resolution, the Company’s conclusions
may change as this process progresses.

The Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims that have arisen in the ordinary course of its
business and have not been finally adjudicated, which include malpractice claims covered (subject to the
above discussion regarding PHICO Insurance Company) under the Company’s insurance policy. In the
opinion of management, the outcome of these actions will not have a material effect on the financial position
or results of operations of the Company.

18. Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information

Non-cash investing and financing activities are comprised of the following for the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001:

Description of Transaction 2003 2002 2001
(In thousands)
Acquisitions paid for in stock (Note 2) ................. ... ... — —  $4,973
Notes issued with acquisitions (Note 2) ....................... $ 316 $1,864 4,100
Liabilities assumed with acquisitions (Note 2} .................. 36,513 345 2,357
Preferred stock dividends (Note 7) ........................... — — 2,513
Tax benefit of stock option exercises ............... ... ..., $25,059  $2,239  $2,513

19. Subsequent Events

On February 23, 2004, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized a program to repurchase up to
$80.0 million of its common stock. The program will remain in effect until August 31, 2005, unless extended
by the Board of Directors. The extent to which the Company repurchases its shares and the timing of any
purchases will depend on prevailing market conditions and other corporate considerations. The Company
anticipates funding for this program to come from available corporate funds, including cash on hand and
future cash flow. The repurchased shares will be immediately retired.

On February 11, 2004, the Company’s Board of Directors declared a cash dividend of $0.03 per share.
The dividend will be payable on or about March 19, 2004 to the Company’s stockholders of record as of the
close of business on February 27, 2004.

20. Financial Information for Subsidiary Guarantors and Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries

The Company conducts a significant portion of its business through its subsidiaries. Presented below is
condensed consolidating financial information for the Company, the Subsidiary Guarantors and the Non-
Guarantor Subsidiaries at December 31, 2003 and 2002 and for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and
2001. All Subsidiary Guarantors were wholly-owned as of the date of the registration of the debt offerings as
described in Note 6.
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On January 1, 2003, the Company purchased the outstanding minority interests of Rehab Advantage Therapy
Services, LLC and Select Management Services, LLC. The operations of these businesses through December 31,
2002 have been included as Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries. The operations of the businesses (through a 100% owned
subsidiary) commencing on January 1, 2003 have been included as Guarantor Subsidiaries.

The equity method has been used by the Company with respect to investments in subsidiaries. The equity
method has been used by Subsidiary Guarantors with respect to investments in Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries.
Separate financial statements for Subsidiary Guarantors are not presented.

The following table sets forth the Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries at December 31, 2003:

Canadian Back Institute Limited

Cupertino Medical Center, P.C.

Kentucky Orthopedic Rehabilitation, LLC.

Medical Information Management Systems, LLC.
Metro Therapy, Inc.

Millennium Rehab Services, LLC.

Philadelphia Occupational Health, P.C.

Select Specialty Hospital — Central Pennsylvania, L.P.
Select Specialty Hospital — Houston, L.P.

Select Specialty Hospital — Mississippi Gulf Coast, Inc.
TJ Corporation I, LLC.

U.S. Regional Occupational Health II, P.C.
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
December 31, 2003

Select Medical

Corporation Non-
(Parent Subsidiary Guarantor
Company Only) Guarantors  Subsidiaries  Eliminations Consolidated
(In thousands)
Assets
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ............ $101,989 $ 60,878 $ 2,640 $ — $ 165,507
Accounts receivable, net.............. 32 203,438 26,701 —_ 230,171
Current deferred tax asset ............ 12,900 46,783 2,016 — 61,699
Other current assets ................. 4,173 14,306 9,210 — 27,689
Total Current Assets. . ................. 119,094 325,405 40,567 — 485,066
Property and equipment, net ............ 8,232 148,336 18,334 — 174,902
Investment in affiliates ................. 393,552 59,582 — (453,134) (a) —
Goodwill ................. ... .., 5,854 252,379 48,018 — 306,251
Trademark ................... ... ..., — 58,875 — — 58,875
Other intangibles . . .................. .. — 22,876 — — 22,876
Non-current deferred tax asset .......... 1,951 5,634 (982) — 6,603
Otherassets .......................... 13,725 9,756 944 — 24,425
Total Assets.......................... $542,408 $882,843 $106,881 $(453,134) $1,078,998
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current Liabilities:
Bank overdrafts ..................... $ 11,427 $ — $ — $ — $ 11,427
Current portion of long-term debt and
notes payable .. ........... ... .. ... 460 9,264 543 —_— 10,267
Accounts payable ................... 8,459 44,185 6,925 — 59,569
Intercompany accounts............... (14,028) 13,725 303 — —
Accrued payroll . ....... .. .. ... 1,112 52,009 139 — 53,260
Accrued vacation.................... 2,277 17,701 1551 —_ 21,529
Accrued restructuring . ............. .. — 10,375 — —_ 10,375
Accrued other ............... ... . ... 27,306 47,826 3,176 — 78,308
Due to third party payors............. 1,657 52,647 (2,353) — 51,951
Total Current Liabilities................ 38,670 247,732 10,284 — 296,686
Long-term debt, net of current portion. . .. 84,563 237,185 35,488 — 357,236
Total liabilities. . ...................... 123,233 484,917 45,772 —_ 653,922
Minority interest in consolidated subsidiary
COMPANIES <.\ iee i, — 362 5,539 — 5,901
Stockholders’ Equity:
Common stock ..................... 1,022 —_ _ — 1,022
Capital in excess of par .............. 291,519 — —_ —_ 291,519
Retained earnings ................... 121,560 110,322 26,584 (136,906) (b) 121,560
Subsidiary investment................ — 287,242 28,986 (316,228)(a) —
Accumulated other comprehensive
INCOME ..ottt enens 5,074 — — — 5,074
Total Stockholders” Equity.............. 419,175 397,564 55,570 (453,134) 419,175
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity $542,408 $882,843 $106,881 $(453,134) $1,078,998

(a) Elimination of investments in subsidiaries.

(b) Elimination of investments in subsidiaries’ earnings.
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Select Medical

Corporation Non-
(Parent Subsidiary Guarantor
Company Only) Guarantors Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
(In thousands)

Net operating revenues .......... $ 8,689 $1,176,009  $212,075 $ — $1,396,773
Costs and expenses:

Cost of services .............. — 934,666 181,091 — 1,115,757

General and administrative .. ... 40,525 3,892 — — 44,417

Bad debt expense . ............ — 40,663 10,765 — 51,428

Depreciation and amortization . . 2,354 28,411 4,192 — 34,957
Total costs and expenses . ........ 42,879 1,007,632 196,048 —_ 1,246,559
Income (loss) from operations. . . . (34,190) 168,377 16,027 — 150,214
Other income and expense:
Intercompany interest and royalty

fees ... .. i 25,015 (25,033) 18 —
Intercompany management fees. . . (125,527) 122,929 2,598 —
Equity in earnings from joint

125 (111 (=S —_ (824) — (824)
Interest income ................ (554) (379) (3) — (936)
Interest expense ................ 7,861 14,286 4,193 — 26,340
Income before minority interests

and income taxes ............. 59,015 57,398 9,221 —_ 125,634
Minority interest in consolidated

subsidiary companies .......... — 231 2,171 — 2,402
Income before income taxes...... 59,015 57,167 7,050 — 123,232
Income tax expense ............. 24,962 20,309 3,490 48,761
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries. . 40,418 (53) — (40,365) (a) —
Netincome............covunnn. $ 74,471 $ 36805 § 3,560 $(40,365) $ 74471

(a) Elimination of equity in net income (loss) from consolidated subsidiaries.
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Operating activities
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization. ...............
Provision for bad debts......................
Deferred taxes . ...,
Minority interests
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of
effects from acquisition of businesses:
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries ...........
Intercompany............ ... ... .. ...
Accounts receivable
Other current assets ............c.ovvunn..
Otherassets ...,
Accounts payable
Due to third-party payors..................
Accrued expenses .. .......... ...l
Income taxes ...........ooviiivininn.n.

Net cash provided by operating activities.........

Investing activities

Purchases of property and equipment, net .. ......
Proceeds from disposal of assets ................
Eamout payments . ........... .. ... ...
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired. ...
Net cash used in investing activities.............
Financing activities

Intercompany debt reallocation . ................
Issuance of 7.5% Senior Subordinated Notes
Payment of deferred financing costs . ............
Net repayments on credit facility debt...........
Principal payments on seller and other debt
Proceeds from issuance of common stock ........
Payment of common stock dividends . ...........
Repayment of bank overdrafts..................
Distributions to minority interests...............

Net cash used in financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash
equivalents ............ i

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period. .

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period.......

(a) Elimination of equity in earnings of subsidiary.

Select Medical

Corporation Non-
(Parent Subsidiary Guarantor
Company Only) Guarantors Subsidiaries  Eliminations Consolidated
(In thousands)
$ 74471 $ 36,805 $ 3,560 $(40,365)(a) $ 74,471
2,354 28,411 4,192 — 34,957
— 40,663 10,765 — 51,428
(2) 6,878 (39) — 6,837
— 231 2,171 — 2,402
(40,418) 53 — 40,365(a) —
(12,056) 16,424 (4,368) — —
(317) 9,712 (557) — 8,838
(6,301) 463 791 — (5,047)
(1,750) 6,591 97 — 4,898
5,922 10,341 1,236 — 17,499
13,293 5,797 2,138 — 21,228
9,339 7,232 2,766 — 19,337
12,606 — (3,206) — 9,400
57,101 169,601 19,546 — 246,248
(4,690) (27,353) (3,809) — (35,852)
2,400 195 — — 2,595
— (464) — — (464)
— (227,541) (190) — (227,731)
(2,290) (255,163) (3,999) — (261,452)
(111,656} 121,961 (10,265) — —
175,000 — — — 175,000
(5,922) — —_ — (5,922)
(61,657) — (3,970) —_— (65,627)
(110) (3,543) (68) — (3,721)
28,613 — — — 28,613
(3,066) — — — (3,066)
307 — — — 307
— —_ (1,266) — (1,266)
21,469 118,418 (15,569) — 124,318
331 — — — 331
76,611 32,856 (22) — 109,445
25,378 28,022 2,662 — 56,062
$ 101,989 $ 604878 $ 2,640 $ — $ 165,507
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
December 31, 2002

Select Medical

Corporation Non-
(Parent Subsidiary Guarantor
Company Only) Guarantors  Subsidiaries  Eliminations Consolidated
(In thousands)
ASSETS '
Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents.................... $ 25,378 $ 28,022 $ 2,662 $ — $ 56,062
Accounts receivable, net ................... (285) 196,481 36,909 —_ 233,105
Current deferred tax asset .................. 7,192 29,830 3,103 — 40,125
Other current assets .. ......ccovvveinneen.n 2,888 11,620 3,093 — 17,601

Total Current Assets ...........ccciveuninnnnn. 35,173 265,953 45,767 — 346,893
Property and equipment, net .................... 6,293 87,162 21,252 — 114,707
Investment in affiliates . . ....................... 333,922 59,467 _— (393,389) (a) —
Goodwill. ... ... 5,854 147,935 43,098 — 196,887
Trademark . . ..ot e — 37,875 — — 37,875
Other intangibles. . ............................ — 948 8,021 — 8,969
Non-current deferred tax asset .................. (537) 2,723 5,809 — 7,995
Other assets . ... covinti et 11,935 12,757 1,041 —_ 25,733
Total Assets . .............. ... ... .. ....... $392,640 $614,820 $124,988 $(393,389) $739,059

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities:

Bank overdrafts . ................ ... ... $ 11,121 $ — 3 — 3 — $ 11,121
Current portion of long-term debt and notes
payable ....... ... o 570 28,437 463 — 29,470
Accounts payable ........... ... ...l 2,537 30,364 5,689 —_— 38,590
Intercompany accounts. ...................... (13,900) 5,009 8,891 — —
Accrued payroll . ......... ... ... .. 793 34,029 69 — 34,891
Accrued vacation ........... ..., 2,762 10,943 1,490 — 15,195
Accrued restructuring . . ........ .. .. .. — 800 — — 800
Accruedother ......... .. ... . .. .o 17,801 17,964 541 — 36,306
Incometaxes............... ..., 13,258 14,164 (3,700) — 23,722
Due to third party payors..................... (11,636) 42,304 (4,491) — 26,177
Total Current Liabilities ....................... 23,306 184,014 8,952 —_ 216,272
Long-term debt, net of current portion ........... 82,916 99,919 47912 — 230,747
Total liabilities ..................... ... ...... 106,222 283,933 56,864 — 447,019

Commitments and Contingencies
Minority interest in- consolidated subsidiary

COMPANIES .« .\ttt et — 254 5,368 — 5,622
Stockholders’ Equity:
Common stock ........... ... i 934 — — — 934
Capital in excessof par . ..................... 235,716 — — — 235,716
Retained earnings . .......................... 50,155 73,517 23,024 (96,541) (b) 50,155
Subsidiary investment...................... — 257,116 39,732 (296,848) (a) —
Accumulated other comprehensive loss ....... (387) — — — (387)
Total Stockholders’ Equity ..................... 286,418 330,633 62,756 (393,389) 286,418
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity .. ...... $392,640 $614,820  $124,988 $(393,389) $739,059

(a) Elimination of investments in subsidiaries.

(b) Elimination of investments in subsidiaries’ earnings.
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

Net operating revenues ., ..................

Costs and expenses:

Costof services ............oovvvennnn..
General and administrative. ..............
Bad debt expense............. ... ... ...
Depreciation and amortization............
Total costs and expenses. . .................

Income (loss) from operations .............

Other income and expense:

Intercompany interest and royalty fees ... ....
Intercompany management fees ............
Interest income . .......... ... . ...
Interestexpense ............ ... ... ...

Income (loss) before minority interests and

ncome taxes .............veuiininn.n.

Minority interest in consolidated subsidiary

COMPANIES . . oot ieer et

Income (loss) before income taxes..........
Income tax expense.......................
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries ...........

Netincome .............ciiiniininenn.n.

Select Medicat

Corporation Non-
(Parent Company Subsidiary Guarantor
Only) Guarantors  Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
(In thousands)

$ 14,902 $918,376  $193,281 $ — $1,126,559
— 761,361 161,192 — 922,553
39,409 — — — 39,409
— 31,946 5,372 — 37,318

1,709 18,805 5,322 — 25,836
41,118 812,112 171,886 — 1,025,116
(26,216) 106,264 21,395 — 101,443
22,219 (22,697) 478 — —
(52,395) 49,441 2,954 — —
(445) (150) (1) — (596)
7,982 14,477 4,751 — 27,210
(3,577) 65,193 13,213 — 74,829
— 74 1,948 — 2,022
(3,577) 65,119 11,265 — 72,807
445 25,628 2,503 — 28,576
48,253 6,239 — (54,492) (a) —

$ 44,231 $ 45,730 $ 8,762 $(54,492) $ 44,231

(a) Elimination of equity in net income from consolidated subsidiaries.
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

Operating activities
Netincome ........ccovviiiiniiiniiine.,
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization .................
Provision for bad debts .................... ...
Deferred taxes. .......... ... i il
Minority interests . ..........oiiieriiiii. ..
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of
effects from acquisition of businesses:
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries .............
Intercompany ........... ...,
Accounts receivable ........ ... ... .
Other current assets . .......................
Otherassets ...........coiiiiiiiiinnnaen..
Accounts payable ..........................
Due to third-party payors ...................
Accrued eXpenses . .........u i,
Income taxes.........oovviiiniiinnnnennn.

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Investing activities

Purchases of property and equipment, net..........
Earnout payments............... .. iiivrien ..
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired .. ...
Net cash used in investing activities ..............
Financing activities

Intercompany debt reallocation. ..................
Net repayments on credit facility debt ............
Principal payments on seller and other debt . .... ...
Proceeds from issuance of common stock..........
Proceeds from bank overdrafts ...................
Payment of deferred financing costs...............
Distributions to minority interests ................

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities. .

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash
equivalents. ...

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents .........
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period ...

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period ........

(a) Elimination of equity in earnings of subsidiary.

Select Medical

Corporation Non-

(Parent Subsidiary  Guarantor

Company Only) Guarantors Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
(In thousands)

$ 44231  $ 45730 $ 8,762  $(54.492)(a) $ 44,231
1,709 18,805 5,322 — 25,836
— 31,946 5,372 — 37,318
(890) 9,966 (198) — 8,878
— 74 1,948 — 2,022
(48,253) (6,239) — 54,492(a) —
(34,226) 35,562 (1,336) — —
(206) (44,503)  (9,184) — (53,893)
(924) 916 (379) — (387)
559 1,318 794 — 2,671
(553) 3,321 1,119 — 3,887
17,815 (3,373)  (1,463) — 12,979
5,810 17,375 (729) — 22,456
16,250 — (1,436) — 14814
1,322 110,898 8,592 — 120,812
(1,722)  (35,643) (5,818) — (43,183)
— (928) — — (928)
— (6,573)  (3,364) — (9,937)
(1,722)  (43,144)  (9,182) — (54,048)
36,312 (42,134) 5822 — —
(19,703) —  (2,969) — (22,672)
(480) (5,684) (9) — (6,173)
4,101 — — — 4,101
5,038 — — — 5,038
(67) - — — (67)
— — (1,650) — (1,650)
25,201 (47,818) 1,194 — (21,423)
18 — — — 18
24,819 19,936 604 — 45,359
559 8,086 2,058 — 10,703
$ 25,378 $ 28,022 § 2,662 $ — $ 56,062
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2001

Net operating revenues. . .................

Costs and expenses:
Costof services . ...............oovnn..
General and administrative .............
Bad debt expense .......... .. ... ...
Depreciation and amortization ..........

Total costs and expenses .................

Income (loss) from operations ............
Other income and expense:
Intercompany interest and royalty fees......
Intercompany management fees ...........
Loss on early retirement of debt . ..........
Interestincome . ........................
Interest expense ............ ...,
Income before minority interests and income
TAXES « vttt
Minority interest in consolidated subsidiary
COMPANIGS ... ..ot
Income before income taxes ..............
Income tax expense (benefit) .............
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries ..........

Netincome ..ot

Select Medical

Corporation Non-

(Parent Subsidiary Guarantor

Company Only) Guarantors  Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
(In thousands)

$ 14,300 $774206  $170450 $ — $958,956
— 637,681 138,614 — 776,295
35,630 — — — 35,630
— 30,356 4,657 — 35,013
1,764 25,383 5,143 — 32,290
37,394 693,420 148,414 T 879,228
(23,094) 80,786 22,036 — 79,728
13,596 (14,180) 584 — —
(58,597) 56,043 2,554 — —
14,223 — — — 14,223
(401) (102) 4 — (507)
7,223 17,478 5,015 — 29,716
862 21,547 13,887 —_— 36,296
— 578 2,913 — 3,491
862 20,969 10,974 — 32,805
6,091 (3,906) 939 — 3,124
34,910 8,242 — (43,152) (a) —
$ 29,681 $ 33,117 $ 10,035 $  (43,152) $ 29,681

(a) Elimination of equity in net income from consolidated subsidiaries.
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2001

Select Medical
Corporation Non-
(Parent Subsidiary  Guarantor
Company Only) Guarantors Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

(In thousands)

Operating activities
Net INCOME . . .ottt et e $ 29,681 $ 33,117 $ 10,035 $(43,152)(a) $ 29,681
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by

operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization ........... ... .00 1,764 25,383 5,143 — 32,290
Provision for baddebts ......... ... i — 30,356 4,657 —_ 35,013
Loss on early retirement of debt ............. ... ... ... ..., 14,223 — — — 14,223
Minority Interests . . . ...t — 578 2913 — 3,491
Deferred income taxes. . . ...ttt 2,461 (8,364) — — (5,903)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effects from
acquisition of businesses:
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries........................... (34,910) (8,242) — 43,152(a) —
Intercompany .. ...t e (2,941) (7,145) 10,086 —_ —
Accounts receivable . ... ... . 191 (39,401) (10,222) — (49,432)
Other CUITENt @SS . . o ottt ittt e ie et i (7,035) 7,530 (951) — (456)
Other aSSEtS ...ttt e (1,633) 3,296 (610) — 1,053
Accounts payable . ........... 743 3,307 665 -— 4,715
Due to third-party payors . ... (13,681) 27,046 1,381 — 14,746
ACCIUEd EXPENSES . .. v ettt et 7,170 7,218 (365) — 14,023
INCOmME tAXES ..\t ettt e et e e 3,747 — (1,421) — 2,326
Net cash provided by operating activities ........................ (220) 74,679 21,311 — 95,770
Investing activities
Purchases of property and equipment, net ....................... (1,682) (19,101) (3,228) — (24,011)
Proceeds from disposal of assets................... il — 808 — — 808
Earnout payments ........ ... . — (5,660) — — (5,660)
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired ................... — (22,253) (10,831) — (33,084)
Net cash used in investing activities ............................ (1,682) (46,206) (14,059) — (61,947)
Financing activities
Intercompany debt reallocation ........... ... .. ... . ..o (1,078) 2,868 (1,790) —_ —
Issuance of 9.5% Senior Subordinated Notes ..................... 175,000 —_ —_ —_ 175,000
Net repayments on credit facility debt .......................... (97,640) — (680) — (98,320)
Repayment of 10% Senior Subordinated Notes ................... (90,000) — — — (90,000)
Payment of deferred financing costs ............ ... ... .. ... (4,681) — — — (4,681)
Principal payments on seller and otherdebt ...................... (5,033) (13,652) (345) — (19,030)
Proceeds from initial public offering, net of fees ............... ... 89,181 — —_ — 89,181
Redemption of Class A Preferred Stock ......................... (52,838) — —_ — (52,838)
Payment of Class A and Class B Preferred Stock dividends ........ (19,248) —_ — — (19,248)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock................ ... 4,334 —_ — — 4,334
Proceeds from (repayment of) bank overdrafts ................... 4,571 (9,938) (2,768) — (8,135)
Distributions to minority interests ......... ... ... ... .. il — (680) (1,747) — (2,427)
Net cash used in financing activities . ........................... 2,568 (21,402) (7,330) — (26,164)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents ...... (107) — — — (107)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ............. 559 7,071 (78) — 7,552
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period ................. — 1,015 2,136 — 3,151
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period ...................... $ 559 $ 8,086 $ 2,058 $ — $ 10,703

(a) Elimination of equity in earnings of subsidiary.
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21. Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

The table below sets forth selected unaudited financial data for each quarter of the last two years.

First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Year ended December 31, 2003

NEE TEVENUES . o v v v et et e e e e $312,307 $326,218 $353,475 $404,773
Income from operations ................... 30,838 36,847 36,935 45,594
Netincome ..................coviiinn... 14,454 18,631 18,613 22,773
Net income per common share:
Basic:
Income per common share............... $ 015 $ 020 $ 019 $ 022
Diluted:

Income per common share............... $ 015 $ 0.18 $ 0138 $ 021

First Quarter  Second Quarter ~ Third Quarter  Fourth Quarter
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Year ended December 31, 2002

NEt TEVENUES .« oo oottt et e $271,920 $280,272 $278,983 $295,384
Income from operations ................... 24,030 28,006 22,483 26,924
NetinCome .....ovviiienn e 10,176 12,601 9,355 12,099
Net income per common share:

Basic:

Income per common share............... $§ o011 $ 0.14 $ 0.10 $ 013
Diluted:

Income per common share............... $ o1 $ 0.13 $ 0.10 $ 0.12
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Report of Independent Auditors on
Financial Statement Schedule

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
of Select Medical Corporation:

Our audits of the consolidated financial statements referred to in our report dated March 2, 2004 appearing in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K also included an audit of the financial statement schedule listed in Item 15(a) of this
Form 10-K. In our opinion, this financial statement schedule presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set
forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements.

/s/ PricévyaterhouseCoopers LLP

Harrisburg, Pennsylvania
March 2, 2004
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SCHEDULE II-
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Balance at  Charged to Balance
Beginning Cost and at End
Description of Year Expenses Acquisitions(A) Deductions(B) of Year
Year ended December 31, 2003 allowance for
doubtful accounts ........... ... .. ... .. ... $79.815 $51,428 $30,466 $(50,192) $111,517
Year ended December 31, 2002 allowance for
doubtful accounts ........... ... .. ......... $79,889 $37,318 $ 1,225 $(38,617) $ 79,815
Year ended December 31, 2001 allowance for
doubtful accounts ......................... $75,517 $35,013 $ 1,214 $(31,855) $ 79,889
Year ended December 31, 2003 income tax
valuation allowance ........ ... ... ... ....... $ 2,862 $ — $ 1,658 $ — $ 4,520
Year ended December 31, 2002 income tax
valuation allowance ........................ $ 2,862 $§ - $ — $ —_ $ 2,862
Year ended December 31, 2001 income tax
valuation allowance . ......... ... ... ... ... $35,196 $(9,670) $ —_ $(22,664) $ 2,862

(A) Represents opening balance sheet reserves resulting from purchase accounting entries.

(B) Allowance for doubtful accounts deductions represent writeoffs against the reserve. Income tax valuation allowance
deductions primarily represent the reversal of valuation allowances because the Company believes certain deferred

tax items will be realized.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly
caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

SELECT MEDICAL CORPORATION

By: /s/  ROBERT A. ORTENZIO

Robert A. Ortenzio
Chief Executive Officer and President
(principal executive officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report is signed below by the following
persons on behalf of the Registrant on the dates and in the capacities indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s/ Rocco A. ORTENZIO Director and Executive Chairman March 12, 2004
Rocco A. Ortenzio

/s/ ROBERT A. ORTENZIO Director, Chief Executive Officer and President March 12, 2004
Robert A. Ortenzio (principal executive officer)

/s/  MARTIN F. JACKSON Chief Financial Officer (principal financial March 12, 2004
Martin F. Jackson officer)

/s/ ScoTt A. ROMBERGER Chief Accounting Officer (principal accounting March 12, 2004
Scott A. Romberger officer)

/s/ RuUSSELL L. CARSON Director March 12, 2004

Russell L. Carson

/s/ Davip S. CHERNOW Director March 12, 2004
David S. Chernow

/s/ BRrYAN C. CRESSEY Director March 12, 2004
Bryan C. Cressey

/s/  JamEes E. DALTON, JRr. Director March 12, 2004
James E. Dalton, Jr.

/s/ MEYER FELDBERG Director March 12, 2004
Meyer Feldberg

/s/ THOMAS A. SCULLY Director March 12, 2004
Thomas A. Scully

/s/{ LEOPOLD SWERGOLD Director March 12, 2004
Leopold Swergold

/s/{ LEROY S. ZIMMERMAN Director ‘ March 12, 2004
LeRoy S. Zimmerman




CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
I, Robert A. Ortenzio, President and Chief Executive Officer of Select Medical Corporation, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Select Medical Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of Select
Medical Corporation as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period
in which this annual report is being prepared,;

c¢) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this annual report based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this annual report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most récent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of
directors:

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role
in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 12, 2004

/s/  ROBERT A. ORTENZIO

Robert A. Ortenzio
President and Chief Executive Officer




CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
I, Martin F. Jackson, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Select Medical Corporation, certify that:
1. 1 have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Select Medical Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of Select
Medical Corporation as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(¢e)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period
in which this annual report is being prepared,;

¢) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this annual report based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this annual report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of
directors:

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role
in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 12, 2004

/s/ MARTIN F. JACKSON

Martin F. Jackson
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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INFORMATION

Corporate Headquarters
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